
 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.leicestershire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Corporate Governance Committee  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Friday, 12 June 2020 at 10.00 am 

Location: Skype 

Contact: Mrs L Walton (tel: 0116 305 2583) 

Email: lauren.walton@leics.gov.uk 

 
Membership 

 
Mr. T. Barkley CC (Chairman) 

 
Mr. G. A. Boulter CC 
Mr. J. G. Coxon CC 

Mr. T. Gillard CC 
Mr. J. Kaufman CC 

 

Mr. J. T. Orson JP CC 
Mr. T. J. Richardson CC 
Mr. S. D. Sheahan CC 
Mrs. A. Wright CC 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Item   Report by   

 
1.  

  
Minutes.  
 

 
 

(Pages 3 - 10) 

2.  
  

Question Time.  
 

 
 

 

3.  
  

Questions asked by members under Standing 
Order 7(3) and 7(5).  
 

 
 

 

4.  
  

Urgent Items.  
 

 
 

 

5.  
  

Declarations of Interest.  
 

 
 

 

6.  
  

Risk Management Update.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 11 - 32) 

7.  
  

External Audit Risk Assessment 2019/20 and 
Audit Plan 2019/20 Update.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 33 - 80) 

8.  
  

Appointment of Independent Persons.  
 

Director of Law 
and Governance 
 

(Pages 81 - 84) 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works


 
 
 
 

9.  
  

Quarterly Treasury Management Update.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 85 - 96) 

10.  
  

Annual Treasury Management Report.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 97 - 
110) 

11.  
  

Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2019/20.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 111 - 
150) 

12.  
  

Internal Audit Service Progress Report.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 151 - 
168) 

13.  
  

Date of next meeting.  
 

 
 

 

 The next meeting of the Committee is scheduled to take place on 
Friday, 24th July 2020 starting at 10.00am. 
 

 

14.  
  

Any other items which the Chairman has 
decided to take as urgent.  
 

 
 

 



 

  

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Corporate Governance Committee held at County Hall, 
Glenfield on Friday, 31 January 2020.  
 

PRESENT 
 

Mr. T. Barkley CC (in the Chair) 
 

Mr. G. A. Boulter CC 
Mr. J. G. Coxon CC 
Mr. T. Gillard CC 
Mr. J. Kaufman CC 
 

Mr. J. T. Orson JP CC 
Mr. T. J. Richardson CC 
Mr. S. D. Sheahan CC 
Mrs. A. Wright CC 
 

 
 

46. Minutes.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 1 November 2019 were taken as read, confirmed and 
signed.  
 

47. Question Time.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
35. 
 

48. Questions asked by members under Standing Order 7(3) and 7(5).  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
7(3) and 7(5). 
 

49. Urgent Items.  
 
There were no urgent items for consideration. 
 

50. Declarations of interest.  
 
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of 
items on the agenda for the meeting. 
 
Mr. S. Sheahan CC and Mr. J. Coxon CC each declared a personal interest in agenda 
item 6 (Risk Management Update) (minute 51 below refers) as they owned property 
within close proximity to the proposed HS2 route.  Both members stated that, should the 
debate on this item go into matters of detail regarding HS2 and in particular the location 
of the line, they would consider the matter a “personal interest that may lead to bias” and 
leave the room. 
 
Mr. T. J. Richardson CC declared a personal interest in agenda item 11 (Quarterly 
Treasury Management Report) (minute 56 below refers) as he was in receipt of a pension 
from Lloyds Bank Plc. He stated that, should the debate on this item go into matters of 
detail regarding Lloyds Bank Plc, he would consider the matter a “personal interest that 
may lead to bias” and leave the room. 

3 Agenda Item 1



 
 

 

51. Risk Management Update.  
 
The Committee received a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which provided 
an overview of the key risk areas faced by the County Council and the measures being 
taken to address them.  A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 6’, is filed with these 
minutes. 
 
As part of this item, the Committee also received a presentation on Corporate Risk 7.1 on 
the Corporate Risk Register (If sickness absence is not effectively managed then staff 
costs, service delivery and staff wellbeing will be impacted).  A copy of the presentation 
slides is filed with these minutes. 
 
Arising from the presentation, the following points arose: 
 

(i) The Council had arranged for a peer review to be carried out by what was 
considered to be an exemplary local authority (North Yorkshire County Council) in 
respect of attendance management.  The outcomes of the review had provided 
reassurance that the Council was largely taking the appropriate steps in managing 
staff absences. 

 
(ii) Performance management continued to be a key area of focus when managing 

staff absences. It was important that the expectations of managers following the 
Performance Management Framework were clear and focussed on carrying out 
the process in a robust but supportive way.  Recognising individual needs would 
be essential, especially when dealing with complex cases.  Withholding or 
withdrawing increments linked to attendance and the management of absence was 
one option that could be used as an incentive to meet the required standard. 
However, this method had not been commonly used by other local authorities and 
it was therefore unclear whether this would in reality motivate or de-motivate staff. 
Ensuring that managers actively and attentively used the performance 
management process was an area where much effort would be concentrated.  

 
(iii) In response to a query raised about whether individuals felt pressured to return to 

work too early following a period of sickness, it was confirmed that this had not 
been raised as an issue.  Managers were trained to deal with all types of sickness 
absences including providing support to those on long-term sick leave; the Council 
also had long-term sick pay provisions in place for those that required it. 

 
(iv) Similarly to last year, a significant number (around 1500) of Council staff had opted 

to have the flu vaccine in 2019/20.  Although there had been no increase in staff 
absences because of the flu during that period, there had been an increase in 
absences because of respiratory illnesses.  The Public Health Department were in 
the process of analysing whether there was any correlation between sickness 
absences and those that had received a flu jab. 

 
(v) It was recognised that certain areas were more prone to specific illnesses or 

conditions than others; for example, absences due to musculoskeletal related 
conditions were currently higher in the Environment and Transport Department.  
Work was underway to address the specific areas that had been identified. It was 
suggested that it would be useful for Members of this Committee to be provided 
with further information on the reasons for staff absences broken down by 
department. Officers undertook to circulate this information outside of the meeting. 

 

4



 
 

 

(vi) In response to a question raised by a Member, the Director confirmed that, in 
terms of stress related absences, the number of those that were former members 
of the armed forces had been shown to be minimal. 
 

(vii) The Council had been signed up to the Trades Union Congress' Dying to Work 
Charter since March 2017, as part of its ongoing commitment to supporting and 
protecting staff throughout their employment following a diagnosis of terminal 
illness. Security of work was one of the provisions included within the Charter. 
 

Risk Register 
 
Arising from discussion, the following points were raised: 
 

(i) Following conversations with the Environment and Transport Department, it had 
been agreed that Corporate Risk 4.2 (If Arriva is successful in its concessionary 
travel appeal, then reimbursement costs for the total scheme could increase 
significantly) could be removed from the Corporate Risk Register (CRR). Members 
were assured, however, that the risk would continue to be monitored at 
departmental level. 

 
(ii) Corporate Risk 7.3 (If the department does not have a sustainable external 

workforce to work with it may be unable to meet its statutory responsibilities) had 
been re-instated due to high level risks associated with the upcoming Home Care 
Services re-procurement.  Procuring the right providers to ensure a high-quality 
service was of fundamental importance.  However, it was recognised that the care 
market could be particularly challenging in this regard. Assurance was provided 
that lessons from the previous procurement were being used to improve and 
design the new service.  Members noted that the Adults and Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee had received a number of reports recently on 
this matter, including one at its last meeting on 20 January 2020 when it had 
confirmed its support for the service proposals. 

 
It was suggested that to provide further assurance on this matter a presentation on 
this risk be provided at a future meeting of this Committee. 

 
(iii) In response to a Member’s request, Officers undertook to include the impact and 

likelihood components of the current risk scores into future reports.  
 

(iv) One of the aims of the Growth Unit was to provide for a more joined up approach 
with respect to coordinating and securing developer contributions. The Unit was 
not currently at full staffing capacity but aimed to be fully functional by April 2020.  

 
(v) It was suggested that a presentation be given at the next meeting on the recently 

launched CIPFA Financial Management Code and at the Committee’s meeting in 
July 2020 a presentation be given on Corporate Risk 3.7 (If the Council does not 
manage its exposure to cyber risk, then decisions and controls cannot be taken to 
mitigate the threat of a successful cyber-attack). 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

a) That the content of the presentation provided on corporate risk 7.1 (If sickness 
absence is not effectively managed then staff costs, service delivery and staff 

5



 
 

 

wellbeing will be impacted) be noted; 
 

b) That the Director of Corporate Resources be requested to provide further 
information on the reasons for staff absences broken down by department; 
 

c) That the current status of the strategic risks facing the County Council be 
approved; 
 

d) That the Director of Corporate Resources be requested to include the impact and 
likelihood components of the current risk scores into future reports; 
 

e) That the updates provided on HS2 Phase 2B and counter fraud initiatives be 
noted; 
 

f) That at the next meeting of the Committee a presentation be provided on the 
recently launched CIPFA Management Code and at its meeting in July 2020 the 
Committee receive a presentation on corporate risk 3.7 (If the Council does not 
manage its exposure to cyber risk, then decisions and controls cannot be taken to 
mitigate the threat of a successful cyber-attack); 
 

g) That the Director of Corporate Resources be requested to arrange for the 
Committee to receive a presentation on corporate risk 7.3 (Adults and 
Communities – Home Care Services Re-Procurement - If the Department does not 
have a sustainable external workforce to work with it may be unable to meet its 
statutory responsibilities) at a future meeting when he considers appropriate; 
 

h) That the Cabinet be recommended to approve the revised Risk Management 
Policy and Strategy for 2020/21 as set out in Appendix B to this report. 
 

52. External Audit Plan 2019/20.  
 
The Committee considered a report which presented the External Audit Plan for 2019/20. 
A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 7’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
The Chairman welcomed Grant Patterson of Grant Thornton LLP UK, the County 
Council’s external auditors, to the meeting. 
 
Arising from discussion, the following points were raised: 
 

(i) The Committee expressed disappointment with the proposed increase to Grant 
Thornton’s annual scale fee for 2019/20.  Mr Patterson explained that the increase 
was necessary due to a change to the auditing standards set by the Financial 
Reporting Council.  All audits were now required to achieve a 2A (few 
improvements needed) rating, which meant additional work would need to be 
undertaken to provide the level and quality of service now expected. The criteria 
for reaching a 2A rating had also changed making this more difficult to achieve.  

 
Members requested that the Chairman of the Committee be kept informed of the 
ongoing discussions regarding the proposed annual fee increase and noted that 
PSAA (Public Sector Audit Appointments) approval of the figures would be 
required at the final stage. 

 

6



 
 

 

(ii) The decrease in materiality, although unusual, reflected the changes to the 
national auditing standards which now required a greater level of assurance. The 
change in limit was not expected to impact on the County Council’s accounts and 
was an approach that was being adopted nationally. 

 
(iii) Members agreed with the proposal to delay the completion of the draft accounts to 

the end of June 2020 and consequently the completion of the external audit (which 
would now be carried out at the end of September), as a precautionary measure 
whilst the new financial system was being implemented. Issues with the system 
going ‘live’ were not expected, however, given the complexities of delivering such 
a large-scale change, the full extent could only be known once the system was 
fully operational. The Director confirmed that even with the delays outlined, the 
Council would still be meeting its legal requirements. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

a) That the External Audit Plan for 2019/20 and the update now provided by Grant 
Thornton UK LLP be noted; 

 
b) That the proposal to delay the completion of the County Council’s annual accounts 

(excluding the pension fund accounts) in 2020 whilst a new financial system was 
introduced be supported; 

 
c) That the Director of Corporate Resources be requested to keep the Chairman of 

the Committee informed of discussions regarding the proposed increase in audit 
fees for the 2019/20 financial year. 
 

53. Audit and Governance Update.  
 
[Mr Gillard left the meeting at this point and did not return to the meeting] 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which 
provided an update on current audit and governance issues. A copy of the report marked 
‘Agenda Item 8’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
An initial review had been carried out which showed that the Council would likely be 
compliant with most of the requirements of the new CIPFA Financial Management Code. 
The guidance notes, which were awaited, would provide the final details and clarify the 
extent of any adjustments that might be required to ensure full compliance. It was 
intended that the Committee would receive a further update at its next meeting. 
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the updates provided on current audit and governance issues be welcomed and 
noted. 
 

54. Resilience and Business Continuity Update.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Executive which provided an annual 
update on the Council’s Resilience and Business Continuity activities, work undertaken 
with other Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland local authorities and wider multi-agency 
resilience activities. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 9’, is filed with these 
minutes. 

7



 
 

 

 
Arising from discussion, the following points were raised: 
 

(i) A series of major flooding incidents had affected many parts of the Country during 
the reporting period. The local area had experienced the highest number of 
flooding incidents since 2012. Work was underway to assess local infrastructure to 
identify long-term solutions to largescale flooding.  
 

(ii) Every effort was made to move people back into their homes as quickly as 
possible following a major flooding incident.  However, the process for this was 
often complex and could be time consuming. It was crucial that the affected area 
be made safe before allowing people to move back home. 

   
(iii) Locally, a great deal of contingency planning had been completed to prepare for 

Brexit.  Given that the Government was still in the process of negotiating trade 
deals, there was still much uncertainty around the impact of Brexit once the 
transition period of Britain exiting the EU had ended. 

 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the update provided on Resilience and Business Continuity during 2019 be noted 
and the priorities identified for 2020/21 be supported. 
 

55. Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2020/21.  
 
[Mrs Wright entered the meeting at this point] 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources regarding the 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2020/21.  A 
copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 10’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
Arising from discussion, the following points arose: 
 

(i) Assurance was provided to the Committee that when investments were being 
considered by the Council, regard was always taken of wider reputational issues 
that might arise from investing with certain organisations. The Director of 
Corporate Resources specifically undertook to include reference of this within the 
Strategy.  

 
(ii) The ability for Local Authorities to reduce services without a corresponding income 

reduction as a means to regaining a balanced budget was a necessary safeguard 
to enable the continuation of other services. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

a) That the contents of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy 2020/21 be noted; 
 

b) That the Director of Corporate Resources be requested to include reference within 
the Strategy of the regard taken by Officers when considering an investment of 
wider reputational issues that might arise from investing with certain organisations. 
 
 

8



 
 

 

56. Quarterly Treasury Management Update.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources, which 
provided an update on the actions taken in respect of treasury management for the 
quarter ending 31 December 2019 (Quarter 3). A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 
11’, is filed with these minutes.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the actions taken in respect of treasury management for the quarter ending 31 
December 2019 be noted. 
 

57. Internal Audit Service Progress Report.  
 
The Committee received a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which provided 
a summary of the work conducted during the period 1 October 2019 to 17 January 2020 
and on the progress with implementing high recommendations. A copy of the report 
marked ‘Agenda Item 12’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
Regarding school annual budget plans where a shortfall was predicted, the Director 
confirmed that the deficit balance was required to be carried forward from one financial 
year to the next. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the audit work undertaken during the period 1 October 2019 to 17 January 2020 and 
actions taken to implement high importance recommendations be noted. 
 

58. Date of next meeting.  
 
Following requests from Members, Officers undertook to consider the options for 
rescheduling the date of the next meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That Officers consider the options for rescheduling the date of the next meeting.  
 
 
10.00-11.55am        CHAIRMAN 
31 January 2020 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



  

   

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 12 JUNE 2020 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES  
 

RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE 
  

Purpose of the Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update to the Corporate Governance 

Committee (the Committee) on the impact of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) in 
the context of the Council’s risk management arrangements. 
 

2. This report covers: 

 The Corporate Risk Register (CRR) – summary of risks. An update on 
each risk is provided in the Appendix attached to this report which now 
includes assessing the risk through the prism of COVID-19 impacts. 

 Risks added to the CRR and work of other groups in risk mitigation 

 Emerging risks and service recovery – COVID-19 

 Counter fraud – COVID-19 

 Insurance – COVID -19 
 
Corporate Risk Register (CRR) 
 
3. Within the County Council’s Constitution, Article 9.03 ‘Role and Function of the 

Corporate Governance Committee’ states that the Committee shall have 
responsibility for the promotion and maintenance within the Authority of high 
standards in relation to the operation of the Council’s Code of Corporate 
Governance with an emphasis on ensuring that an adequate risk management 
framework and associated control environment is in place. 

 
4. In early March 2020, as part of the Council’s planning for the likely and 

significant business interruptions caused by the coronavirus (COVID-19) 
outbreak the Director of Corporate Resources took the decision to ‘pause’ non-
business critical work, including the standard approach to risk management and 
the cycle of corporate risk reviews and the update of the Corporate Risk 
Register.  This was to enable the delivery of business-critical services to be 
prioritised, recognising the unprecedented demand the pandemic would place 
on management teams at least in the short term. It should be noted, however, 
that despite this, risk management has been at the heart of decision making 
during this period. 

 
5. The existing risks on the CRR last presented to the Committee on 31 January 

2020 are shown in the Appendix attached to this report.  Most of the risks have 
been impacted by COVID-19 and the summary highlights the current situation.  
A full re-assessment of the current risk scores has not yet been undertaken. 

 

11 Agenda Item 6



 

6. At its meeting on 31 January 2020, the Committee had requested that a 
presentation be provided at the May meeting on the CIPFA Financial 
Management Code which had been launched in October 2019.  However, the 
accompanying CIPFA Guidance Notes publication was delayed due to COVID-
19 and has only just been made available at the end of May.  Officers will now 
review the guidance and a presentation will be rescheduled at an appropriate 
time. 

 
Risk Added 

 
7. The following risk will be added on to the Corporate Risk Register: 

 

 If the Council does not plan, prepare and respond adequately to future 
developments in relation to both the COVID 19 pandemic and recovery to 
a “new normal” level of services, it could suffer long lasting economic, 
environmental, societal and technological challenges and miss 
opportunities. 

 
8. The actions taken to mitigate this risk have and are being undertaken by the 

Local Resilience Forum and the County Council.  The main coordinating groups 
involved are: 

 

 LLR Prepared which is the Local Resilience Forum (LRF) for Leicester, 
Leicestershire & Rutland.  It has statutory responsibilities arising from the 
Civil Contingencies Act 2004, which requires specific organisations (such 
as local authorities, emergency services, the NHS and others) within an 
area to work together to prepare for, respond to, and recover from different 
emergencies.  LLR Prepared has, through its multi-agency Strategic Co-
ordinating Group (SCG) developed a COVID-19 strategic risk assessment 
which aligns to the key strategic priorities agreed by the group.   The 
assessment covers COVID-19 operational issues arising from the 
response to the disease.  This is regularly updated by the LRF, SCG and 
details all the relevant risks to the response. 

 

 The County Council’s Resilience Planning Group (RPG) which is 
supported by key officers from all County Council Departments.   This 
meets to oversee the COVID-19 key issues and business continuity 
planning aspects.  For example, actions include redeployment of staff; 
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE); closure of sites and services; waste 
disposal; emergency bill; critical services list; County Hall site. 

 
Emerging Risks and Service Recovery Planning COVID-19  
 
9. In March, when the pandemic was declared, the Council’s risk profiles changed 

significantly.  The virus has affected not only the Council’s existing risks but 
created many new ones. 
 

10. The Council’s Crisis Management Group (CMG), consisting of all Chief 
Officers, meets regularly and is supported by the RPG.  The CMG also 
oversees the Council’s business continuity planning including the delivery of 
critical services.   
 

12



 

11. As the response continues, the Council is fast progressing its plans to recover 
and rebuild services.  Work is underway to develop a Recovery Strategy which 
will outline the strategic framework for recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic.  
It is recognised that there will be a period of transition, with phased steps 
towards the ‘new normal’.  The existing risk management arrangements will be 
aligned to the recovery planning principles. 

 
12. A Recovery Group (including task specialist Work Groups) has been formed 

and is working closely with Heads of Service and support functions to develop 
interim and long-term recovery plans as outlined in the Recovery Strategy.  
These will enable services to recover to an acceptable level following the end of 
the lockdown, whilst operating under social distancing measures, and identify 
how services may need to transform their future operational activities post 
COVID-19.   
 

13. This work will ensure that the Council’s services recover to a sustainable 
position, reflective of potential changes in service demand, community capacity 
etc., as well as changing aspirations and practicalities regarding ways of 
working and the use of office space, IT and Digital ambitions, driven by the 
increased financial constraints that are likely to influence service re-design.  

 
14. It is proposed that risks which may affect/undermine delivery of the interim 

recovery plan (e.g. non-delivery of required corporate support) be managed 
through risk logs, kept up-to-date by Heads of Service in collaboration with 
Departmental Risk Champions.  Other types of risk, such as those arising from 
delivery of a full longer- term recovery plan (e.g. risk that prolonged remote-
working may affect staff wellbeing) are proposed to be managed through the 
usual process whereby Heads of Service in conjunction with Departmental Risk 
Champions identify risks arising from the Recovery process in their 
Departments and log them in their Departmental Risk Registers for approval by 
their respective Departmental Management Teams.  Key corporate risks 
identified through this process will be highlighted in the Corporate Risk Register 
and escalated to Chief Officers and the Corporate Governance Committee. 
 

15. Much of the recovery planning work including that of the task specialist Sub-
Groups and Cells will consider risks and issues to ensure appropriate 
mitigations are put in place.  Examples of some of the emerging risks which 
have already been considered or may form their focus in the short, medium and 
longer term are as follows: 

 

 Protecting People 
 

o PPE – availability due to global demand and distribution impacting 
upon staff safety. 

o Testing for COVID-19 – staff.  
o Vulnerable persons – delivery of food and medicines.  

 

 Safeguarding 
 

o Support for vulnerable children and adults. 
o Expected increase in domestic violence incidents. 

 
 

13



 

 Legislative 
 

o Impacts on Departments from the Coronavirus Act 2020 and 
associated emergency regulations and guidance implemented in 
response to COVID-19 

 Children and Adult Social Care easements  
 Cessation of some services to comply with the restrictions on 

movement    
 Contact tracing  
 Emergency volunteers 

 
o GDPR compliance 

 Increase in services being delivered digitally, leading to a 
commensurate increase in data being collected about 
individuals through those digital interactions. 

 Working from home and concerns about the security of data 
leaving the office environment. 

 Technology-based solutions to monitor employee 
interactions and track and trace the spread of the disease 
will create significant GDPR compliance questions.  
However, there will be positive consequences too, since 
digital interactions are often more secure and allow technical 
controls to be installed rather than relying on human 
compliance. 
 

 Financial 
 

o Reduced income levels and significant additional expenditure  
 Reduced income from commercial services, business rates 

etc. 
 Increased costs – shielding, community grants, IT equipment 

and infrastructure, waste disposal costs, delays to capital 
works and projects e.g. Fit for the Future. 
 

o Increased strain on resources as a result of COVID-19 resulting in 
an increased risk of fraud. 
 

 Workforce/Work Place/ Wellbeing 
 

o Staff resource capacity to implement, manage and co-ordinate the 
recovery response activities as well as manage routine services. 

o Health measures in response to COVID-19 to review travel and 
work at County Hall and other sites including movement restrictions. 

o Social distancing guidance for the workplace.  
o Redeployment of employees to emerging needs, based on a fuller 

understanding of roles, skills and availability. 
o Assessment to mitigate against new risks created by the new 

working environment. 
o Increased levels of sickness.  
o Impacts of isolation and vulnerabilities and mental health. 

 
 
 

14



 

 

 Service Provision  
 

o Continuing work with essential service providers to ensure essential 
service continuity for future pandemic waves. 

o Ongoing impact of school, childcare facilities, libraries closures. 
o The ‘risk-sharing’ model being proposed nationally may mean that 

the full financial effect on the Council is not to be mitigated by the 
Government, putting future service provision at risk. 

o Lack of broadband capacity for home workers. 
o Understanding any future risks and liabilities of unique changes to 

service provision e.g. redeploying council staff to other care 
services including front line. 

o Future impact on care home capacity 
 

 Business Continuity and Recovery  
 

o Test/learn from existing plans, systems and lesson-learnt exercises 
to inform future preparedness and response activities. 

o COVID-19 scenario planning to identify and plan for worst case 
outcome. 

o The safe, controlled recovery of services, safety of staff, and 
service users. 

o Assessing financial viability and other measures for critical 
suppliers. 
 

 Contractual 
 

o Understanding the contractual liabilities that the Council is currently 
exposed to.  

o Collapse of suppliers and contractors and/or failing to meet 
contractual commitments. 

o Insurance considerations 
 
 
Counter fraud – COVID-19   
 
16. Intelligence sources have reported a dramatic increase in attempted frauds 

against individuals and organisations, seeking to exploit weaknesses in 
defences, during times of major upheaval, process changes, increased 
anxieties and reduced resources.  These include fake suppliers, poor quality 
goods (e.g. PPE), urgent payment requests from cloned senior management 
email accounts, phishing attempts and bogus correspondence, e.g. ‘from’ the 
NHS inviting donations to the COVID-19 cause or ‘from’ HMRC advising 
individuals of tax refunds due.  
 

17. Urgent grant funding is highlighted as a high-risk area that fraudsters will seek 
to exploit, although the large emergency funds, e.g. Small Business Grants 
Fund and Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant Fund, are administered by 
Leicester City Council and the district councils. 
 
 
 

15



 

 
18. The County Council has administered a local Communities Fund (£1.5m of 

emergency funding to charities and social enterprises).  The Internal Audit 
Service (IAS) was instrumental in giving proactive counter fraud advice to the 
administering department to reduce the risk of fraud.  This considered central 
government advice on control, available data matching tools (such as the 
Cabinet Office’s Spotlight Counter Fraud solution), whilst supplementing these 
with common sense due-diligence tools that have been used for some time 
now, e.g. Experian credit checks.  IAS raised fraud awareness with key staff to 
enable them to remain professionally vigilant, such as by highlighting the need 
to validate applicants through independent means.  Additionally, a webinar 
devised by the Fraud Advisory Panel and the Charity Commission on COVID-
19 and charity fraud was shared, which is also intended to be passed on to 
charities and social enterprises.  An audit of the Communities Fund is currently 
under way to provide assurance that due process was followed. 

 
19. IAS continues to provide regular warnings about fraud developments as they 

arise and guidance to mitigate the risk, and advice or even investigations if 
fraud is suspected.  It is currently reviewing a recent study on the costs and 
effects of occupational fraud (fraud committed by individuals against the 
organisations that employ them) which will be disseminated to senior 
management.  Also, it has raised awareness of fraud risk with staff in their 
personal lives as part of the Council’s wider ‘good employer’ role. 

 
Insurance – COVID-19   

 
20. Due to the requirement to take significant and very quick decisions, and make 

changes to service provision, managers have been reminded of their 
responsibilities to keep the Insurance Service advised of changes as they 
occur, so that the Council’s insurers can be duly notified.  This is to ensure 
cover isn’t breached and the Council remains protected.  Managers have also 
been advised to keep records of decisions made regarding changes to usual 
service provisions and to ensure that robust risk assessments are performed 
and recorded as part of that process.  Doing so will help to defend any potential 
future liability claims. 
 

21. In conjunction with colleagues in other departments, the Insurance Service has 
provided advice and guidance on several service delivery proposals including: - 

 
a. Staff working from their own homes 
b. Re-deploying Council staff into care homes and hospital kitchens 
c. Administering PPE 
d. Highways inspections 
e. Recovery plans - waste sites; workplace (property) and workforce 

(staff); country parks (using re-deployed staff and volunteers); 
highways inspections and maintained schools and academies 

f. School trip cancellations 
g. ESPO being used as a food distribution hub   

 
 
 
 
 

16



 

 
Recommendations 
 

 
It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

a) Notes the impacts arising from COVID-19 on the current status of the 
strategic risks facing the County Council; 
 

b) Makes recommendations on any areas which might benefit from further 
examination and identify a risk area for presentation at its next meeting; 
 

c) Notes the risk to be added to the Corporate Risk Register; 
 

d) Notes the updates regarding the emerging risks and service recovery 
planning, counter fraud and insurance. 

 
Resources Implications 

 
None 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 
None 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 

 
None 
 
Background Papers 
 
Report of the Director of Corporate Resources – ‘Risk Management Update’ – 
Corporate Governance Committee, 29 January, 23 April and 25 July 2018 and 24 
October 2018; 18 January, 10 May, 26 July and 1 November 2019; 31 January 2020 
 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=434 
 
Officers to Contact 

 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources   
Tel : 0116 305 6199  
E-mail : chris.tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Neil Jones, Head of Internal Audit and Assurance Service 
Tel: 0116 305 7629 
Email: neil.jones@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix - Corporate Risk Register Update  

17

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=434
mailto:ctambini@leics.gov.uk
mailto:neil.jones@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



CORPORATE RISK REGISTER – IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON RISKS     APPENDIX  
   

Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description *Current   

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Impact of Covid-19 on Risk  

 
May 2020 

 

** Direction of 

Travel 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 months) 
* The current risk score remains as at reported on 31 January 2020 due to the time constratints to undertake a full assessment. 
** The direction of travel has been updated 

1. Medium Term Strategy 
 

All 1.1 
 

Risk around the MTFS including 
the ability to deliver savings 
through service redesign and 
Transformation as required in 
the MTFS, impact of the living 
wage and other demand/cost 
pressures including legal 
challenges. 

25 
 

(increased 
from 20) 

 
 

MTFS 
The overall financial impact of the pandemic is very difficult to 
quantify at present, not least because of the uncertainty around the 
length of the time the social isolation restrictions will be in place, 
how quickly they are relaxed and whether further periods of 
restriction are needed at a later date. In addition, there is the wider 
impact from the deep-rooted economic recession that will follow. 
 
The estimate for the current financial year is that the financial 
impact will exceed Government grant by approximately £30 million. 
there is significant uncertainty around this position: 

 Impact upon Council Tax & Business Rates (£390m 
budgeted for 2020-21) 

 Support required to the social care provider market 

 Changes to services requiring them to operate with social  
distancing and other protective measures for a prolonged 
period of time. 

 Potential pent up demand for services released when 
schools and work places return. 

 
Some of the financial implications will continue into future financial 
years. Due to the rapid financial impact, the current year budget 
shortfall will have to be funded by repurposing earmarked funds. 
This will require repayment in future financial years or de-prioritising 
certain projects. At an appropriate time, new saving initiatives will 
be required.  
 
Transformation 
 
Work has commenced on recovery planning to help ensure the 
Council’s services recover to a sustainable position, balancing 
service delivery with financial constraints.  It will be important to 
ensure lessons are learnt from how the Council has managed itself 
through the crisis.  

 
 
 

 
Expected to 

increase   
high/red 

 
 

19



Dept./ 
Function 

CRR 
Risk 
No 

Risk Description *Current 
Risk  

Score 

(incl. 
changes) 

Impact of Covid-19 on Risk  
 

May 2020 

 

** Direction of 
Travel 

(Residual Risk 

Score over the 
next 12 months) 

CE 1.3 If the Council fails to maximise 
developer contributions, then 
there could be a failure to fund 
corporate infrastructure 
projects. 
 

16 
 

Concern that the Covid-19 is impacting upon housebuilding and the 
economy more generally, which will affect the ability of some 
developers to able to pay contributions towards County Council 
infrastructure. This impact is likely to escalate the longer the crisis 
continues and there may be a need to allow developers to 
postpone payments. There is a further implication that if the 
economy falls into a lengthy recession, then housebuilding will 
significantly reduce, and some developers may contract or dissolve, 
increasing the difficulties with recovering S106 payments. 
 

 
 
 
 

Expected to 
increase 
 high/red 

 

C&FS 1.5 Social Care: 
If the number of high cost social 
care placements (e.g. external 
fostering, residential and 16+ 
supported accommodation) 
increases (especially in relation 
to behavioural and CSE issues) 
then there may be significant 
pressures on the children’s 
social care placement budget, 
which funds the care of 
vulnerable children. 
 

20 
 
  
 

The numbers of children in high cost placements has remained 
fairly stable but the unit costs of keeping children safe during Covid-
19 have increased, leading to a number of increased packages of 
support. 

 
 
 
 
 

Expected to 
increase 
 high/red 

 

C&FS 1.6 Education 
If demand for Education Health 
and Care Plans continues to 
rise, and corrective action is not 
taken, there is a risk that the 
high needs deficit will continue 
to increase. 
 

20 
 

 
 

Programme Dossier is compiled which directly links all activity to 
programme objectives. 
 
Higher Needs Block programme has a well-developed mechanism 
to track benefits. New workstreams have been developed to 
encompass all required activity. 

 
 
 
 

Expected to 
remain  
high/red 

 

CR 1.7 If the Council is not compliant 
with the HRMC IR35 
regulations regarding the 
employment of self-employed 
personnel, then there is a risk of 
large financial penalties 

20 
 

A report is being drafted for Chief Officers in order that appropriate 
Departmental Management Team level action can be taken for 
cases where there is still a risk.  

Expected to 
remain 

 red/high 
 
 
 
 

20



Dept./ 
Function 

CRR 
Risk 
No 

Risk Description *Current 
Risk  

Score 

(incl. 
changes) 

Impact of Covid-19 on Risk  
 

May 2020 

 

** Direction of 
Travel 

(Residual Risk 

Score over the 
next 12 months) 

C&FS 1.9 If the immigration status of 
unaccompanied asylum-
seeking children (UASC) who 
arrive in the County is not 
resolved, then the Council will 
have to meet additional long-
term funding in relation to its 
housing and care duties.   

16 
 

In April there were 2 new arrivals. Arrivals have decreased with no 
new arrivals in the last 3 weeks.  
  
Impact of COVD19 on the budget is therefore low. 
 

 

 
 

Expected to 
remain 

 red/high 

CE 1.10 The Council is unable to meet 
the financial investment 
required to deliver infrastructure 
in support of housing 
development committed in 
districts Local Plans and that 
where this contribution can be 
recouped through s106 
agreements secured by District 
Councils, the funding doesn’t 
meet the full cost and is 
secured long after the 
commitment is made. 

25 
 

 

When land values and the appetite of developers to progress major 
sites is known, possibly at the end of the year, a reassessment can 
be undertaken at that stage.     

 
Expected to 

remain 
high/red 

2. Health & Social Care Integration 
 

 All 2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Impact on County Council 
services and MTFS of the 
Better Care Together (medium 
term) transformation plan in 
Leicester, Leicestershire and 
Rutland (LLR), could lead to 
inability to deliver improved 
outcomes and financial 
sustainability. 

 

 

 

 

16 
 
 
 
  

The additional financial pressures on the system and priorities that 
emerge from the recovery plans could impact some of the work and 
will need to be monitored. 
 
 

 

 
 

Expected to 
remain  
high/red 

21



 

 

 

 

 

 

Dept./ 
Function 

CRR 
Risk 
No 

Risk Description *Current 
Risk  

Score 

(incl. 
changes) 

Impact of Covid-19 on Risk  
 

May 2020 

 

** Direction of 
Travel 

(Residual Risk 

Score over the 
next 12 months) 

All 2.3 Challenges caused by the 
Welfare Reform Act 2012 and 
the Welfare Reform and Work 
Act 2016.   

16 Central government has made several changes to social security 
benefits to assist people during the COVID – 19 Emergency Period: 

 Temporarily increased the Standard Allowance in Universal 
Credit and Working Tax Credit. 

 Additional funding for district council to reduce the Council Tax 
liability for people who already receive some Council Tax 
Reduction/Support. 

 Payment of Statutory Sick pay and Contribution based 
Employment and Support Allowance from the first day of 
sickness. 

 Payment of Carer’s Allowance to continue if either the carer or 
the cared for is temporarily isolated dur to COVID-19. 

 Suspension of Capability for Work Assessments for Universal 
Credit and Employment and Support Allowance for 3 months. 

 Suspension reassessments for disability benefits for 3 months. 

 The Local Housing Allowance rates for Universal Credit and 
Housing benefit have been increased from 6 April 2020 to be 
equal to the 30th percentile rent of the Broad Market Area. 
 

The government is considering its response to a Court of Appeal 
ruling on 12 May 2020 that failure to provide transitional protection 
for claimants who transferred to universal credit following incorrect 
legacy benefit decision was unlawful. 
 
The managed migration of existing claimants to Universal Credit 
won't start until November 2020 at the earliest. The government 
currently expects to complete migration by September 2024. 
 

 
 

Expected to 
remain  
high/red 

 

22



Dept./ 
Function 

CRR 
Risk 
No 

Risk Description *Current 
Risk  

Score 

(incl. 
changes) 

Impact of Covid-19 on Risk  
 

May 2020 

 
 

** Direction of 
Travel 

(Residual Risk Score 

over the next 12 
months) 

3. ICT, Information Security 
 

CR 3.6 If the ERP system cannot 
accommodate all of the 
Council’s requirements, then it 
may delay implementation and 
extra resources will be required 
to develop work arounds  
 

20 
 

The implementation of a new Finance, HR and Payroll system 
(Fit for the Future) planned to go-live in April (Finance) and June 
2020 (HR) has had to be postponed. Significant additional cost 
will be incurred, as a result of extending the project team and the 
prolonged period of time that two systems are required for. The 
aim is to go live at the earliest practical opportunity to reduce the 
additional costs, whilst work is undertaken to de-risk the go-live. 

 
 
 
 

Expected to 
 remain  
high/red 

CR 3.7 If the Council does not manage 
its exposure to cyber risk, then 
decisions and controls cannot 
be taken to mitigate the threat 
of a successful cyber-attack. 
 

16 
 

The IT infrastructure has been tested for new and expected 
circumstances and is performing well. However, there is 
heightened cyber security threat, identified by the National Cyber 
Security Centre with the Coronavirus topic being used as bait on  
electronic communications. The Council already has in place a 
cogent cyber security strategy however, it will continue to evolve 
its response as circumstance and intelligence dictates, with 
additional focus on the following priorities: 

 Raise awareness amongst staff regarding increased level of 
cyber threats at this time; 

 Ensure that any efforts to find alternative ways of working do 
not circumvent existing security policies and practices; 

 Review of current procedures to identify, respond and recover 
from cyber incidents 

 
 
 
 
 

Expected to 
 remain  
high/red 23



 

Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description *Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 
changes) 

 

Impact of Covid-19 on Risk  
 

May 2020 
 

** Direction of 

Travel 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 months) 

 

 

 

 

4. Commissioning & Procurement 
 

  No risks under this heading    

5. Safeguarding 
 

C&FS 
 

5.1 
 

Historical:  
If as a result of a concerted 
effort to explore abuse by the 
Independent Inquiry into Child 
Sexual Abuse (IICSA) and 
Police Operations, then 
evidence of previously unknown 
serious historical issues of child 
sexual exploitation (CSE) or 
abuse is identified. 
 

25 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

No change to the previously reported position of October 2019.  
 
 
 

Expected to 
remain  
high/red 

 
 

6. Brexit 
 

All 6.1 Uncertainty and significant 
knock on consequences on 
public services (including 
potential legal, regulatory, 
economic and social 
implications), and the local 
economy as a result of the 
United Kingdom leaving the 
European Union. 

16  
 
 
 

Brexit has been relegated in importance by necessity in the UK, 
as Government has been diverted to dealing with the public 
health crisis.  
 
The UK government has insisted the Brexit transition period will 
not be extended beyond December 31, 2020, but there has not, 
as yet, been a reconsideration of the Brexit timetable in the wake 
of the pandemic.  
 
Trade negotiations with the EU have resumed. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Expected to 

remain  
high/red 

24



Dept./ 
Function 

CRR 
Risk 
No 

Risk Description *Current 
Risk  

Score 

(incl. 
changes) 

 
Impact of Covid-19 on Risk  

 

May 2020 
 

** Direction of 
Travel 

(Residual Risk 

Score over the 
next 12 
months) 

7. People 
 

CR 
(ALL) 

7.1 If sickness absence is not 
effectively managed then staff 
costs, service delivery and staff 
wellbeing will be impacted. 
 

 

16 
 

Initial indications are that throughout April and May, sickness 
absence levels are reducing, even when taking into account 
COVID-19 related absence.  

The Council is prioritising wellbeing, ensuring that the offer is 
relevant for the current context. There are regular staff bulletins 
and a range of support for managers is available. E.g. managing 
remotely. 

 

 
 

 
 

Expected  
to remain 
high/red 

 
 

All 7.2 Recruitment and retention -  
If departments are unable to 
recruit and retain skilled staff 
promptly then some services 
will be over -reliant on the use 
of agency staff resulting in 
budget overspends and poor 
service delivery. 
 

      15 
 

Corporate 
 
Recruitment activity has declined during the first weeks of 
COVID-19. However, People Services are now working with 
managers on remote recruitment and preparing a comms 
campaign for hard to fill posts. Weekly meetings have been 
taking place with Reed and there has been a decline in new 
engagements. The redeployment hub has been working on filling 
short term demand for temporary posts and consideration is 
being given to how work on redeployment can be developed to 
maximise the Council’s workforce prior to going out to 
recruitment or to seek agency workers. 
 
A&C 
 
Overall 
 
Increased pressure on LCC staffing due to 
shielding/sickness/caring absence and service delivery due to 
changing and evolving demands for social care, particularly in 
reablement and hospital discharge. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Expected  
to remain 
high/red 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

25



Dept./ 
Functio
n 

CRR 
Risk 
No 

Risk Description *Current 
Risk  

Score 

(incl. 
changes) 

Impact of Covid-19 on Risk  
 

May 2020 

 

** Direction of 
Travel 

(Residual Risk 

Score over the 
next 12 
months) 

    Monitoring/tracking 
 
Being tracked using data from workforce cell on staff 
availability/absence and capacity and number of tests on staff in 
LCC delivered services.  Data updated at least weekly and, in 
some cases, daily and available on live dashboard 
Risk is RAG rated with most measures green, except for 
reablement level of service (red) and staff absence (amber) 
based on data as of 20th May 2020. 
 
Mitigations 
 

 Staff recruitment including approach to former LCC social 
work staff to return 

 Use of appropriately skilled volunteers to support LCC with 
lower level social care tasks 

 Suspension of Community Life Choices (day services) for 
working age adults with learning disabilities 

 

 
 
 

Expected to 
increase 
 high/red 

 

A&C 7.3 If the department does not have 
a sustainable external 
workforce to work with it may be 
unable to meet its statutory 
responsibilities. 

     15 Overall 
 
Increased pressure on provider staffing due to 
shielding/sickness/caring absence and service delivery due to 
changing and evolving demands for services and increased 
costs including due to new hospital discharge 
requirements/expectations, protection of vulnerable services 
users, protection of staff, managing actual and suspected Covid-
19 positive) service users. 
 
Monitoring/tracking 
 
Being tracked using data from workforce cell and surveys 
of/returns from providers including staff absence, care home bed 
availability (including Covid beds), Home Care awaiting care lists 
and capacity.   Data updated at least weekly and, in some cases, 
daily and available on live dashboard. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Expected to 
increase 
 high/red 

 
 

26



 
Dept./ 
Functio

n 

CRR 
Risk 

No 

Risk Description *Current 
Risk  

Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Impact of Covid-19 on Risk  
 

May 2020 
 

**Direction of 
Travel 

(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

    Tracking measures risk, available on a live dashboard, risk RAG 
rated with most measures green except for care placements in 
previous week (red) and home care staff absence/ unavailability 
(amber) based on data as of 20th May 2020. 
 
Mitigations 
 

 Established 7 days per week discharge hub with extended 
working hours and asked providers to ensure decision-maker 
was available during these periods to make placements. 

 Enhanced provider communications including dedicated 
email and phone enquiry line, weekly conference calls and 
regular provider bulletins. 

 Established Council “Inspired to Care” recruitment agency 
available for free to ASC providers – with significant interest 
(over 1400 expressions of interest/applications; over 100 
posts being recruited to) and several placements already 
made. 

 Offer of volunteer support to providers for low level social 
care tasks 

 Additional funding for providers to cover additional Covid-19 
costs e.g. shielding/sick staff, agency staff, PPE 

 

 

8. Business Continuity 
 

CE 8.1 If suppliers of critical 
services do not have robust 
business continuity plans in 
place, the Council may not be 
able to deliver services. 

15 The Council is involved through its Local Resilience Forum, LLR 
Prepared, Resilience Planning Group to the 'respond, recovery 
and then new normal' phases following major crises and 
emergencies. 
The list of critical services included in Business Continuity plans 
across the Council has been updated to take account of the 
current situation. 
Consideration is being given to simple, pragmatic ways to 
facilitate redeployment from non-critical roles into critical service 
areas. 

 
 

 
Expected to 

remain  
high/red 

27



 

Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description *Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Impact of Covid-19 on Risk  

 
May 2020 

 

** Direction of 

Travel 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

9. Environment 
 

E&T 9.1 If the ash dieback disease causes 
shedding branches or falling 
trees, then there is a possible risk 
to life and disruption to the 
transport network. 

15 Ash dieback inspections for 2020 will be restricted due to 
COVID19.  Driven inspections are not possible at the present 
time, therefore walked surveys will be carried out.  This will 
increase the amount of time required to conduct surveys 
meaning that routes are likely to only be surveyed once this year.  
 

 

 
Expected to 

remain red/high 
 

E&T 9.2 If there was a major incident 
which results in unplanned site 
closure (e.g. fire) then the Council 
may be unable to hold or dispose 
of waste.  

15 
 

Kerbside collected tonnages of residual waste and dry 
recyclables are around 10 to 15% higher than expected since the 
beginning of April. However, tonnages of green waste and bulky 
waste are lower than expected over the same period.  
 
The Council is keeping some sites closed which provides more 
flexibility operationally to manage the increased volumes.    
 
Also, commercial waste tonnages are down so there is more 
availability in facilities nationally in terms of sourcing alternative  
residual waste capacity/treatment provision. 
 

 

 
 

Expected to 
remain red/high 

 

E&T 9.3 If the Council is not able to deliver 
on the commitments it has made 
in its climate emergency 
declaration due to the complexity 
and difficulty of some of the 
decisions and actions that will 
need to be made, then this will 
impact on the Council’s ability to 
fulfil its leadership role and have 
financial and reputational 
consequences. 

15 
 

An updated Environment Strategy and Action Plan was 
presented to Cabinet (28 April 2020) and will be considered by 
the Council on 8 July. The Council now has an up to date 
statement of its environmental priorities and objectives which is 
aligned with its climate emergency declaration and its framework 
for action to achieve the commitments on the Council’s own 
carbon emissions and against which its performance can be 
objectively assessed 
 

 
 

 
 

Expected to 
remain red/high 

 

E&T 9.4  If climate change impacts happen 
more frequently or at a greater 
intensity than anticipated, then 
there is the risk that County 
Council services will be negatively 
affected 

20 
 

No change to previous  
 
 
 

Expected to 
remain high/red 
 

28



 

Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description *Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Impact of Covid-19 on Risk  

 
May 2020 

 

** Direction of 

Travel 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

Department 
    A&C =  Adults & Communities E&T = Environment and Transport  

CE =  Chief Executives PH = Public Health   

CR =  Corporate Resources All = Consolidated risk                                             

C&FS=  Children and Family Services 
 

 

 

**The arrows explain the direction of travel for the risk, i.e. where it is expected to be within the next twelve months after further mitigating 

actions, so that: 

o A horizontal arrow shows that not much movement is expected in the risk; 

o A downward pointing arrow shows that there is an expectation that the risk will be mitigated towards ‘medium’ and would likely be 

removed from the register; 

o An upwards pointing arrow would be less likely, but is possible, since it would show that the already high scoring risk is likely to be 

greater. 

 

 

10. Partnerships 
 

C&FS 10.1 If the Local Authority and its 
partners do not succeed in 
developing an inclusive culture 
across all schools, education 
providers and partner agencies 
(including the Parent Carer 
Forum), then it will be difficult to 
secure parental confidence in 
the ability of the ‘whole system’ 
to meet the needs of the large 
majority of children with SEND 
in a mainstream school context. 

16 
 

A SEN Support Handbook and guidance on Best Endeavours 
and Reasonable Adjustments is being produced to provide 
information on best practice.  This will be incorporated into the 
Local Offer and training will be rolled out.  Initial British 
Educational Research Association (BERA) launch date 
scheduled for March is being revised due to the Coronavirus 
outbreak. 

 

 
 
 
 

Expected to 
remain high/red 
 

29



 

RISKS REMOVED SINCE MAY 2019 

 

Dept. CRR 

Risk 

No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk 

Score 

Reason  Date of 

Removal 

C&FS  3.7 If the quality of data in 
Children and Families 
(C&FS) Information 
Management System is too 
low to satisfy statutory 
requirements (e.g. data 
returns) this will impact upon 
service delivery 

16  
 
 
 

The current risk score has been downgraded from 16 to 12. - 
tableau reports have been embedded; and are now accessible to 
Team Managers and Business Support. This is led by two Heads of 
Service who jointly oversee quality meetings. 
 
This risk has been removed from the Corporate Risk Register, but it 
will continue to be monitored through the Children & Family 
Services Departmental Risk Register. 
 

26 July 2019 

CR 1.4 If claims relating to 
uninsured risks materialise 
or continue to increase then 
LCC will need to find 
increased payments from 
reserves, impacting on funds 
available to support services 

16 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The level of reserves is sufficient to reduce the current risk score 
from 16 to 12 and the risk will be managed and monitored at 
Departmental level via the Risk Register - Corporate Resources.  

 
 

1 November 
2019 

All 3.5 If the Council fails to 
maintain robust records 
management processes to 
effectively manage 
information under its 
custodianship, personal data 
may not be processed in 
compliance with the Data 
Protection Act 1998 resulting 
in regulatory action and/or 
reputational damage. 

15 
 

Resources to address highest assessed physical record risks now 
being put in place (priorities agreed with Chief Officers in summer 
2019).  Risk levels regularly monitored by central team. Email 
storage / destruction approach agreed at Information Governance 
Board (September 2019). 
 
The current risk score has been reduced from 15 to 12 and the risk 
will be managed and monitored at Departmental level via the Risk 
Register -Corporate Resources.  

 
1 November 

2019 

30



 

Dept. CRR 

Risk 

No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk 

Score 

Reason  Date of 

Removal 

CR 
 

4.1 
 

If the Authority does not 
obtain the required value 
and level of performance 
from its providers and 
suppliers, then the cost of 
services will increase, and 
service delivery will be 
impacted. 
 

15 
 

A review of the risk has resulted in the current risk score reduced 
from 15 to 12 and the risk will be managed and monitored at 
Departmental level (Corporate Resources).   
 

1 November 
2019 

 

 A&C 7.3 If the department does not 
have a sustainable external 
workforce to work with it may 
be unable to meet its 
statutory responsibilities. 

16 
 

The Department has reviewed the risk and reduced the current risk 
score from 16 to 12. Planning and timescales for action further 
progressed with domiciliary care to be re-commissioned in 2021 
and residential care fee increase coming into effect from 2019/20. 
The risk will continue to be monitored as part of the A&C 
Departmental Risk Register. 
 

Removed 
1 November 

2019 
 

Re-instated 
31 January 

2020 
 

CR 
 

3.2 
 

If the Council has a GDPR 
breach, then there could be 
a risk of significant liability 
claims 

15 Significant work has taken place to mitigate the risks around GDPR. 
Compliance continues to be monitored and strengthened 
governance arrangements are now fully implemented to monitor 
and identify any emerging risks. 
The Current Risk Score has been reduced from 15 to 12 and the 
risk will continue to be monitored through the Corporate Resources 
Departmental Register. 
 

31 January 
2020 

E&T  4.2 If Arriva is successful in its 
concessionary travel appeal, 
then reimbursement costs 
for the total scheme could 
increase significantly. 

15 Discussions with Arriva are ongoing.  
 
The risk will continue to be monitored as part of the E&T 
Departmental Risk Register. 

31 January 
2020 

 

31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 12 JUNE 2020 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

EXTERNAL AUDIT RISK ASSESSMENT 2019/20 AND AUDIT PLAN 
2019/20 UPDATE 

 
 
Purpose 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to present the County Council’s response to the External 

Auditor’s Risk Assessment for 2019/20 and an update made by Grant Thornton to 
their  External Audit Plan for consideration and comment.  
 

External Audit Risk Assessment 
 
2. The Council’s External Auditors, Grant Thornton UK LLP, have prepared a report 

‘Informing the audit risk assessment for Leicestershire County Council and Pension 
Fund 2019/20’ a copy of which is attached as Appendix A to this report. 
  

3. The assessment is undertaken by Grant Thornton as part of its risk assessment 
procedures.  It is used to gain an understanding of the Council’s processes and 
managing officers’ views on various auditing standards.  The report sets out 
questions raised by Grant Thornton on areas such as fraud, laws and regulations, 
going concerns, accounting estimates and related parties, all of which have an 
impact on the Council’s operations.  

 
4. Management (Finance, Internal Audit and Legal Services) have completed a self-

assessment of the questions and provided responses to the External Auditor. These 
are included within the Auditor’s report and reflect updates provided to this 
Committee. 

 
5. As part of its assessment of the above risk areas, the External Auditor is required to 

make inquiries of the Corporate Governance Committee under auditing standards. 
Presentation of the report to this Committee also contributes towards the effective 
two-way communication between auditors and the Council’s Corporate Governance 
Committee, as 'those charged with governance'.  

 
6. Representatives from Grant Thornton will attend the meeting to present the report 

and answer any questions. 
 

External Audit Plan 2019/20 Update 
 

7. Following the outbreak of the Covid-19 virus pandemic the External Auditor has 
provided an update to the Audit Plan that was considered by the Committee at its 

 
33 Agenda Item 7



  

meeting on 31 January 2020.  The update is attached as Appendix B.  This includes 
a new risk on Covid-19 (financial statements and value for money) – remote working 
arrangements, volatility of financial and property markets, financial uncertainty, and 
additional disclosures required within the financial statements.  

 
Production of Draft Accounts and Audit Timetable 2019/20 - Update 
 
8. The Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus)(Amendment) Regulations 2020 were issued in 

April 2020 which amended the deadlines for the completion and external audit of the 
financial statements to allow additional time.  The revised dates require the draft 
accounts to be published by 31 August 2020 and the External Audit to be completed 
by 30 November 2020.  This change applies to the 2019/20 financial year only.  The 
Council is currently on track to meet the updated deadlines. 

 
Recommendation 
 
9. The Committee is asked to note the attached reports and to provide any comments. 

  
Equal Opportunities 
 
10. None. 
 
Circulation Under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 
 
11. None.  
 
Background Papers 
 
Corporate Governance Committee, 31 January 2020 - External Audit Plan 2019/20 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=434&MId=6053&Ver=4 

 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources,  
Corporate Resources Department, 
0116 305 6199    E-mail Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director (Strategic Finance and Property),  
Corporate Resources Department,  
0116 305 7668   E-mail Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
Appendices 
 

 Appendix A – Informing the audit risk assessment for Leicestershire County Council 
and Pension Fund 2019/20 

 Appendix B – External Audit Plan (2019/20) Update 
 

34

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=434&MId=6053&Ver=4
mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk
Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk


Informing the audit risk assessment 
for Leicestershire County Council 
and Pension Fund 2019/20

John Gregory
Director
T 0121 232 5333
E John.Gregory@uk.gt.com

35



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which 

we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process.  It is not a comprehensive 

record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot 

be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect your business or any 

weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and 

should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 

responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the 

basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any 

other purpose.

2

36



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Table of Contents

Section Page

Purpose 4

General Enquiries of Management 6

Fraud 7

Fraud Risk Assessment 8

Laws and Regulations 13

Impact of Laws and Regulations 14

Going Concern 16

Going Concern Considerations 17

Related Parties 21

Accounting Estimates 23

Appendix A Accounting Estimates 25 

3

37



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between the Council and Pension Fund’s external auditors 

and the Council’s Corporate Governance Committee, as 'those charged with governance'. The report covers some important areas of the auditor risk 

assessment where we are required to make inquiries of the Corporate Governance Committee under auditing standards.   

Background

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISA(UK&I)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the Corporate 

Governance Committee. ISA(UK&I) emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the auditor and the Corporate Governance 

Committee and also specify matters that should be communicated.

This two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Corporate Governance Committee in understanding matters relating to the audit and 

developing a constructive working relationship. It also enables the auditor to obtain information relevant to the audit from the Corporate Governance 

Committee and supports the Corporate Governance Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting process. 

Communication

As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the Corporate Governance 

Committee's oversight of the following areas:

• General Enquiries of Management

• Fraud,

• Laws and Regulations,

• Going Concern,

• Related Parties, and

• Accounting Estimates.

4

38



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Purpose

This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and the response we have received from the Council and Pension Fund’s 

management. The Corporate Governance Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with its understanding and whether 

there are any further comments it wishes to make. 

5

39



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response

1. What do you regard as the key events or issues that 

will have a significant impact on the financial 

statements for 2019/20?

This would have been the implementation of a new ERP (financial management system), Oracle 

Fusion, wef 1 April 2020, and IFRS16, accounting for Leases.  Since then both have been postponed 

due to Covid19.  

The impact of Covid19 will have a significant impact on the 2019/20 statements; reductions and 

uncertainties around the valuation of assets and investments, and post balance sheet events on the 

ongoing costs of the Council’s support and the current estimated gap in funding of £28m in 2020/21.

2. Have you considered the appropriateness of the 

accounting policies adopted by the Authority?

Have there been any events or transactions that may 

cause you to change or adopt new accounting 

policies?

These have been reviewed and align with the Code of Practice. No changes are needed for 2019/20. 

However, additional disclosures will be made in the Narrative Statement and the Notes to the Accounts to 

explain valuation uncertainties as at the balance sheet date.

3. Is there any use of financial instruments, including 

derivatives? 
The Council and Pension Fund use financial instruments, Investments, borrowing, cash, debtors etc –

there are no changes in use compared with previous years.  

The Council holds no derivatives. 

The Pension Fund has derivatives, the largest being forward foreign exchange contracts - held to benefit 

from expected changes in the value of currencies relative to each other – same as previous years. 

4. Are you aware of any significant transaction outside 

the normal course of business?
No

40



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response

5. Are you aware of any changes in circumstances 

that would lead to impairment of non-current assets? 
No

6. Are you aware of any guarantee contracts? No

7. Are you aware of the existence of loss 

contingencies and/or un-asserted claims that may 

affect the financial statements?

No

8. Other than in house solicitors, can you provide 

details of those solicitors utilised by the Authority 

during the year. Please indicate where they are 

working on open litigation or contingencies from prior 

years?

Where necessary, the Council uses external solicitors to deal with litigation, undertake major 

transactional work or to provide specialist advice. The Council tends to use major regional law firms to 

deal with any externalised contentious or non-contentious work. Most frequently, the Council instructs 

firms of solicitors on the East Midlands Law Share panel. Those firms include Weightmans LLP & 

Browne Jacobson LLP.  In addition, the Council engaged Bevan Britten LLP to provide advice on 

development of land at Lutterworth, and Squire Patton Boggs, for pension fund pooling advice (with 

other pool members).

Certain civil litigation claims (such as claims in tort for alleged historical abuse) can be brought forward 

long after the alleged expiry of the relevant limitation period and certain of those claims are still 

continuing. 

9. Have any of the Authority’s service providers 

reported any items of fraud, non-compliance with laws 

and regulations or uncorrected misstatements which 

would affect the financial statements?

No

10. Can you provide details of other advisors 

consulted during the year and the issue on which they 

were consulted?

The Council uses external advisors from time to time to advise on various aspects of its operations. 

These are all part of normal business operations.  However these are not that significant to report. 

41



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Fraud
Issue

Matters in relation to fraud

ISA(UK&I)240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements.

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Corporate Governance Committee and management. 

Management, with the oversight of the Corporate Governance Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and 

deterrence and encourage a culture of honest and ethical behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Corporate Governance Committee should 

consider the potential for override of controls and inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

As the Council and Pension Fund’s external auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements 

are free from material misstatement due to fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, 

considering the potential for management override of controls.

As part of our audit risk assessment procedures we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the arrangements 

management has put in place with regard to fraud risks including: 

• assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud,

• process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks, 

• communication with the Corporate Governance Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, and

• communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour. 

8

We need to understand how the Corporate Governance Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make inquiries 

of both management and the Corporate Governance Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. These

areas have been set out in the fraud risk assessment questions below together with responses from the Council and Pension Fund's

management. 

42



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

1. Have Leicestershire County Council/ 

Pension Fund assessed the risk of material 

misstatement in the financial statements due to 

fraud? (including nature, extent and frequency 

of such assessments)

How has the process of identifying and 

responding to the risk of fraud been 

undertaken and what are the results of this 

process? 

How do the Authority’s risk management 

processes link to financial reporting?

Yes. Continually assessed via a number of indicators: Effective monthly budget monitoring and challenge 

through empowering budget managers to be accountable for their cost centres. Review by Finance business 

partners and corporate finance.

Effective finance and internal audit function.

Regular bank and control account reconciliations overseen by Corporate Finance.

Balance scorecard of key controls reported to Chief management and departmental management teams.

The Internal Audit Service undertakes a biennial fraud risk assessment (FRA). The lead officer for this is the 

Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Service (HolAS) and the FRA is tabled at the Corporate Governance 

Committee (usually at January committee). The fraud risk assessment process seeks to identify, and score 

relative to one another, the fraud risks facing the County Council. Scores are derived from discussions with key 

service leads, departmental risk champions and from both local and national fraud intelligence. Subsequently, 

the results of the fraud risk assessment are used to inform the annual Internal Audit planning process, i.e. in 

order that audit resources are targeted to those areas of perceived higher risk. 

The Internal Audit Service has a qualified CIPFA Counter Fraud Technician. Part of this role included 

attendance at regional fraud group meetings involving other county councils. This in one example how fraud 

intelligence is shared, i.e. frauds affecting other councils that we need to be mindful of.

The County Council approves a Risk Management Strategy each year as part of the MTFS. The strategy sets 

out the approach to managing and reporting risks. Each department has its own risk register using a central 

template and scoring system which is agreed by DMT’s. The departmental risk registers are then compiled 

centrally and the more significant risks reported to the Corporate Governance Committee every quarter.

43



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment
Question Management response

2. What have you determined to be the 

classes of accounts, transactions and 

disclosures most at risk to fraud? 

The Council is always vigilant to the threat of fraud and Internal Audit work is planned to highlight the threat of 

potential fraud. High scoring areas arising from the FRA are used to inform the annual Internal Audit Plan. For 

2019/20 the risk of Adult Social Care fraud is prominent, e.g. direct payments misuse.

3. Are you aware of any instances of actual, 

suspected or alleged fraud, errors or other 

irregularities either within the Council / 

Pension Fund as a whole or within specific 

departments since 1 April 2019?

As a management team, how do you 

communicate risk issues (including fraud) to 

those charged with governance?                                                                                         

Within Leicestershire County Council, strategic and operational responsibility for counter fraud rests with the Head 

of Internal Audit Service (HoIAS). Therefore, the HoIAS is routinely aware of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud 

affecting the entity. A list of investigations is held by the HoIAS and such details are kept confidential so as not to 

jeopardise such investigations. This list is shared with GT upon request as appropriate. The Corporate Governance 

Committee is updated on concluded investigations via progress reports. 

The Internal Audit Service is responsible, annually, for completing both the CIPFA Fraud & Corruption tracker and 

the Council’s reporting obligations for fraud under the Local Government Transparency Code. These processes 

both summarise the fraud activity that the Council has been exposed to in the previous year.

The Corporate Governance Committee meets on a quarterly basis. Regular counter fraud updates are provided to 

the Committee by the HoIAS, acting as representative of the s.151 officer. As an example, the CGC will receive the 

biennial fraud risk assessment (FRA), setting out what the Council considers its major fraud risks to be. 

The Council’s suite of counter fraud policies and procedures are approved by the Corporate Governance Committee 

(most recently 24 October 2018). This includes the biennial refresh of the Council’s overarching Anti-Fraud & 

Corruption Strategy and the two year action plan that sits within it. The plan sets out a range of intended actions 

over a two year period designed to improve the Council’s resilience to fraud yet further.

44



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

4. Have you identified any specific fraud risks?

Do you have any concerns there are areas that are at risk 

of fraud?

Are there particular locations within the Authority where 

fraud is more likely to occur?

National fraud intelligence continues to highlight procurement fraud, cyber fraud and adult social care 

fraud as three main areas of fraud risk.  

COVID-19 brings new risks, e.g. grant fraud, employee fraud, and audit work is being targeted into these 

areas, e.g. audits of emergency grant funding (LCC Communities Fund) and of increases to employee 

pCard limits to enable emergency spending.  We are aware that COVID-19 will mean that some 

processes are done differently in the short-term and have asked managers to inform Internal Audit of any 

significant changes to established procedures in order that we can assess risks and controls at the outset. 

We do not consider there to be a particular heightened risk at certain locations, indeed the risks are 

reduced in some areas due to temporary service suspension, e.g. schools. 

5. What processes do the Authority have in place to 

identify and respond to risks of fraud?

See response to Q3

6. How would you assess the overall control 

environment for the Authority, including:

the process for reviewing the effectiveness the system 

of internal control;

internal controls, including segregation of duties; exist 

and work effectively?

If not where are the risk areas and what mitigating 

actions have been taken?

What other controls are in place to help prevent, deter 

or detect fraud?

Are there any areas where there is a potential for 

override of controls or inappropriate influence over the 

financial reporting process (for example because of 

undue pressure to achieve financial targets)? 

a) Overall internal controls work effectively and Internal Audit report on ineffective controls which are 

corrected by management.

b) n/a

c) Amongst others, segregation, and authorisation controls exist in key processes to reduce the risk of 

fraud. Reconciliations, budget monitoring and exception reporting, including review by Internal Audit, 

help to deter and identify cases of fraud.

d) Not significantly. Financial and operational targets are an important part of the management 

process. However, there are a number of officers in the process that would counter any significant 

risk. This includes strategic budget managers (who review individual cost centre budget forecasts), 

and the finance function. The finance function comprises review by the Financial Analysis 

Information Team (FAIT), the Finance Business Partner team and the Technical Accounting Team. 

Reports are collated, reconciled centrally to all codes for completeness and reviewed by the Head of 

Finance and the Assistant Director, Strategic Finance and Property. Reports are then taken regularly 

to CMT and Elected Member committees, 

45



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

7. Are there any areas where there is 

potential for misreporting? 

See response to Q6

8. How do the Council communicate and 

encourage ethical behaviours and 

business processes of its staff and 

contractors? 

How do you encourage staff to report 

their concerns about fraud?

What concerns are staff expected to 

report about fraud?

Have any significant issues been 

reported? 

In addition to the Council’s suite of counter fraud policies and procedures, there are a number of indirectly-linked 

policies such as an Employee Code of Conduct and policies for the declarations of interests and gifts and 

hospitality. The Monitoring Officer reviews entries with the HoIAS each year which may result in further 

questions/clarifications.

The Council ran a fraud awareness campaign in November 2019 to coincide with International Fraud Awareness 

week. This saw targeted communications to staff in a number of areas over the course of a week, designed to raise 

awareness of fraud risks affecting organisations such as ours. This gave the opportunity to discuss Council policy in 

a number of areas, e.g. gifts & hospitality, declaring personal interests (both aligned to bribery risk), and indeed to 

direct staff to both the Council’s policies and procedures, and the mandatory fraud awareness e-learning module.

The fraud awareness campaign was fully supported by the Corporate Management Team .

The Council has a wealth of information on fraud on both its externally-facing website and on the internal staff 

intranet.

The Council regularly promotes its whistleblowing process to staff. No significant issues have been reported.

46



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

9. From a fraud and corruption perspective, what are 

considered to be high-risk posts?

How are the risks relating to these posts identified, assessed 

and managed?

The Council has many, wide-ranging, functions and there are a number of areas where staff 

could be deemed to be in ‘higher risk’ posts.  This might include, but would not be restricted 

to, staff involved in procurements (risk of bribery and collusion), staff involved in processing 

payments (creditors, payroll and other) and staff with custody of assets, e.g. stock.

Managers are responsible for operating effective internal controls in their individual service 

areas, a prime example being a division of duties in key financial processes.  The 

effectiveness of these controls may be subject to independent review by Internal Audit as part 

of the risk-based annual Internal Audit Plan.

10. Are you aware of any related party relationships or 

transactions that could give rise to instances of fraud?

How do you mitigate the risks associated with fraud related to 

related party relationships and transactions?

Not aware of any related party relationships or transactions that could give rise to instances of 

fraud. Monitoring and controls in place mitigate the risk. 

The Council operates contract procedure rules that require more than one person to be 

involved in all contract discussions.

11. What arrangements are in place to report fraud issues and 

risks to the Corporate Governance Committee? 

How does Corporate Governance Committee exercise 

oversight over management's processes for identifying and 

responding to risks of fraud and breaches of internal control?

What has been the outcome of these arrangements so far this 

year?

a) as above to Q8 and Q11b) below.

b) Concluded fraud investigations are reported through to the Corporate Governance 

Committee (it may hamper an investigation, e.g. the taking of criminal action, to report 

fraud investigations that are ‘in progress’).  With regard to breaches of internal control all 

‘high importance’ audit recommendations are reported through to the Corporate 

Governance Committee along with the latest position regarding their implementation.  

These recommendations continue to be reported until such time we are satisfied that the 

recommendations have been adequately implemented.

47



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Councils Management response

12. Are you aware of any whistle blowing potential 

or complaints by potential whistle blowers? If so, 

what has been your response?

Historically, the Council has received a low number of whistleblowing referrals.  These are co-ordinated 

through the Director of Law & Governance.  Where a referral has a financial slant to it the DoL&G liaises 

with the Head of Internal Audit Service in line with the Council’s Fraud Response Plan.

The Council actively publicises its whistleblowing channels, e.g. through e-learning, a recent poster 

campaign to coincide with International Fraud Awareness Week and intranet articles.

13. Have any reports been made under the Bribery 

Act?

No

48



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Law and regulations

Issue

Matters in relation to laws and regulations

ISA(UK&I)250 requires us to consider the impact  of laws and regulations in an audit of the financial statements.

Management, with the oversight of the Corporate Governance Committee, is responsible for ensuring that the Council and Pension Fund’s 

operations are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations including those that determine amounts in the financial statements. 

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or 

error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to make 

inquiries of management and the Corporate Governance Committee as to whether the entity is in compliance with laws and regulations. Where we 

become aware of information of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an understanding of the non-compliance and the 

possible effect on the financial statements.

Risk assessment questions have been set out below together with responses from management.

49



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response

1. How does management gain assurance that all relevant 

laws and regulations have been complied with?

What arrangements does the Council and Pension Fund 

have in place to prevent and detect non-compliance with 

laws and regulations? 

Are you aware of any changes to the Council and Pension 

Fund’s regulatory environment that may have a significant 

impact on the Council and Pension Fund’s financial 

statements?

Internal Audit Service operates to the standards set out in the “Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards” and the Internal Audit Plan specifically considers compliance with laws and 

regulations.

The Council regularly promotes its whistleblowing process to staff.

The operation of the statutory officer roles (Head of Paid Services, Monitoring Officer and Chief 

Financial Officer) help to ensure compliance with laws and regulations. For example, the 

Monitoring Officer has the authority to report to Council if they consider that any proposal, 

decision or omission would give rise to unlawfulness or maladministration, thereby stopping the 

proposal or decision being implemented until the report has been considered. Finance and Legal 

implications are outlined in all committee reports. County Council policies, finance procedural 

rules and contract procedure rules. Specialist teams, legal, finance, risk management, 

procurement, internal audit etc.

2. How is the Corporate Governance Committee provided 

with assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have 

been complied with?

Standard reporting formats require that legal implications are outlined in all committee reports. 

The Monitoring Officer and the Chief Financial Officer or deputy attends Corporate Governance 

committee meetings to advise members of any known issues and to respond to members 

enquiries.

The Head of Internal Audit Service has a number of alternative reporting lines in the event of 

breach of law or regulation, including a right to meet privately with the Chair of the Corporate 

Governance Committee or the Committee in full, should the situation determine such an

approach necessary.

50



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response

3. Have there been any instances of non-compliance or 

suspected non-compliance with laws and regulation since 1 

April 2019 with an on-going impact on the 2019/2020 financial 

statements? 

There are no instances of non-compliance that would have a material effect on the 2019/20 

financial statements

4. Is there any actual or potential litigation or claims that would 

affect the financial statements?

Areas of litigation are reported in the Statements where their impact is considered material or 

significant to the readers of the statements and the outturn itself. There are no material 

uninsured litigations (greater than £1m.)

5. What arrangements does the Council and Pension Fund  

have in place to identify, evaluate and account for litigation or 

claims? 

The Council and Pension Fund has an insurance team and a Legal team that manages

litigation and claims on behalf of the Council and the Pension Fund. All claims are passed to

these teams. During the year the finance team will liaise with the insurance and legal teams

to evaluate any material claims and make the appropriate accounting entries in the accounts.

6. Have there been any report from other regulatory bodies, such 

as HM Revenues and Customs which indicate non-compliance? 

None

51



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Going Concern

Issue

Matters in relation to going concern

ISA(UK&I)570 covers auditor responsibilities in the audit of financial statements relating to management's use of the going concern assumption in 

the financial statements.

The going concern assumption is a fundamental principle in the preparation of financial statements. Under this assumption entities are viewed as 

continuing in business for the foreseeable future. Assets and liabilities are recorded on the basis that the entity will be able to realise its assets and 

discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Going concern considerations have been set out below and management has provided its response.

52



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Going concern considerations

Question Management response

1. Has the management team carried out an 

assessment of the going concern basis for 

preparing the financial statements for the Council 

and Pension Fund? What was the outcome of that 

assessment? 

Yes, the Council has concluded that it is a going concern, as a statutory and tax raising body.

2. Are the financial assumptions in that report (e.g., 

future levels of income and expenditure) consistent 

with the Authority’s Business Plan and the financial 

information provided to the Council throughout the 

year?

Yes.

Established regular MTFS and earmarked funds reporting process to senior management and

members, combined with departmental and corporate performance reporting against the

Council’s corporate plans and targets.

The assessment is continually being reviewed in light of the impact of Covid19. However, at this stage, 

the conclusion is unchanged from that above.

53



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Going concern considerations

Question Management response

3. Are the implications of statutory or policy changes 

appropriately reflected in the Business Plan, financial 

forecasts and report on going concern?

Yes. The via the Medium-Term Financial Strategy Plan, which specifically includes consideration 

of both national (e.g. statutory) and local (e.g. policy) issues in terms of their potential financial 

impact.

4. Have there been any significant issues raised with the 

Corporate Governance Committee during the year which 

could cast doubts on the assumptions made? (Examples 

include adverse comments raised by internal and external 

audit regarding financial performance or significant 

weaknesses in systems of financial control).

No significant issues have been raised.

5. Does a review of available financial information identify 

any adverse financial indicators including negative cash flow 

or poor or deteriorating performance against the better 

payment practice code?

If so, what action is being taken to improve financial 

performance?

No material adverse financial indicators have been identified, other than that relating to Covid19. 

It is expected that these can be managed.

54



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Going concern considerations

Question Management response

6. Does the Council and Pension Fund have sufficient staff in 

post, with the appropriate skills and experience, particularly at 

senior manager level, to ensure the delivery of the Council’s 

objectives?

If not, what action is being taken to obtain those skills?

Yes.

7. Does the Council and Pension Fund have procedures in 

place to assess their ability to continue as a going concern? 

Yes, via the annual MTFS, most recent was approved by the County Council in February 

2020. This covers the next four year period to 2024.

8. Is management aware of the existence of events or 

conditions that may cast doubt on the Council and Pension 

Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern? 

The annual MTFS shows managements’ approach to the impact of significant and ongoing 

central government reductions in funding and pressures on Special Education Needs and 

Disabilities (SEND). The MTFS shows a balanced budget for 20/21 and 21/22 with a shortfall 

of £19m in 22/23 rising to £39m in 23/24. 

However, the MTFS includes plans to achieve the additional savings and income required 

through new savings under development. The MTFS also includes a contingency of £8m p.a. 

for risks and a contingency for growth of £18m. In addition the Council has sufficient reserves 

(c.£100m) to mitigate this risk in the medium term. 

Since the MTFS was approved in February 2020, the latest estimate for the impact of 

Covid19 is a net cost of around £28m in 2020/21. The impact will also continue into later 

years and add to the shortfall in the MTFS. To manage this position the Council will use part 

of the MTFS risk contingency, part of its General Fund and reprioritise the four year capital 

programme (this includes £72m revenue funding of capital) and continue to seek further 

efficiencies and savings opportunities.

The Council also has statutory tax raising powers if required.

The 2019 pension fund tri-annual valuation reported a significant improved position. The 

valuation, undertaken by the Actuary, calculated an 89% overall funding level, which is a 

significant funding improvement (the 2016 valuation calculated a 76% funding level). The 

improvement has allowed the maximum deficit recovery period for Fund employers, including 

55



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Going concern considerations

Question Management response

9. Are arrangements in place to report the going 

concern assessment to the Corporate Governance 

Committee ? 

How has the Corporate Governance Committee 

satisfied itself that it is appropriate to adopt the 

going concern basis in preparing financial 

statements? 

Undertaken as part of the 4 Year MTFS to the County Council and in the Statement of Accounts 

approved by the Corporate Governance Committee

56



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Related Parties

Issue

Matters in relation to Related Parties

The Council and Pension Fund are required to comply with IAS 24 and disclose transactions with entities/individuals that would be classed as 

related parties.  These may include:

■ entities that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by the Council (i.e. subsidiaries);

■ associates;

■ joint ventures;

■ an entity that has an interest in the Council that gives it significant influence over the Council;

■ key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel, and

■ post-employment benefit plans (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the authority, or of any entity that is a related party of the 

authority.

A disclosure is required if a transaction (or series of transactions) is material on either side, i.e. if a transaction is immaterial from the Council 

perspective but material from a related party viewpoint then the Council must disclose it.

ISA (UK&I) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls that 

you have established to identify such transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures you make in 

the financial statements are complete and accurate. 

23

57



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Relating Parties

Question Councils Management response

1. What controls does the Council have in place to 

identify, account for and disclose related party 

transactions and relationships?

A number of arrangements are in place for identifying the nature of a related party and reported value 

including:

• Maintenance of a Register of interests for Members and officers, requiring disclosure of related party 

transactions.

• Annual return from senior managers/officers and members requiring confirmation that read and 

understood the declaration requirements and stating details of any known related party interests.

• Review of in-year income and expenditure transactions with known identified related parties from prior 

year or known history.

• Review of related information with subsidiaries, companies and joint ventures, e.g. accounts.

• Review of the accounts payable and receivable systems and identification of amounts paid in relation 

to related parties identified.

• Review of year end debtor and creditor positions in relation to the related parties identified.

• Review of minutes of decision making meetings to identify any member declarations and therefore 

related parties.

58



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Relating Parties

Question Management response

2. The identity of the entity’s related parties, 

including changes from the prior period

People who are regarded as related parties are:

• Elected members - Responsible for the direct control of the policies of the authority

• Chief Executive, The Executive Directors and other Senior Officers, as key management

personnel that have the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the

activities of the authority.

• Members of the families and households of members and officers with the ability to influence

members or officers

Entities that are regarded as related parties are:

• Central government - Has effective control over local authorities, as authorities are incapable

of acting without statutory authority. Able to limit possibility of independent action by specifying

transactions and the terms on which they are concluded.

• Other public bodies subject to common control by central government

• Partnerships, companies, trusts or any entities in which members/officers or a member of their

close family or the same household has a controlling interest,

• Pension Fund

The annual Statements present a detailed analysis of transactions between the authority and its

related parties.

59



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Relating Parties

Question Councils Management response

3. The nature of the relationships between the entity 

and these related parties

See response to Q2

4. Whether the entity entered into any transactions 

with these related parties during the period and, if 

so, the types and purpose of the transactions

Information is currently being collated as part of the year end work and will be included in the
Statement of Accounts.

60



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Accounting estimates

Issue

Matters in relation to Related Accounting estimates

The Council and Pension Fund apply appropriate estimates in the preparation of their financial statements. ISA (UK&I) 540 sets out requirements 

for auditing accounting estimates. The objective is to gain evidence that the accounting estimates are reasonable and the related disclosures are 

adequate.

Under this standard we have to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement for accounting estimates by understanding how the Council 

and Pension Fund identifies the transactions, events and conditions that may give rise to the need for an accounting estimate.

Accounting estimates are used when it is not possible to measure precisely a figure in the accounts. We need to be aware of all estimates that 

both the Council and Pension Fund are using as part of its accounts preparation; these are detailed in appendix 1 to this report. The audit 

procedures we conduct on the accounting estimate will demonstrate that:

•  the estimate is reasonable; and

•  estimates have been calculated consistently with other accounting estimates within the financial statements.

We would ask the Corporate Governance Committee to satisfy itself that the arrangements for accounting estimates are adequate. 

27

61



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates

Question Management response

1. Are management aware of transactions, 

events, conditions (or changes in these) that 

may give rise to recognition or disclosure of 

significant accounting estimates that require 

significant judgement (other than those in 

Appendix A)?

No.

2. Are the management arrangements for the 

accounting estimates, as detailed in 

Appendix A reasonable?

Yes.

Prepared from relevant accounting standards, legislation, and guidance issued by CIPFA, primarily the Code of 

Practice. In addition the Technical Accounting Team attend annual technical updates to ensure knowledge is 

kept up to date. The team also use other professional officers where appropriate to do so, for example Valuers, 

Actuaries etc. Material new or changes are approved by the s151 officer.

62



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates

Question Management response

3. How is the Corporate Governance

Committee provided with assurance that the 

arrangements for accounting estimates are 

adequate?

The Director of Corporate Resources and finance team reporting the statements of accounts to the committee. 

All senior staff involved are qualified experienced accounting professionals. In certain specialist areas other 

professional officers are also used as appropriate, including: A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to 

provide the Authority with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied when estimating the pension 

liability. A firm of qualified valuers, overseen by the authority’s qualified valuers, are engaged by the Authority to 

carry out, for the major assets, a programme of physical valuations to ensure that their carrying values are 

subject to professional and independent assessment. Treasury Management advisors provide fair value 

estimates for financial instruments.

4. How do management identify transactions, 

events, and conditions that may give rise to 

the need for accounting estimates to be 

recognised or disclosed in the financial 

statements?

Regular review by the finance team, including the Head of Finance, the Technical Accounting Manager, and 

Finance Business Partners, in reviewing all Cabinet reports for financial impacts of decisions. This is further 

supplemented by information gathered from compilation of the MTFS and regular budget monitoring.

63



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate

Controls used to identify 

estimates

Whether 

Management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of 

uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative 

estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Property 

plant &

equipment

valuations

Valuations for land and 

buildings are undertaken by 

Bruton Knowles in line with 

RICS guidance on the basis of 5 

year valuation with interim 

reviews. The external valuer is 

overseen and managed by 

internal RICS qualified Valuers.

Other assets are valued on the 

basis of depreciated historic 

cost as proxy for fair value as 

relatively short asset lives 

before replacement.

Form of undertaking is in place 

between Finance Team and the 

Valuer that sets of the 

requirements.

The Valuer will undertake the 

valuations in line with the form 

of undertaking. The finance 

team will review the output and 

check for completeness.

The overriding requirement is 

that the carrying value is not 

materially different from the 

amount that would be 

determined by valuation. The 

Valuer working with the Finance 

Team will also consider factors 

(informed by Property Service 

Manager) that would indicate 

where an interim valuation is 

required.

Bruton Knowles Degree of uncertainty inherent with 

any revaluation.  We employ 

professional valuers and rely on 

expert opinion. Valuations are 

made in-line with RCIS guidance –

reliance on expert. Assumptions 

are set out in valuer’s report.

No

30

64



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)
Estimate Method / model used to make the 

estimate

Controls 

used to 

identify 

estimates

Whether 

Management 

have used 

an expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Estimated 

remaining 

useful lives 

of PPE

The following asset categories have 

general asset lives:

- Buildings varies from asset to asset, 

usually 50 to 70 years

- Equipment/ vehicles average 5 years

- Plant average 5 years

- Infrastructure 40 years

Specific 

asset lives 

applied to 

buildings.

Consistent 

asset lives 

applied to 

each asset 

category.

Discussion 

with internal 

asset team 

and where 

applicable 

Bruton 

Knowles as 

the valuer.

The method makes some generalisations. For 

example, building lives would vary depending on the 

construction materials used. This life would be 

recorded in accordance with RICS valuation.

Detailed information is included in the valuers report 

for each asset. The lives used for other assets are 

based on operational experience of the service 

areas. The assets live is then recorded in the asset 

register.

No

Depreciation 

and 

Amortisation 

Depreciation is provided on all PPE by 

the systematic allocation of their 

depreciable amounts over their useful 

lives. Buildings are depreciated over their 

remaining useful economic lives as 

assessed by the property valuer, with no 

allowance for a residual value. No 

depreciation charge is made for the land, 

community assets, assets under 

construction or assets held for sale.

All other assets with a finite useful life 

are depreciated on a straight-line basis.

Consistent  

application of 

Depreciation 

method 

across all 

assets

No. The length of the life is determined at the point of 

acquisition or revaluation. Major components are 

depreciated separately.

No

31

65



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Estimate Method / model used to make the 

estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

Management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of 

uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Impairments Assets are assessed at the year-end 

for any indication that an asset may be 

impaired. Where indications exist and 

any possible differences are estimated 

to be material, the recoverable amount 

of the asset is estimated and, where 

this is less than the carrying amount of 

the asset, an impairment loss is 

recognised for the shortfall..

Assets are assessed at 

each year-end as to 

whether there is any 

indication that an asset 

may be impaired.

This assessment is 

made by the internal 

valuer for land and 

buildings and by 

Property Services

Manager and finance 

team (and other 

relevant officers for the 

asset type) for other 

assets.

Discussion with 

internal asset 

team as 

appropriate.

Valuations are made in-line 

with RICS guidance - reliance 

on external and internal 

experts.

No.

32

66



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Estimate Method / model used to make the 

estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

Management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Measurement 

of Financial 

Instruments

Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the 

Balance Sheet when the Authority 

becomes party to the contractual 

provisions of a financial instrument. 

Borrowings at fixed interest rates from 

either the PWLB or other financial 

institutions are initially measured at fair 

value and carried in the Balance Sheet 

at amortised cost.

Borrowing at Variable Interest

Loans linked to the London Inter-bank 

Offered Rate (LIBOR) will be recorded at 

amortised cost.

Loans at stepped interest rates  

(LOBO’s) are recorded at fair value with 

interest charged to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement 

calculated at the effective rate of 

interest, which discounts estimate future 

cash payments over the life of the 

instrument (essentially an average rate 

for the expected duration of that loan), 

rather than the cash paid in a year.

Detailed loans register 

records and 

reconciliation to the 

accounts and external 

primary evidence of 

loans outstanding, for

example PWLB 

statement of balances.

As above

Partial - within the 

notes to the

accounts the fair

value of loan

liabilities is 

disclosed which is 

provided by

External Treasury 

Management 

Experts (Link Asset 

Services).

None No

33

67



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Estimate Method / model used to make the 

estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

Management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Measurement 

of Financial 

Instruments

Statutory regulations enable the Authority to 

negate the additional interest arising on 

LOBO’s (if loan arranged before November 

2007) by posting a reversal within the 

Movement in Reserves Statement to the 

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account.

The borrowings presented in the Balance 

Sheet are made up of the outstanding 

principal repayable plus accrued interest. 

Interest payable in the year is charged to the 

CIES.

Premiums and Discounts Arising from 

Premature Repayment of Debt.

The Authority continuously reviews existing 

external loans and interest rates being paid, 

and has the option of restructuring or 

refinancing this debt. All such transactions 

are taken to the Comprehensive Income &

Expenditure Statement in the year that the 

repayment is made.

Statutory regulations enable the Authority to 

negate the additional charge/credit arising

As above No None No

34

68



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Estimate Method / model used to make the 

estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

Management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Measurement 

of Financial 

Instruments

on such transactions by posting a reversal 

within the Movement in Reserves 

Statement to the Financial Instruments 

Adjustment Account.

Premiums and discounts arising from 

premature repayments of debt arising since 

1 April 2007 are charged to the Movement 

in Reserves Statement over the lesser of 

the remaining period of the loan(s) being 

repaid or a maximum of 10 years. All 

outstanding premiums arising from earlier 

periods are being charged over a period of 

up to 25 years.

Assets

Loans and Receivables

These are assets that have determinable 

payments or fixed interest rates with a fixed 

maturity date but are not quoted in an 

active market.

35

69



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Estimate Method / model used to make the 

estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

Management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Measurement 

of Financial 

Instruments

Soft Loans

Under certain criteria the Authority provides 

loans to foster parents and to older people 

with physical disabilities. These loans are 

interest free. The total value is considered 

to be immaterial to the Authority’s accounts; 

therefore these loans have not been 

revalued on a fair value basis in 

accordance with the CIPFA COPLAA.

Fair Value through the Comprehensive 

Income & Expenditure Statement

Forward investment deals (investment 

negotiated one year but with actual 

settlement in a future year). These are 

accounted for as a derivative between the 

trade and settlement dates. The difference 

between the agreed rate of interest with 

that attributable for a loan negotiated at 31 

March with similar contractual terms will 

show a gain or loss that is taken to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement. (Note no forward investments in 

2019/20)

Detailed records held 

and reconciled 

regularly

Detailed records of 

investments made.

No.

No.

None

None

No

No

36

70



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Estimate Method / model used to make the 

estimate

Controls used to 

identify 

estimates

Whether 

Management 

have used 

an expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of 

uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been a

change in 

accounting

method in year?

Provisions 

for liabilities
Provisions are made where an event 

has taken place that gives the 

Council a legal or constructive 

obligation that probably requires 

settlement by a transfer of economic 

benefits, but where the timing of the 

transfer is uncertain. Provisions are 

charged as an expense to the 

appropriate service line in the CI&ES 

in the year that the Council becomes 

aware of the obligation, and are 

measured at

the best estimate at the balance 

sheet date of the expenditure 

required to settle the obligation, 

taking into account relevant risks

and uncertainties.

Charged in the 

year that the 

Council becomes 

aware of the 

obligation.

No. Estimated settlements are

reviewed at the end of each 

financial year – where it 

becomes less than probable 

that a transfer of economic

benefits will now be required 

(or a lower settlement than 

anticipated is made), the 

provision is reversed and 

credited back to the relevant 

service. Where some or all of 

the payment required to settle 

a provision is expected to be 

recovered from another party 

(e.g. from an insurance claim),

this is only recognised as

income for the relevant 

service if it is virtually certain 

that reimbursement will be 

received by the Council.

No.

37

71



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Estimate Method / model used to make the 

estimate

Controls used 

to identify 

estimates

Whether 

Management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of 

uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been a

change in 

accounting

method in year?

Bad Debt 

Provision

A provision is estimated using 

knowledge of any risk of non 

recovery for individual debts and a 

proportion basis used based on 

experience of expected credit loss 

for an aged debt listing.

Central Finance 

team provide 

detailed 

guidance to 

departmental 

finance business 

team on 

approach and 

reviews working 

papers.

No. Past experience. No.

Finance Lease 

liability

At the inception of the lease the 

liability is the lower of the fair value 

of the asset or present value of the 

minimum lease payments. Payments 

are split between the finance charge 

and he element that reduces the 

liability

Finance team 

review contracts 

and payments 

over the de-

minimus level to 

ensure the lease 

is categorised 

correctly as a 

finance lease or 

an operating 

lease.

Calculations 

supported by 

lease 

documents.

Not required Assets recognised under 

finance leases are accounted 

for using the policies applied 

generally to such assets, 

subject to depreciation being 

charged over the lease term 

if this is the shorter than the 

asset’s estimated useful life 

(where ownership of the 

asset does not transfer to the 

Council at the end of the 

lease period)

No.

38

72



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)
Estimate Method / model used to make the 

estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

Manageme

nt have 

used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of 

uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative 

estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Accruals Finance team provide detailed guidance 

and training to budget managers and 

other finance colleagues on the 

establishment of accruals of expenditure 

and income. All accruals are reviewed 

before posting to the accounts. Activity is 

accounted for in the financial year that it 

takes place, not simply when cash 

payments are made or received. 

While processes and procedures will be 

maintained to capture all accruals, 

resources will be focused on identifying 

individual transactions of £1,000 and 

above. An Accumulated Absences 

account (£5m 18/19) to reflect the value 

of time owed to employees for accrued 

holidays, TOIL (time off in lieu) and 

flexitime. This balance is based on an 

historic value subject to annual review 

and amendment where there have

been significant changes in staff 

numbers or working patterns.

Detailed guidance 

and manager 

training.

Review financial 

systems to identify 

where goods have 

been received but 

not paid for.

Requests of service

managers to identify 

any other goods or 

services received or 

provided but not paid 

for, with additional

Challenge 

concentrating on

transactions greater 

than £10,000

Review of 

circumstances

that indicate the 

approach to annual 

leave accrual is still 

valid.

No. Accruals for income and

expenditure often based on known 

values.

Where accruals are estimated the 

latest available information is used. 

The value of the accruals below the 

threshold of £1,000 is not a material 

amount.

The annual leave accrual is based on 

historic records. An annual review will 

be performed to assess whether there 

are any circumstances that mean the 

historic calculation of annual leave is 

no longer a reasonable estimate and 

whether the survey process needs to 

be performed on a partial or complete 

basis. Events likely to trigger such a 

decision would be significant changes 

in staff numbers or working patterns.

No.

39

73



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Estimate Method / model used to make the 

estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

Management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Pension Liability The Council is the administering 

authority of the Leicestershire Local 

Government Pension Scheme. The 

Council engage the Actuary who 

provides the estimate of the pension 

liability.

Payroll data is 

provided to the 

Actuary. 

Management 

reconcile this 

estimate of 

contributions to the 

actuals paid out in 

the year.

Consulting Actuary As disclosed in the 

actuary’s report. Complex 

judgements including the 

discount rate used, rate at 

which salaries are projected 

to increase, changes in 

retirement ages, mortality 

rates and expected returns 

on pension fund assets.

No.

Non Adjusting 

events – events 

after the 

balance sheet 

date 

Finance Team and S151 Officer 

make the assessment. If the event is 

indicative of conditions that arose 

after the balance sheet date then this 

is an un-adjusting event. For these 

events only a note to the accounts is 

included, identifying the nature of the 

event and where possible estimates 

of the financial effect.

Managers notify the 

finance team/ s151 

officer

This would be 

considered on 

individual 

circumstance.

This would be considered 

on individual circumstance.

No.

40

74



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Leicestershire County Council

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Estimate Method / model used to make the 

estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

Management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of 

uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Defined benefit 

pension amounts 

and disclosures

Non-teaching staff of the Council and 

admitted bodies staff are members of 

the LGPS that the Council.

Rely on the 

calculations made 

by the Actuary.

The Actuary of the 

pension scheme

Reliance on the expertise of 

the actuaries of the pension 

scheme.

No.

Pension Fund 

Actuarial Gains 

/ Losses

The actuarial gains and losses figures 

are calculated by the actuarial 

experts.

These figures are based on making % 

adjustments to the closing value of 

assets / liabilities

For the LGPS the 

Authority responds 

to queries raised by 

admitted bodies of 

the Pension Fund.

The Authority are 

provided with 

actuarial report.

The nature of these figures 

forecasting into the future are 

based upon the best 

information held at the 

current time and are 

developed by experts in their 

field.

Any major market 

fluctuations that may impact 

on the year end valuations 

should they occur will be 

discussed with the Actuary to 

ensure that forecasts are 

reasonable.

No.

41

75



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Draft

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to 

one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member 

firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not 

provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk

76



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan addendum for Leicestershire County Council and Pension Fund  |  2019/20

Commercial in confidence

External Audit Plan update
Year ending 31 March 2020

Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

29 April 2020

77



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan addendum for Leicestershire County Council and Pension Fund  |  2019/20

Commercial in confidence

2

Introduction & headlines

Purpose

This document provides an update to the planned scope and timing of the statutory audit of Leicestershire County Council (‘the Authority’) and Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

(‘the Fund’) as reported in our Audit Plan dated 31 January 2020, for those charged with governance.

The current environment

In addition to the audit risks communicated to those charged with governance in our Audit Plan on 31 January 2020, recent events have led us to update our planning risk assessment and 

reconsider our audit and value for money (VfM) approach to reflect the unprecedented global response to the Covid-19 pandemic. The significance of the situation cannot be underestimated 

and the implications for individuals, organisations and communities remains highly uncertain. For our public sector audited bodies, we appreciate the significant responsibility and burden 

your staff have to ensure vital public services are provided. As far we can, our aim is to work with you in these unprecedented times, ensuring up to date communication and flexibility where 

possible in our audit procedures. 

The Fund will also be specifically facing a number of tough challenges around, funding, investment, governance and communications to members. As far we can, our aim is to work with you 

in these unprecedented times, ensuring up to date communication and flexibility where possible in our audit procedures.

Impact on our audit and VfM work

Management and those charged with governance are still required to prepare financial statements in accordance with the relevant accounting standards and the Code of Audit Practice, albeit

to an extended deadline for the preparation of the financial statements up to 31 August 2020 and the date for audited financials statements to 30 November 2020, however we will liaise with

management to agree appropriate timescales. We continue to be responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the Authority’s financial statements and VfM arrangements.

In order to fulfil our responsibilities under International Auditing Standards (ISA’s (UK)) we have revisited our planning risk assessment. We may also need to consider implementing changes to

the procedures we had planned and reported in our Audit Plan to reflect current restrictions to working practices, such as the application of technology to allow remote working. Additionally, it

has been confirmed since our Audit Plan was issued that the implementation of IFRS 16 has been delayed for the public sector until 2020/21.

Changes to our audit approach

To date we have:

- Identified a new significant financial statement risk, as described overleaf for both the Authority and Fund

- Reviewed the materiality levels we determined for the audit and we did not identify any changes to our materiality assessment as a result of the risk identified due to Covid-19.

Changes to our VfM approach (Authority)

We have updated our VfM risk assessment to document our understanding of your arrangements to ensure critical business continuity in the current environment. We have now assessed that

the

• financial sustainability of the Council as a significant risk, given the impact of Covid 19 and will look to see what arrangements the council has in place to manage this impact on its finances.

Conclusion

We will ensure any further changes in our audit and VfM approach and procedures are communicated with management and reported in our Audit Findings Report. We wish to thank

management for their timely collaboration in this difficult time.

78



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan addendum for Leicestershire County Council and Pension Fund  |  2019/20

Commercial in confidence

3

Significant risks identified – Covid – 19 pandemic

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Covid – 19 

(Financial 

Statements 

and Value for 

Money -

Authority)

The global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus pandemic has led to unprecedented uncertainty for all 

organisations, requiring urgent business continuity arrangements to be implemented. We expect current 

circumstances will have an impact on the production and audit of the financial statements for the year 

ended 31 March 2020, including and not limited to;

- Remote working arrangements and redeployment of staff to critical front line duties may impact on 

the quality and timing of the production of the financial statements, and the evidence we can obtain 

through physical observation

- Volatility of financial and property markets will increase the uncertainty of assumptions applied by 

management to asset valuation and receivable recovery estimates, and the reliability of evidence we 

can obtain to corroborate management estimates

- Financial uncertainty will require management to reconsider financial forecasts supporting their going 

concern assessment and whether material uncertainties for a period of at least 12 months from the 

anticipated date of approval of the audited financial statements have arisen; and 

- Disclosures within the financial statements will require significant revision to reflect the 

unprecedented situation and its impact on the preparation of the financial statements as at 31 March 

2020 in accordance with IAS1, particularly in relation to material uncertainties.

We therefore identified the global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus as a significant risk, which was one of 

the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement.

Financial Statements

We will:

• Work with management to understand the implications the response to the Covid-19 

pandemic has on the organisation’s ability to prepare the financial statements and 

update financial forecasts and assess the implications on our audit approach

• Liaise with other audit suppliers, regulators and government departments to co-ordinate 

practical cross sector responses to issues as and when they arise 

• Evaluate the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements  in light of the 

Covid-19 pandemic.

• Evaluate whether sufficient audit evidence using alternative approaches can be obtained 

for the purposes of our audit whilst working remotely

• Evaluate whether sufficient audit evidence can be obtained to corroborate significant 

management estimates such as asset valuations and recovery of receivable balances

• Evaluate management’s assumptions that underpin the revised financial forecasts and 

the impact on management’s going concern assessment

• Discuss with management any potential implications for our audit report if we have been 

unable to obtain sufficient audit evidence

Value for Money

We will:

▪ Review the Councils updated Medium Term Financial Plan and assess the impact on the 

Councils financial resilience and arrangements it has to manage its finances as a result 

of the pandemic.

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential 

magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

79



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan addendum for Leicestershire County Council and Pension Fund  |  2019/20

Commercial in confidence

4

Significant risks identified – Covid – 19 pandemic

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Covid – 19 

(Financial 

Statements 

and Value for 

Money- Fund)

The global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus pandemic has led to unprecedented uncertainty for all 

organisations, requiring urgent business continuity arrangements to be implemented. We expect current 

circumstances will have an impact on the production and audit of the financial statements for the year 

ended 31 March 2020, including and not limited to;

• Remote working arrangements and redeployment of staff to critical front line duties may impact on 

the quality and timing of the production of the financial statements, and the evidence we can obtain 

through physical observation

• Volatility of financial and property markets will increase the uncertainty of assumptions applied by 

management to asset valuation, and the reliability of evidence we can obtain to corroborate 

management estimates

• For instruments classified as fair value through profit and loss there may be a need to review the 

Level 1-3 classification of the instruments if trading may have reduced to such an extent that. quoted 

prices are not readily and regularly available and therefore do not represent actual and regularly 

occurring market transactions.

• Whilst the nature of the Fund and its funding position (i.e. not in a winding up position or no cessation 

event) means the going concern basis of preparation remains appropriate management may need to 

consider whether material uncertainties for a period of at least 12 months from the anticipated date of 

approval of the audited financial statements have arisen; and 

• Disclosures within the financial statements will require significant revision to reflect the 

unprecedented situation and its impact on the preparation of the financial statements as at 31 March 

2020 in accordance with IAS1, particularly in relation to material uncertainties.

We therefore identified the global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus as a significant risk, which was one of 

the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement.

We will:

• Work with management to understand the implications the response to the Covid-19 

pandemic has on the organisation’s ability to prepare the financial statements and 

update financial forecasts and assess the implications on our audit approach

• Liaise with other audit suppliers, regulators and government departments to co-ordinate 

practical cross sector responses to issues as and when they arise 

• Evaluate the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements  in light of the 

Covid-19 pandemic. Including management’s assessment of the impact of Covid 19 

upon employer covenants and forecast cashflows.

• Evaluate whether sufficient audit evidence using alternative approaches can be obtained 

for the purposes of our audit whilst working remotely

• Evaluate whether sufficient audit evidence can be obtained to corroborate 

management’s fair value hierarchy disclosure

• Evaluate whether sufficient audit evidence can be obtained to corroborate significant 

management estimates such as Level 3 asset valuations, including direct property 

• Discuss with management any potential implications for our audit report if we have been 

unable to obtain sufficient audit evidence

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential 

magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

80



 

 

 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE: 12 JUNE 2020 

 
APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSONS 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE 

 
Purpose of report  
 
1. The purpose of this report is to seek the Corporate Governance Committee’s 

approval to the proposed joint approach with the Leicester, Leicestershire and 
Rutland Combined Fire Authority (CFA) the recruitment and appointment of 
Independent Persons that will support both organisations’ Member Conduct 
Complaints Process as required under Section 7 of the Localism Act 2011 and also 
their procedures for dealing with the dismissal of senior officers.  For the Council, this 
is the Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, as 
required by the Local Authorities (Standing Order) England (Amendment) 
Regulations 2015 and agreed by the Employment Committee in June 2015. 

  
Policy Framework and Previous Decisions  

 
2. The Localism Act 2011 sets out provisions regarding the conduct of members.  It is a 

requirement under this Act that the Council appoint at least one Independent Person, 
whose view must be sought and taken into account by the Authority before it makes 
a decision on any allegation and whose views may be sought about allegations. 

 
3. At its meeting on 28 September 2016, the Council appointed five Independent 

Persons for a period of four years to form a Panel from which any one could be 
contacted to advise on particular allegations. 

 
4. The Local Authorities (Standing Order) England (Amendment) Regulations 2015 set 

out a new procedure for dealing with the possible dismissal of the Chief Executive, 
the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Financial Officer and this was adopted by the 
County Council on 8 July 2015. 
 

Background 
 
5. The Independent Persons appointed by the County Council in 2016 were appointed 

for a period of four years.  With their terms of service due to expire in September 
2020, a new recruitment process will be undertaken this summer.  For both the 
County Council and the Combined Fire Authority, the Independent Persons will 
support both member conduct and Chief Officer dismissal processes as outlined 
above. 
 

6. The Committee on Standards in Public Life completed a review into Local 
Government Ethical Standards and the recommendations are still being reviewed. 

81 Agenda Item 8



 

 

When these have been finalised, the Council will adapt recruitment processes for 
Independent Persons accordingly.  
 

Proposed Recruitment Process 
 
7. It is proposed that the County Council and the CFA undertake a joint recruitment 

exercise with a view to a new pool of independent persons being appointed that can 
support both organisations’ member complaints process and the dismissal process 
for senior officers as outlined above.   
 

8. The opportunity will be advertised and interviews carried out by a Panel of Members 
drawn from the Corporate Governance Committee and the Employment Committee 
of both the County Council and the CFA, supported by the County Council’s Head of 
Law (the Deputy Monitoring Officer) and the Assistant Director of Corporate 
Resources.   
 

9. The regulations permit independent persons to be reappointed.  The Monitoring 
Officer will therefore write to both the Council’s and the CFA’s existing appointees to 
thank them for their work to date and confirm that they are welcome to re-apply.  As a 
pool has been in operation, the reference to the Independent Person has been 
rotated so no single person has been involved in all complaints so as to jeopardise 
their independence, but their experience would be valuable. 

 
10. Once the recruitment has been completed, although it is intended that a single pool 

of Independent Persons be appointed for use by both the Council and the CFA, this 
will be subject to a separate approval process by both Authorities.   For the Council, 
a report will be presented to the Constitution Committee for consideration and 
thereafter the County Council for approval.  It is intended that the number 
recommended to be appointed be determined by the Appointment Panel as this will 
depend on the number and quality of applications received. 
  

Timetable 
 
11. The following timetable is proposed:  

 

 The opportunity be advertised during week commencing 6 July, with a closing 
date of 24 July.  

 Interviews be conducted in early September 

 A report be presented to the County Council’s Constitution Committee for 
consideration in September and then presented to the County Council for 
approval in September.  

 Independent Persons be appointed on 30 September 2020 for a term of four 
years.  

 
12. The outbreak of the coronavirus has impacted the Council’s usual working practices 

including its recruitment processes.  The timetable is therefore only indicative and 
could be subject to change.  It is proposed that the Monitoring Officer be authorised 
to adjust the timetable for the recruitment process as circumstances require.  If it 
proves impossible for the recruitment process to be undertaken by September 2020, 
then it is further proposed that the Monitoring Officer, following consultation with the 
Chair of this Committee, be authorised to make such recommendations to the 
Constitution Committee and full Council as she considers necessary to support the 

82



 

 

continued operation of the Council’s member conduct process in the interim. 
 

Resource Implications 
 
13. By running a joint recruitment process for both the County Council and the Leicester, 

Leicestershire and Rutland Combined Fire Authority, economies of scale will be 
achieved through reduced advertising costs, officer administration time and the 
servicing of a joint recruitment Panel.  
 

14. Any payments made to the independent persons appointed, for travel and 
subsistence expenses (where appropriate), will fall outside the Members Allowance 
Scheme which only applies to either elected or co-opted members of either Authority.  
An allowance is not proposed.  

 
Timetable for Decisions 
 
15. Provided circumstances permit, following the interviews of the Independent Persons, 

a report will be presented to the Constitution Committee in September for 
consideration and to the County Council at its meeting in September for approval of 
the appointment of the Independent Persons.  A similar process and timing will be 
undertaken for the CFA. 
 

Recommendations 
 
16. The Committee is asked to: 

 
(a) agree the proposed joint recruitment process with the Leicester, Leicestershire 

and Rutland Combined Fire Authority for the appointment of Independent 
Persons from 30 September 2020 for a term of four years; 

 
(b) authorise the Monitoring Officer to agree adjustments to the recruitment 

timetable with the CFA and if necessary to make recommendations to the 
Constitution Committee and full Council, following consultation with the 
Chairman of this Committee, as she considers necessary to ensure the 
continued running of the Council’s member complaints process if the 
recruitment cannot take place in time for the Council meeting in September 
2020. 

 
Background papers  
 
Report to the County Council 28 September 2016 – Report of the Constitution Committee 
– Appointment of Independent Persons  
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=4778&Ver=4 
 

83

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=4778&Ver=4


 

 

Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure  
 
None. 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications   

 
The opportunities will be advertised widely to ensure that a diverse pool of potential 
applicants is aware of the opportunities available. 
 
Officer to Contact 
 
Lauren Haslam, Director of Law and Governance  
Tel: 0116 305 6240  
lauren.haslam@leics.gov.uk 
 
Anna Poole, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 0116 305 0381 
anna.poole@leics.gov.uk 
 
  

84

mailto:lauren.haslam@leics.gov.uk
mailto:anna.poole@leics.gov.uk


 

 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 12th
 JUNE 2020 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES   

QUARTERLY TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT  

 
 

Purpose of the Report   

1. To update the Committee on the actions taken in respect of treasury 
management for the quarter ending 31 March 2020 (Quarter 1). 

Background  

2. Treasury Management is defined as:  

“The management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control 
of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks”. 

3. A quarterly report is produced for the Committee to provide an update on 
any significant events in treasury management. 

Economic Background 

4. The Council’s treasury management adviser, Link Asset Management, 
provides a quarterly update outlining the global economic outlook and 
monetary policy positions.  An extract from this report is attached as an 
Appendix to this report.  The key points are summarised below. 

5. The UK economy fell in Q1 2020 (Jan-Mar) by 2%.  The year 2020 began 
with optimistic business surveys pointing to an upswing in growth after the 
ending of political uncertainty because of the decisive result of the general 
election in December and the clarity this provided on how Brexit would then 
be taken forward. However, the three monthly Gross Domestic Product 
(GDP) statistics in Q1 were disappointing.  Since then, the whole world has 
changed as a result of the coronavirus outbreak.  It now looks likely that the 

85 Agenda Item 9



closedown of whole sections of the economy will result in a fall in GDP of at 
least 15% in quarter two.     

6. Due to the clear and obvious economic threat posed by the coronavirus 
outbreak, there were two emergency cuts in the interest rate by the 
monetary policy committee (from 0.75% to 0.25% and then to 0.1%) and this 
is not expected to rise for a prolonged period; there is even speculation in 
the press that the Bank of England is considering moving to negative interest 
rates.  

7. The Government and the Bank were also very concerned about people 
losing their jobs during the lock down period.  Accordingly, the Government 
introduced a raft of measures to assist the employed, self-employed and 
businesses.  However, it still remains likely that many firms will be unable to 
remain solvent at the end of the lockdown period even with central 
Government support, as there may be insufficient demand for service. 
Increasing levels of unemployment and business failure, as well as being 
detrimental to the local economy, will also impact directly on the County 
Council’s core funding levels through reductions in council tax and business 
rate income. 

8. Inflation is not going to be an issue for the near future as the world economy 
will be heading into a recession which is already causing a glut in the supply 
of oil which has fallen sharply in price. Other prices will also be under 
downward pressure; wage inflation has also been on a downward path over 
the last half year and that trend is likely to continue in the current 
environment. Commentators are divided on the medium-term position with 
potential supply constraints in the economic recovery (business failures and 
export restrictions) coupled with prolonged pandemic reduction measures 
(e.g. social distancing) providing potential inflationary pressures. Brexit will 
also take increasing prominence.  The central assumption is that there will 
be some sort of agreement reached on a Brexit trade deal, but the 
coronavirus outbreak could affect the timing of this given the level of 
uncertainty around the impact of, and pace of recovery from, this outbreak.  

9. In Europe, once coronavirus started to have a major impact, the European 
Central Bank took action in March 2020 to expand its Quantitative Easing 
operations and other measures to help promote expansion of credit and 
economic growth. The traditional difficulty in co-ordinating a response 
between countries remain, but the crisis is bringing them closer together.   

10. In the US, the Federal Reserve took decisive action as a result of the 
coronavirus impact by cutting rates twice by 0.50%, and then 1%, in March, 
all the way down to 0.00 – 0.25%.  Despite US Government stimulus 
packages the US will almost certainly fall into a sharp recession in Q2 2020 
with some estimates that growth could fall by as much as 40%. In April 2020, 
unemployment in the US jumped to nearly 15% after having been fairly 
stable at between 3 and 4% over the last year. 

 

86



Action Taken during Quarter 1 to March 2020 

11. The balance of the investment portfolio decreased from £238.7m to 
£204.2m.  Within the portfolio, £88.7m of investment loans matured at an 
average rate of 0.88% (excluding Private Debt), and £55m of new loans 
were placed, at an average rate of 0.82%. There was also a capital receipt of 
£0.8m in respect of the Partners private debt investment.    

12. The average rate achieved on new loans once again fell short of the average 
rate of loans maturing. This was expected due to the reduction in base rates 
and the trend is likely to continue in the medium term.  As a result, the 
portfolio weighted APR reduced from 1.35% in Q4 2019 to 1.26% in Q4 in 
2020. 

13. The chart below shows the weighted annual percentage rate (APR) achieved 
by the treasury portfolio compared to the Bank of England base rate: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14. As noted in paragraph 11, the investment portfolio reduced in size in Q1, this 
was because of the decision to temporarily hold higher cash balances due to 
the coronavirus epidemic while the economic outlook for the banking sector 
became clearer. Higher cash balances were also held to provide liquidity to 
suppliers and to counteract the likelihood of lower precept income. The result 
of this was to lend for a maximum of 6 months.  This was to provide stability 
should there have been a sudden downgrading of the banks credit ratings. In 
addition, the use of Money Market Funds (MMFs) was temporarily halted.  
MMFs are not fully liquidised if all contributors withdraw at once, but 
confidence has increased in these as a result of central bank liquidity 
interventions and there has been no evidence of withdrawals. They also have 
a higher credit rating than traditional bank loans.  As a result, MMF lending 
will recommence with increased monitoring to ensure liquidity and security. 
The result of all these actions contributed to the fall in the average APR rate 
in March.   

87



15. The loan portfolio at the end of March was invested with the 
counterparties shown in the list below, shown by original investment date: 

 £m Maturity Date 

   

6 Months   

Nationwide Building Society 15.0 April 2020 

Santander 5.0 May 2020 

Goldman Sachs 10.0 June 2020 

Goldman Sachs 10.0 July 2020 

National Westminster Bank Plc 10.0 July 2020 

Australia & New Zealand Bank 10.0 August 2020 

Santander 20.0 September 2020 

Goldman Sachs 5.0 September 2020 

   

9 Months   

National Westminster Bank Plc 10.0 April 2020 

National Westminster Bank Plc 10.0 May 2020 

   

12 Months   

Lloyds (Bank of Scotland) 20.0 May 2020 

Australia & New Zealand Bank 10.0 May 2020 

National Westminster Bank Plc 10.0 June 2020 

National Westminster Bank Plc 10.0 July 2020 

Lloyds (Bank of Scotland) 20.0 November 2020 

   

Beyond 12 Months   

Partners Group (Private Debt) 19.2 Estimated 2024 

Danske Bank 10.0 September 2027 

   

Total Portfolio Balance at 
31st March 2020 

 
204.2 

 

 
 

Loans to counterparties that breached authorised lending list 

16. There were no loans active during the period that breached the authorised 
counterparty list at the time that the loan was made. During the quarter 
Goldman Sachs’ credit default swap price (a measure of risk) changed and 
therefore the maximum length of a loan to Goldman’s was reduced from six 
months to 100 days, although the bank’s credit rating remained unchanged. 
This reduction was reversed a few days later and Goldman’s maximum loan 
length is back to six months. The County Council had £25m of loans with the 
bank at the time. This is the only instance of a change during a loan period for 
2019/20.  

 
 
 

88



Resource Implications  
 
17. The interest earned on revenue balances and the interest paid on external debt 

will impact directly onto the resources available to the Council.  For 2019/20 the 
interest generated by Treasury management activities raised £2.5m. 

 
Equality and Human Rights Implications  

18. There are no discernible equality and human rights implications. 

Recommendation   

19. The Committee is asked to note this report. 

Appendices 
 
Appendix – Economic Overview (April 2020) 

Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure  

None. 

 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources,  
Corporate Resources Department, 
0116 305 6199    E-mail Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director (Strategic Finance and Property),  
Corporate Resources Department,  
0116 305 7668   E-mail Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 

89

mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk
../../../../rlakhani/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/jfirth/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/0ABUO68F/Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

1. Economic Background 

UK.  Economic growth in 2019 has been very volatile with quarter 1 unexpectedly 

strong at 0.5%, quarter 2 dire at -0.2%, quarter 3 bouncing back up to +0.5% and 

quarter 4 flat at 0.0%, +1.1% y/y.  2020 started with optimistic business surveys 

pointing to an upswing in growth after the ending of political uncertainty as a result of 

the decisive result of the general election in December settled the Brexit issue.  

However, the three monthly GDP statistics in January were disappointing, reducing 

by 2%. Since then, the whole world has changed as a result of the coronavirus 

outbreak.  It now looks likely that the closedown of whole sections of the economy 

will result in a fall in GDP of at least 15% in quarter two. What is uncertain, however, 

is the extent of the damage that will be done to businesses by the end of the lock 

down period, when the end of the lock down will occur, whether there could be a 

second wave of the outbreak, how soon a vaccine will be created and then how 

quickly it can be administered to the population. This leaves huge uncertainties as to 

how quickly the economy will recover.    

Although the UK left the EU on 31 January 2020, we still have much uncertainty as to 

whether there will be a reasonable trade deal achieved by the end of 2020. It is also 

unclear as to whether the coronavirus outbreak may yet impact on the deadline of 

agreeing a deal by then. 

After the Monetary Policy Committee raised Bank Rate from 0.5% to 0.75% in 

August 2018, Brexit uncertainty caused the MPC to sit on its hands and do nothing 

until March 2020; at this point it was abundantly clear that the coronavirus outbreak 

posed a huge threat to the economy of the UK.  Two emergency cuts in Bank Rate 

from 0.75%, therefore, occurred in March, first to 0.25% and then to 0.10%. These 

cuts were accompanied by an increase in quantitative easing (QE), essentially the 

purchases of gilts (mainly) by the Bank of England of £200bn.  The Government and 

the Bank were also very concerned to stop people losing their jobs during this lock 

down period. Accordingly, the Government has introduced various schemes to 

subsidise both employed and self-employed jobs for three months while the country 

is locked down. It also put in place a raft of other measures to help businesses 

access loans from their banks, (with the Government providing guarantees to the 

banks against losses), to tide them over the lock down period when some firms may 

have little or no income. However, at the time of writing, this leaves open a question 

as to whether some firms will be solvent, even if they take out such loans, and some 

may also choose to close as there is, and will be, insufficient demand for their 

services. This is a rapidly evolving situation so there may be further measures to 

come from the Bank and the Government. The measures to support jobs and 

businesses already taken by the Government will result in a huge increase in the 

annual budget deficit from about 2%, to nearly 11%.  The ratio of debt to GDP is also 

likely to increase from around 80% to around 105%. In the Budget in March, the 

Government also announced a large increase in spending on infrastructure; this will 

also help the economy to recover once the lock down is ended.  Provided the 

91



coronavirus outbreak is brought under control relatively swiftly, and the lock down is 

eased, then it is hoped that there would be a sharp recovery, but one that would take 

a prolonged time to fully recover previous lost momentum. 

Inflation is not going to be an issue for the near future as the world economy will be 

heading into a recession which is already causing a glut in the supply of oil which has 

fallen sharply in price. Other prices will also be under downward pressure; wage 

inflation has also been on a downward path over the last half year and is likely to 

continue that trend in the current environment. While inflation could even turn 

negative in the Eurozone, this is currently not likely in the UK.    

Employment had been growing healthily through the last year but it will obviously be 

heading for a big hit in the coming months. The good news over the last year is that 

wage inflation has been significantly higher than CPI inflation which means that 

consumer real spending power has been increasing and so will have provided 

support to GDP growth. However, while people cannot leave their homes to do non-

food shopping, retail sales will also take a big hit. 

USA.  Growth in quarter 1 of 2019 was strong at 3.1% but growth fell back to 2.0% in 

quarter 2 and 2.1% in quarters 3 and 4.  The slowdown in economic growth resulted 

in the Fed cutting rates from 2.25-2.50% by 0.25% in each of July, September and 

October. Once coronavirus started to impact the US in a big way, the Fed took 

decisive action by cutting rates twice by 0.50%, and then 1.00%, in March, all the 

way down to 0.00 – 0.25%. Near the end of March, Congress agreed a $2trn 

stimulus package (worth about 10% of GDP) and new lending facilities announced by 

the Fed which could channel up to $6trn in temporary financing to consumers and 

firms over the coming months. Nearly half of the first figure is made up of permanent 

fiscal transfers to households and firms, including cash payments of $1,200 to 

individuals.  

The loans for small businesses, which convert into grants if firms use them to 

maintain their payroll, will cost $367bn and 100% of the cost of lost wages for four 

months will also be covered. In addition there will be $500bn of funding from the 

Treasury’s Exchange Stabilization Fund which will provide loans for hard-hit 

industries, including $50bn for airlines. 

However, all this will not stop the US falling into a sharp recession in quarter 2 of 

2020; some estimates are that growth could fall by as much as 40%. The first two 

weeks in March of initial jobless claims have already hit a total of 10 million and look 

headed for a total of 15m by the end of March. 

EUROZONE.  The annual rate of growth has been steadily falling, from 1.8% in 2018 

to only 0.9% y/y in quarter 4 in 2019.  The European Central Bank (ECB) ended its 

programme of quantitative easing purchases of debt in December 2018, which meant 

that the central banks in the US, UK and EU had all ended the phase of post financial 

crisis expansion of liquidity supporting world financial markets by purchases of debt.  

However, the downturn in EZ growth, together with inflation falling well under the 

upper limit of its target range of 0 to 2%, (but it aims to keep it near to 2%), prompted 

the ECB to take new measures to stimulate growth.  At its March 2019 meeting it 

92



announced a third round of TLTROs; this provides banks with cheap two year 

maturity borrowing every three months from September 2019 until March 2021. 

However, since then, the downturn in EZ and world growth has gathered momentum 

so at its meeting in September 2019, it cut its deposit rate further into negative 

territory, from -0.4% to -0.5% and announced a resumption of quantitative easing 

purchases of debt to start in November at €20bn per month, a relatively small 

amount, plus more TLTRO measures. Once coronavirus started having a major 

impact in Europe, the ECB took action in March 2020 to expand its QE operations 

and other measures to help promote expansion of credit and economic growth. What 

is currently missing is a coordinated EU response of fiscal action by all national 

governments to protect jobs, support businesses directly and promote economic 

growth by expanding government expenditure on e.g. infrastructure; action is 

therefore likely to be patchy. 

CHINA. Economic growth has been weakening over successive years, despite 

repeated rounds of central bank stimulus; medium-term risks have also been 

increasing. The major feature of 2019 was the trade war with the US.  However, this 

has been eclipsed by being the first country to be hit by the coronavirus outbreak; 

this resulted in a lock down of the country and a major contraction of economic 

activity in February-March 2020.  While it appears that China has put a lid on the 

virus by the end of March, these are still early days to be confident and it is clear that 

the economy is going to take some time to recover its previous rate of growth.  

Ongoing economic issues remain, in needing to make major progress to eliminate 

excess industrial capacity and to switch investment from property construction and 

infrastructure to consumer goods production. It also needs to address the level of 

non-performing loans in the banking and credit systems.  

JAPAN has been struggling to stimulate consistent significant GDP growth and to get 

inflation up to its target of 2%, despite huge monetary and fiscal stimulus. It is also 

making little progress on fundamental reform of the economy. It appears to have 

missed much of the domestic impact from coronavirus in 2019-20 but the virus is at 

an early stage there. 

WORLD GROWTH.  The trade war between the US and China on tariffs was a major 

concern to financial markets and was depressing worldwide growth during 2019, as 

any downturn in China would spill over into impacting countries supplying raw 

materials to China. Concerns were particularly focused on the synchronised general 

weakening of growth in the major economies of the world. These concerns resulted 

in government bond yields in the developed world falling significantly during 2019. In 

2020, coronavirus is the big issue which is going to sweep around most countries in 

the world and have a major impact in causing a world recession in growth in 2020.  

 

93



2. Interest Rate Forecast 

The Council’s treasury advisor, Link Asset Services, has provided the following 

forecast: 

 

The above table is based on PWLB certainty rates – gilt yields plus 180bps.  

Uncertainty over Brexit caused the MPC to leave Bank Rate unchanged during 2019 

and at its January 2020 meeting. However, since then the coronavirus outbreak has 

transformed the economic landscape: in March, the MPC took emergency action 

twice to cut Bank Rate first to 0.25%, and then to 0.10%.  It is now unlikely to rise for 

the next two years pending a protracted recovery of the economy from this huge set 

back. 

Our central assumption is that there will be some form of muddle through agreement 

on a reasonable form of Brexit trade deal but the coronavirus outbreak could affect 

the timing of reaching a deal.  As there is so much uncertainty around the impact of, 

and pace of recovery from this outbreak, the above forecasts only cover two years, 

not three as provided in the past. 

GILT YIELDS / PWLB RATES.  There was much speculation during the second half 

of 2019 that bond markets were in a bubble which was driving bond prices up and 

yields down to historically very low levels. The context for that was heightened 

expectations that the US could have been heading for a recession in 2020, and a 

general background of a downturn in world economic growth, especially due to fears 

around the impact of the trade war between the US and China, together with inflation 

generally at low levels in most countries and expected to remain subdued; these 

conditions were conducive to very low bond yields.  While inflation targeting by the 

major central banks has been successful over the last 30 years in lowering inflation 

expectations, the real equilibrium rate for central rates has fallen considerably due to 

the high level of borrowing by consumers: this means that central banks do not need 

to raise rates as much now to have a major impact on consumer spending, inflation, 

etc. This has pulled down the overall level of interest rates and bond yields in 

financial markets over the last 30 years.  We have therefore seen, over the last year, 

many bond yields up to 10 years in the Eurozone turn negative. In addition, there 

has, at times, been an inversion of bond yields in the US whereby 10 year yields 

Link Asset Services Interest Rate View

Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22

Bank Rate View 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

3 Month LIBID 0.45 0.40 0.35 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30

6 Month LIBID 0.60 0.55 0.50 0.45 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40

12 Month LIBID 0.75 0.70 0.65 0.60 0.55 0.55 0.55 0.55

5yr PWLB Rate 1.90 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.10 2.10

10yr PWLB Rate 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30

25yr PWLB Rate 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.70 2.70

50yr PWLB Rate 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50

94



have fallen below shorter term yields. In the past, this has been a precursor of a 

recession.  The other side of this coin is that bond prices are elevated as investors 

would be expected to be moving out of riskier assets i.e. shares, in anticipation of a 

downturn in corporate earnings and so selling out of equities.   

Gilt yields had therefore already been on a falling trend during the last year up until 

the coronavirus crisis hit western economies. Since then, we have seen gilt yields fall 

sharply to unprecedented lows as investors have panicked in selling shares in 

anticipation of impending recessions in western economies, and moved cash into 

safe haven assets i.e. government bonds. However, major western central banks 

have also started quantitative easing purchases of government bonds which has 

acted to maintain downward pressure on government bond yields at a time when 

there is going to be a huge and quick expansion of government expenditure financed 

by issuing government bonds; (this would normally cause bond yields to rise).  At the 

close of the day on 31 March, all gilt yields from 1 to 5 years were between 0.12 – 

0.20% while even 25-year yields were at only 0.83%.   

However, HM Treasury has imposed two changes of margins over gilt yields for 

PWLB rates in 2019-20 without any prior warning; the first on 9 October 2019, added 

an additional 1% margin over gilts to all PWLB rates.  That increase was then 

partially reversed for some forms of borrowing on 11 March 2020, at the same time 

as the Government announced in the Budget a programme of increased spending on 

infrastructure expenditure. It also announced that there would be a consultation with 

local authorities on possibly further amending these margins; this ends on 4 June. It 

is clear that the Treasury will no longer allow local authorities to borrow money from 

the PWLB to purchase commercial property if the aim is solely to generate an income 

stream. 

Following the changes on 11 March 2020 in margins over gilt yields, the current 

situation is as follows: -  

 PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 200 basis points (G+200bps) 

 PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 180 basis points (G+180bps) 

 PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 

 PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps) 

 Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps) 
 

As the interest forecast table for PWLB certainty rates (gilts plus 180bps) above 

shows, there is likely to be little upward movement in PWLB rates over the next two 

years as it will take economies a prolonged period to recover all the momentum they 

will lose in the sharp recession that will be caused during the coronavirus shut down 

period. Inflation is also likely to be very low during this period and could even turn 

negative in some major western economies during 2020-21.  

 

 

95



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

          
      

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 12 JUNE 2020 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2019/20 

 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to advise the Committee of the action taken and the 

performance achieved in respect of the treasury management activities of the 
Council in 2019/20.   
 

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 
 
2. Under the CIPFA Code of Practice it is necessary to report on treasury management 

activities undertaken in 2019/20 by the end of September 2020.  This report will be 
referred to the Cabinet on 23 June 2020 and the Committee is asked to provide 
comments in advance of this meeting. 

 
Background 

 
3. The term treasury management is defined as: - 
 

“The management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent 
with those risks”. 

 
4. The Director of Corporate Resources is responsible for carrying out treasury 

management on behalf of the County Council, under guidelines agreed annually by 
the County Council. 

 
Treasury Management 2019/20 
 
5. The Treasury Management Policy Statement for 2019/20 was agreed by the full 

Council on 20 February 2019, in relation to the sources and methods of borrowing 
and approved organisations for lending temporarily surplus funds. 
 

6. The criteria for lending to Banks is derived from the list of approved counter parties 
provided by the County Council’s Treasury Management advisors, Link Asset 
Services.  The list is amended to reduce the risk to the County Council by removing 
the lowest rated counterparties and reducing the maximum loan duration. 

 
7. During the year all outstanding loans were repaid on time with the interest due. 

97 Agenda Item 10



 
 

 
8. For local authority lending the policy is unchanged with no loans permitted in excess 

of a 12 month duration or £10 million in value.  In 2019, Moody’s, one of the world’s 
best-known credit rating agencies, re-affirmed its view that the UK local government 
sector has a high credit quality.  The implication being that the sector continues to be 
a good risk for lenders. There were no new loans made to Local Authorities during 
the year. 

 
9. In 2016 it was agreed that any counterparty that was downgraded whilst a loan was 

active, and where the unexpired period of the loan, or the amount on loan, would 
then breach the limit at which a new loan could be made to that counterparty, this 
would be included in the quarterly treasury management report to the Corporate 
Governance Committee. There was only one such incident during 2019/20.  
Following granting of loans to Goldman Sachs’ their credit default swap price (a 
measure of risk) changed, causing the maximum length of loan to reduce from six 
months to 100 days, although the bank’s credit rating remained unchanged. This 
reduction was reversed a few days later and Goldman’s maximum loan length 
reverted to six months. The County Council had £25m of loans with the bank at the 
time. 

 
10. Since August 2018 the UK base lending rates had been maintained at 0.75% until 

March 2020. However, due to the clear and obvious economic threat posed by the 
coronavirus outbreak, there were two emergency cuts in the interest rate, in March 
2020, by the monetary policy committee, from 0.75% to 0.25% and then to 0.1%. It is 
now unlikely to rise for the next two years pending a protracted recovery of the 
economy from this significant setback. There is even some speculation in the press 
recently that the Bank of England is considering moving to negative interest rates. 
Due to this, investment returns remained low in 2019/20 and are likely to remain low 
for the foreseeable future. 

 
11. Due to the coronavirus epidemic, investments during the last month of the financial 

year (March 2020) were kept to a minimum while financial markets and credit ratings 
stabilised. 
 

12. While the Council has taken a cautious approach to investing, it is also fully 
appreciative of changes to regulatory requirements for financial institutions in terms 
of additional capital and liquidity that came about in the aftermath of the financial 
crisis. These requirements have provided a far stronger basis for financial institutions, 
with annual stress tests by regulators evidencing how institutions are now far more 
able to cope with extreme stressed market and economic conditions. 

 
13. On the debt portfolio, no new loans were taken.  A total of £0.5m was repaid in the 

year which was in respect of three equal instalments of principal loans, thereby 
reducing the overall balance of the loan portfolio. 

 
14. The Authority has not raised any external loans since August 2010 and external debt 

is around £100m lower than it was at its peak in November 2006.  There are no 
current plans to raise any further external debt in the short to medium, however this 
will need to be considered as part of the next MTFS given the coronavirus epidemic. 
Opportunities to reduce it will be considered if they are cost effective. 

 

98



 
 

15. The economic outlook for the U.K. is dire (it is likely the economy is already in 
recession) and further austerity measures may be forthcoming to pay for Central 
Government support through the COVID-19 epidemic and likely falling tax revenues. 
Increasing levels of unemployment and business failure, as well as being detrimental 
to the local economy, will also impact directly on the County Council’s core funding 
levels through reductions in council tax and business rate income. 

  
Position at 31st March 2020  

 
16. The Council’s external debt position at the beginning and end of the year was as 

follows: - 

Average Average Average Average

Rate Life Rate Life

Fixed Rate 

Funding

- PWLB £160.6m 6.77% 31 yrs £160.1m 6.77% 30 yrs

-Market £    0.0m n/a n/a £    0.0m n/a n/a

Variable Rate 

Funding:

- Market (1) £103.5 m 4.37% 1 yr £103.5m 4.37% 1 yr

Total Debt £264.1m 5.83% 20 yrs £263.6m 5.83% 20 yrs

31
st

 March 2019 31
st

 March 2020

Principal Principal

 
  

(1) The lenders all have an option to increase the rates payable on these loans on certain pre-set dates, and if 
they exercise this option we can either repay or accept the higher rate. The average life is based on the next 
option date. 

 

17. The position in respect of investments varies throughout the year as it depends on 
large inflows and outflows of cash.  Over the course of the year the loan portfolio 
(which includes cash managed on behalf of schools with devolved banking 
arrangements) varied between £227m and £284m, and averaged £257m. 
Investments as at 31 March 2020 were £227m. 
 

Debt Transactions 
 
18. The Council began the financial year £17.6m over-borrowed compared with the 

amount required to fund the historic capital programme - the Capital Financing 
Requirement.     
 

19. Although the term over borrowed suggests an unusual situation it is simply caused by 
the County Council setting aside money each year so that when loans become due 
they can be repaid.  Historically this situation did not arise because new borrowing 
was undertaken each year. For the last ten years there has been no requirement to 
borrow to fund the capital programme (which leads to debt financing costs that fall on 
the revenue budget), and also the Governments change a number of years ago to 
award grants to fund the capital programme rather than the previous approach of 
supported borrowing.  Ideally the situation would be remedied by repaying loans 
early.  However, given the large penalties that would be incurred from early 
repayment the position is unlikely to change unless long-term interest rates rise 
significantly.   

99



 
 

 
20. It is expected that the overborrowed position will reverse due to the requirement to 

fund the new capital programme for 2020-24, a total of £222m is included – due to 
the level of cash balances held it is expected that the additional funding requirement 
will be funded internally without raising any new external debt.  This will save over 
£60m in interest payments. 
  

21. At the end of the financial year, after the repayment of debt and setting aside funding 
for the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) - (£10m) to ensure that loans raised to 
finance capital expenditure are paid off over the longer term, the Council was £25m 
over-borrowed.  

 
22. The lack of opportunity to reduce the debt portfolio because of historic stagnant 

interest rates makes the punitive redemption costs prohibitive.  The debt portfolio 
stands at £263.6m and the average pool rate 5.83%. 

 
23. Only £0.5m of repayments were made during the year meaning that the average pool 

rate was stagnant.  
 
Investments 
 
24. The loan portfolio produced an average return of 1% in 2019/20, compared to an 

average base rate of 0.70% and the average 7-day LIBID (London Interbank Bid 
Rate) index (representative of what could be achieved if only short-term loans within 
the money market were made) of 0.54%.  
  

25. The loan portfolio has outperformed both the average base rate and the average 7-
day LIBID in every one of the last 25 years, which is when the figures started to be 
produced.  The level of the out performance is flattered somewhat by the significant 
over performance achieved both during and in the immediate aftermath of the credit 
crunch.  The average rate of interest earned on the portfolio in the last 25 years is 
3.73%, and this compares to an average base rate and the average LIBID index 
which have both produced a return of 3.1%.  
 

26. The variability of balances makes it difficult to calculate the excess interest that the 
over performance has achieved over the whole of the 20+ year period for which 
performance records are available, but it is estimated to be at least £29m.  Almost 
half of this added value came in the five financial years from 2008 to 2013, which can 
be categorised as the start of the banking crisis and a period in which a number of 
loans placed during the financial crisis were earning interest at rates that (relative to 
base rates) were extraordinary. 
 

27. The Appendix attached to this report shows the weighted average rate of return for 
Leicestershire County Council (0.86%) against other councils in its benchmarking 
group (0.73%) and other County Council’s (0.74%) during 2019/20.  This shows that 
the Council has outperformed its peers in its benchmarking group and other counties. 

 
28. The above paragraphs exclude investments relating to private debt.  The total value 

of private debt investment as at 31 March 2020 was £19.2m and is performing in line 
with expectations. 

 
 

100



 
 

Summary 
 
29. Treasury Management is an integral part of the Council’s overall finances and the 

performance of this area is very important.  Whilst individual years obviously matter, 
performance is best viewed on a medium / long term basis.  The action taken in 
respect of the debt portfolio in recent years has been extremely beneficial and has 
resulted in significant savings.  Short term gains might, on occasions, be sacrificed 
for longer term certainty and stability.  

 
30. The loan portfolio has produced an exceptional level of over performance in the 

period in which performance figures have been calculated.  Adding significant value 
in a period of extremely low interest rates is very difficult.  Ironically a period in which 
there begins to be differentiation in expectations for both the pace and extent of 
future base rate rises will make the cash sums that can be gained larger, whilst also 
giving a higher level of risk that the decisions taken might retrospectively prove to be 
sub-optimal.  Given that interest rates are unlikely to rise for the next two years, low 
levels of returns are likely to continue and the cost of getting investment decisions 
wrong is unlikely to be significant.  

 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
31. None. 
 
Background Papers 

 
Report to County Council on 20 February 2019 – ‘Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2019/20 – 2022/23’ - ‘Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 2019/20’ and ‘Financial Plan’ appendices: 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=5125&Ver=4 
 
 
Circulation under local issues alert procedure 
 
None. 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix – LINK Benchmarking report  
 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources,  
Corporate Resources Department, 
0116 305 6199    E-mail Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director (Strategic Finance and Property),  
Corporate Resources Department,  
0116 305 7668   E-mail Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
 

101

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=5125&Ver=4
mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk
Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk


 
 

 

102



Leicestershire County Council

Investment Portfolio Benchmarking Analysis

 March 2020

Group Members:

Amber Valley Borough Council

City Of Lincoln Council 

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council

Leicestershire County Council

Lincolnshire County Council

Melton Borough Council 

North Kesteven District Council

Nottingham City Council

Nottinghamshire Fire And Rescue Service

South Kesteven District Council

The Police And Crime Commissioner For Lincolnshire

West Lindsey District Council

Page 1 of 10

103



Leicestershire County Council

Leicestershire County Council Benchmarking Group 11 (12) English Counties (14)

Basic Portfolio Characteristics
WARoR 0.86% 0.73% 0.74%

WAM 105 80 72

WATT 239 150 137

WA Credit Risk 4.13 2.80 2.51

Model WARoR 0.80% 0.71% 0.69%

Difference 0.06% 0.02% 0.05%

Model Band 0.70% - 0.90% 0.61% - 0.81% 0.59% - 0.79%

Performance Inline Inline Inline

Asset Breakdown

Maturity Profiles

Summary Sheet

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

< 1 Month 1-3 Months 3-6 Months 6-9 Months 9-12 Months 12 Months +

Fixed Deposits

Calls & O/N

MMFs

USDBFs

Struct. Prods.

Bonds

CDs

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

< 1 Month 1-3 Months 3-6 Months 6-9 Months 9-12 Months 12 Months +
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

< 1 Month 1-3 Months 3-6 Months 6-9 Months 9-12 Months 12 Months +

Page 2 of 10

104



Leicestershire County Council

Population Returns against Model Returns

Actual WARoR Model WARoR Difference Lower Bound Upper Bound Performance

0.86% 0.80% 0.06% 0.70% 0.90% InlineLeicestershire County Council

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

0.00% 0.50% 1.00% 1.50%

A
c

tu
a

l 
W

A
R

o
R

Model WARoR

Upper Return Lower Return Peer Returns Benchmarking Group 11 Leicestershire County Council

Page 3 of 10

105



Leicestershire County Council

Returns Comparable Against the Risk-Free Rate and LIBOR Curve

Model

WARoR WAM WATT WARisk Gilt LIBOR-Swap Gilt LIBOR-Swap Bands Performance

Leicestershire County Council 0.86% 105 239 4.13 -0.04% 0.62% 0.90% 0.23% 0.70% - 0.90% Inline

Benchmarking Group 11 0.73% 80 150 2.80 0.05% 0.54% 0.68% 0.19% 0.61% - 0.81% Inline

English Counties 0.74% 72 137 2.51 0.09% 0.49% 0.65% 0.25% 0.59% - 0.79% Inline

Difference

-0.50

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700

R
a

te
 (

%
)

Days/Time Till Maturity

Gilt Curve LIBOR-Swap Curve Leicestershire County Council Benchmarking Group 11 English Counties

Page 4 of 10

106



Leicestershire County Council

Peer Comparison

Leicestershire County Council Benchmarking Group 11 (12) English Counties (14) Population Average (217)

Basic Characteristics

Principal £208,221,000 £72,633,575 £218,413,695 £74,498,425

WARoR 0.86% 0.73% 0.74% 0.71%

WAM 105 80 72 70

WATT 239 150 137 152

WA Credit Risk 4.13 2.80 2.51 2.81

Portfolio Breakdown

Fixed Deposits 72.04% 42.60% 10 43.54% 12 44.93% 175

Calls & O/N 27.96% 26.09% 11 23.93% 13 26.76% 179

MMFs 0.00% 30.58% 9 28.27% 13 25.01% 144

USDBFs 0.00% 0.00% 0 2.20% 2 1.43% 11

Struct. Prods. 0.00% 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.05% 3

Bonds 0.00% 0.00% 0 1.19% 1 0.65% 7

CDs 0.00% 0.72% 1 0.86% 2 1.17% 21

Institution Breakdown

Banks 92.80% 43.01% 11 41.02% 14 43.38% 201

Building Socs. 7.20% 4.62% 4 1.07% 3 3.92% 52

Government 0.00% 21.79% 8 27.27% 11 25.89% 142

MMFs 0.00% 30.58% 9 28.21% 13 24.92% 143

USDBFs 0.00% 0.00% 0 2.20% 2 1.43% 11

MLDBs 0.00% 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0

Other 0.00% 0.00% 0 0.24% 1 0.48% 10

Domestic/Foreign Exposure

Domestic 85.59% 63.57% 11 64.91% 14 70.32% 210

Foreign 14.41% 5.85% 4 4.69% 7 3.30% 48

MMFs 0.00% 30.58% 9 28.21% 13 24.95% 143

USDBFs 0.00% 0.00% 0 2.20% 2 1.43% 11

Maturity Structure

< 1 Month 27.96% 49.46% 57.44% 58.05%

1-3 Months 24.01% 12.46% 11.94% 12.04%

3-6 Months 28.82% 27.01% 18.59% 18.83%

6-9 Months 19.21% 7.42% 7.25% 5.75%

9-12 Months 0.00% 2.15% 2.53% 3.42%

12 Months + 0.00% 1.50% 2.24% 1.92%

Page 5 of 10

107



Leicestershire County Council

Detailed Peer Comparison

Leicestershire County Council Benchmarking Group 11 (12) English Counties (14)

% WARoR WAM WATT % WARoR WAM WATT n % WARoR WAM WATT n

Asset Breakdown
Fixed Deposits 72.04% 0.98% 103 289 42.60% 0.92% 104 234 10 43.54% 0.98% 97 206 12

Calls 27.96% 0.54% 109 109 26.09% 0.57% 70 70 11 23.93% 0.57% 52 52 13

Overnight 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0

MMFs 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 30.58% 0.51% 0 0 9 28.27% 0.49% 0 0 13

USDBFs 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0 2.20% 0.26% 0 0 2

Structured Prods. 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0

Cert.of Deposit 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0.72% 0.99% 7 30 1 0.86% 0.94% 9 39 2

Gov. Bonds 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0 1.19% 0.08% 0 1 1

Corp. Bonds 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0

MLDB Bonds 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0

Institutional Breakdown
Banks 92.80% 0.86% 112 243 43.01% 0.83% 101 180 11 41.02% 0.74% 57 139 14

Building Socs. 7.20% 0.80% 15 183 4.62% 0.93% 32 80 4 1.07% 0.69% 67 104 3

Government 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 21.79% 0.83% 91 169 8 27.27% 0.98% 117 200 11

MMFs 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 30.58% 0.51% 0 0 9 28.21% 0.49% 0 0 13

USDBFs 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0 2.20% 0.26% 0 0 2

MLDBs 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0

Other 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0 0.24% 1.40% 37 52 1

Foreign Breakdown
Domestic 85.59% 0.85% 99 238 63.57% 0.77% 109 203 11 64.91% 0.82% 88 162 14

Foreign 14.41% 0.86% 135 245 5.85% 0.33% 37 93 4 4.69% 0.74% 52 157 7

MMF 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 30.58% 0.51% 0 0 9 28.21% 0.49% 0 0 13

USDBFs 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 0 2.20% 0.26% 0 0 2

Sovereign State Breakdown
UK 85.59% 0.85% 99 238 UK 63.57% 0.77% 109 203 11 UK 64.91% 0.82% 88 162 14

AUS 9.61% 0.76% 119 275 QAT 3.03% 0.19% 18 46 2 AUS 2.84% 0.41% 33 135 6

DEN 4.80% 1.06% 167 185 AUS 1.52% 0.15% 18 53 2 SING 1.07% 0.13% 19 49 2

88888 88888 88888 88888 88888 SING 0.76% 0.15% 11 39 2 GER 0.44% 0.12% 25 52 2

88888 88888 88888 88888 88888 DEN 0.40% 0.09% 14 15 1 DEN 0.34% 0.08% 12 13 1

88888 88888 88888 88888 88888 GER 0.14% 0.07% 13 30 1 88888 ######### 88888 88888 88888 88888

88888 88888 88888 88888 88888 88888 ######### 88888 88888 88888 88888 88888 ######### 88888 88888 88888 88888

88888 88888 88888 88888 88888 88888 ######### 88888 88888 88888 88888 88888 ######### 88888 88888 88888 88888

88888 88888 88888 88888 88888 88888 ######### 88888 88888 88888 88888 88888 ######### 88888 88888 88888 88888

Sovereign Rating Breakdown
AA- 85.59% AA- 66.60% AA- 64.91%

AAA 14.41% AAA 2.83% AAA 4.69%

HIDE 88888 88888 88888 ######### 88888 #########

Since MMFs are ring-fenced institutions and do not belong to a specific country, the sovereign breakdowns will exclude them from the analysis.  As a result the "% of Portfolio" may not add up to 100%.

Page 6 of 10

108



Leicestershire County Council

Benchmarking Rationale and Methodology

The aim of this benchmarking model is to compare portfolio weighted average rate of returns (WARoR) by adjusting for the risks inherent in the portfolio.  The main risks in cash portfolios are:

Maturity Risk

Credit Risk

As such, the model must normalise WARoRs by adjusting for these risks so as to calculate risk-adjusted returns, or "Model WARoR".  The risks the model looks at include:

Maturity Risk

Credit Risk

Change in the shape of the yield curve

This will account for the majority of all risk in the portfolio, however, there will still be some "model uncertainty" as no model can fully explain each WARoR.  The difference in model WARoR and actual 

WARoR may be due to the following reasons:

Timing differences

Higher diversification

Tilt towards a particular asset type or institution type that is extraordinarily paying an above market rate (e.g. special tranche rates)

As a result, the model will build "Standard Error Bands" around the model WARoR calculated so as to adjust for this model uncertainty.  This gives us a range for where the actual WARoR should fall.

If the actual WARoR is above this upper band, then we would say the client is above on a risk-adjusted basis given the risks inherent in the portfolio.  If the actual WARoR is below the lower band, 

then we would say the client is below on a risk-adjusted basis given the risks inherent in the portfolio.  

Model Band Some values when compared to the Model Band will fall outside the range even if the value appears to be equal to the minimum or maximum. This is due to rounding the data to 

two decimal places within Excel. 

For example:

The value returned is 0.9512 and the range is 0.9541 – 1.2321. When rounded the data will be represented as 0.95 and a range of 0.95 – 1.23, although this appears to be in line with 

the range the underlying data will actually fall outside.

Definitions

WARoR Weighted Average Rate of Return This is the average annualised rate of return weighted by the principal amount in each rate.

WAM Weighted Average Time to Maturity This is the average time, in days, till the portfolio matures, weighted by principal amount.

WATT Weighted Average Total Time This is the average time, in days, that deposits are lent out for, weighted by principal amount.

WA Risk Weighted Average Credit Risk Number Each institution is assigned a colour corresponding to a suggested duration using Link Asset Services' Suggested Credit Methodology.

1 = Yellow; 1.25 = Pink 1; 1.5 = Pink 2, 2 = Purple; 3 = Blue; 4 = Orange; 5 = Red; 6 = Green; 7 = No Colour

Model WARoR Model Weighted Average Rate of Return This is the WARoR that the model produces by taking into account the risks inherent in the portfolio.

Difference Difference This is the difference between the actual WARoR and the model WARoR;  Actual WARoR minus Model WARoR

Page 10 of 10

109



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
12 JUNE 2020 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE – ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 

 
 
Purpose 
 
1. To provide the Corporate Governance Committee (the Committee) with 

an Annual Report on work conducted by the Internal Audit Service.  It is 
then intended to distribute the report to all members of the Council.  

 
Background 
 
2. The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) has delegated responsibility for 

arranging a continuous internal audit.  Under the County Council’s 
Constitution, the Committee is required to monitor the adequacy and 
effectiveness of Leicestershire County Council Internal Audit Service 
(LCCIAS).  One of its specific functions is to consider the Head of 
Internal Audit Service’s (HoIAS) Annual Report. 

 
Internal Audit Service Annual Report 

 
3. Part 2, ‘Internal Control’ of the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015) 

provides at section 5 ‘Internal Audit’ that, ‘A relevant authority must 
undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its 
risk management, control and governance processes, taking into 
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance’. 

 
4. The relevant standards are the United Kingdom Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards (PSIAS) revised in April 2017, and the guidance is 
provided by the accompanying CIPFA Local Government Advisory Note 
(LGAN) revised in April 2019. 

 
5. The PSIAS require the HoIAS to provide an Annual Report to ‘the Board’ 

timed to support the annual governance statement. The Internal Audit 
Charter defines the Corporate Governance Committee as the Board and 
recognises that it should formally approve the HoIAS’ Annual Report. 

 

111 Agenda Item 11



 

 
6. The Annual Report must include: 

a. an annual internal audit opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council’s control environment 

b. a summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived 
c. a comparison of the work undertaken with the work that was planned, 

including a summary of the performance of the internal audit function 
d. a statement on conformance with the PSIAS and the results of the 

internal audit Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) 
e. any issues the HoIAS judges particularly relevant to the preparation of 

the annual governance statement 
 

7. The Annual Report for 2019-20 is provided in the Appendix. Although 
not a PSIAS requirement, the Annual Report will be made available to all 
members of the County Council. The report includes the HoIAS opinion. 

 
HoIAS opinion: Prior to the onset of the coronavirus, the Council’s 
control environment was in a steady state. The build-up and 
immediate impact of the coronavirus was significant, of adverse 
nature and unique in character. However, no significant 
governance, risk management internal control failings have come 
to the HoIAS’ attention therefore reasonable assurance is given 
that the Council’s control environment overall has remained 
adequate and effective. 

 
The opinion will also be contained in the draft AGS. 

 
8. Annex 1 provides detail on how the annual internal audit opinion was 

formed, defines types of audits, the components of the control 
environment and what it is designed to achieve and provides a caveat on 
any opinion reached. 

 
9. Annex 2 lists the audits undertaken during the year. For assurance 

audits the individual audit opinion is given. The Annex also contains 
details of other relevant work undertaken. 

 
10. Annex 3 shows the HoIAS April 2020 self-assessment of conformance 

to the PSIAS. 
 
11. The HoIAS has chosen not to review Quality Assurance & Improvement 

Programme (QAIP) until the Service is re-imagined as part of developing 
its ‘new normal’ state. 

 
12. Headlines from the report are: - 

a. Despite the impact of the coronavirus pandemic late in the financial 
year, the HoIAS opinion remained positive. 

b. Most assurance audits conducted returned substantial assurance 
ratings. Those where less assurance was given will continue to be 
subject to further audit scrutiny. 

112



 

c. Most work was completed by the date of this report, with a relatively 
small carry over. 

d. Days provided increased slightly, but this will continue to be a priority 
to be addressed with further recruitment in 2020-21. 

e. There was a budget underspend. 
f. Customer satisfaction remained positive. 
g. The HoIAS self-assessed that LCCIAS continues to generally conform 

to the PSIAS. 
 
Resource Implications 
 
13. The Internal Audit Service budget was underspent primarily due to not 

filling vacancies and long-term absences. This has not significantly 
affected coverage but will be rectified in 2020-21.  

 
Equal Opportunities Implications 
 
14. There are no specific equal opportunities implications contained within 

the annual summary of work undertaken.   
 
Recommendations 
 
15. That the Committee notes the Internal Audit Service Annual Report for 

2019-20. 
 

16. That a copy of the Annual Report be distributed to all members of the 
Council. 

 
Background Papers 
 
The Constitution of Leicestershire County Council 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1187&MId=6195&Ver=4
&Info=1 

 
Accounts and Audit Regulations (Amendment) 2015 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/contents/made 

 
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (revised from April 2017) 
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-
audit-standards 
 
Report of the Director of Corporate Resources – ‘Internal Audit Annual Plan 
2019-20’ – Corporate Governance Committee meeting on 10 May 2019 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=434&MId=5854&Ver=4 
 
Circulation under Sensitive Issues Procedure 
 
None 
 
 

113

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1187&MId=6195&Ver=4&Info=1
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1187&MId=6195&Ver=4&Info=1
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/contents/made
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=434&MId=5854&Ver=4


 

 
Officer to Contact 
 
Neil Jones, Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Services 
Tel: 0116 305 7629 
Email: neil.jones@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
List of Appendices 
  
Appendix Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2019-20 

 
Annex 1
  

The HoIAS Annual Opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the control environment 2019-20 
 

Annex 2
  

Summary of Internal Audit Service work supporting the HoIAS 
2019-20 opinion 
 

Annex 3  Summary self-assessment of conformance with PSIAS – May 
2020 
 

 

114

mailto:neil.jones@leics.gov.uk


  Appendix 

1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
           
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Neil Jones CPFA, Head of Internal Audit Service, 
Leicestershire County Council 

 

30th May 2020 

115



  Appendix 

2 

 

LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 

 
 
Background 

 
1. A common set of Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) was adopted 

in April 2013 and revised from April 2017. The PSIAS encompass the 
mandatory elements of the Global Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA Global) 
International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) as follows: - 

i. The Mission of Internal Audit  
ii. Definition of Internal Auditing 
iii. Core Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing  
iv. Code of Ethics 
v. International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal 

Auditing 
 

2. Additional requirements and interpretations for the local government sector 
have been inserted into the PSIAS and all principal local authorities must 
make provision for internal audit in accordance with the PSIAS. 
 

3. The objectives of the PSIAS are to: - 
a. define the nature of internal auditing within the UK public sector 
b. set principles for carrying out internal audit in the UK public sector 
c. establish a framework for providing internal audit services, which add 

value to the organisation, leading to improved organisational processes 
and operations 

d. establish the basis for the evaluation of internal audit performance and 
to drive improvement planning 
 

4. The PSIAS require the Head of Internal Audit Service (HoIAS) to provide an 
annual report to ‘the Board’ (Corporate Governance Committee) timed to 
support the annual governance statement. 
 

5. The PSIAS state that the annual report must include: 
a. an annual internal audit opinion on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the Council’s governance, risk and internal control 
frameworks (i.e. the control environment) and disclosure of any 
qualifications to the opinion, together with the reasons for the qualification 

b. a summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived (including 
reliance placed on work by other assurance bodies) and disclosure of any 
impairments or restriction in scope 

c. a comparison of the work actually undertaken with the work that was 
planned, including a summary of the performance of the internal audit 
function against its performance measures and targets 

d. a statement on conformance with the PSIAS and the results of the 
internal audit Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) 
and progress against any improvement plans resulting from a QAIP 
external assessment. 

e. any issues the HoIAS judges particularly relevant to the preparation of the 
annual governance statement 

116



  Appendix 

3 

 

 
The Annual Internal Audit Opinion on the Adequacy and Effectiveness of 
Leicestershire County Council’s Control Environment 
 
6. Annex 1 provides detail on how the annual internal audit opinion was 

formed, explains the types of audits undertaken, the components of the 
control environment and what it is designed to achieve, and provides a 
caveat on any opinions reached.  
 

7. Based on an objective assessment of the results of individual audits 
undertaken, actions by management thereafter, the professional judgement 
of the HoIAS in evaluating other related activities including the Council’s 
plans and responses for the earliest parts of the coronavirus, the following 
opinion has been reached: -  
 
Prior to the onset of the virus, the Council’s control environment was in 
a steady state. The build-up and immediate impact of the coronavirus 
was significant, of adverse nature and unique in character. However, no 
significant governance, risk management internal control failings have 
come to the HoIAS’ attention therefore reasonable assurance is given 
that the Council’s control environment overall has remained adequate 
and effective. 
 

8. At the time of writing this report, the outcomes of 6 audits hadn’t been 
concluded with management. It is unlikely there will be any change to the 
opinion. 
 

A summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived 
 
9. Annex 2 lists the audits and other work undertaken by LCCIAS during the 

year and where appropriate contains the individual audit opinion. 
 

10. A high proportion of the audits undertaken were ‘assurance’ type defined as 
‘An objective examination of evidence for the purpose of providing an 
independent assessment’. Most of the audits returned a ‘substantial 
assurance’ rating, meaning the controls in place to reduce exposure to risks 
to achieving the system's objectives were well designed and were being 
operated effectively. On the occasions when there were recommendation(s) 
to bring about improvements, they did not have a high importance (HI) rating 
signifying a particularly serious control weakness had been identified. 
 

11. Of the completed audits, 5 were graded ‘partial assurance’ rating. This was 
because either high importance (HI) recommendations (scored against the 
corporate risk management criteria) were identified denoting there was an 
absence of, or a weakness in control and achievement of the service’s 
objectives was open to material risk exposure; or whilst there were not any 
individual HI recommendations, the combined sum of the other 
recommendations was enough to grade the audit only partial assurance. HI 
recommendations/partial assurance ratings are reported in summary to 
Corporate Governance Committee (the Committee) and they stay in the 
Committee’s domain until the HoIAS has confirmed (by specific re-testing) 
that action has been implemented.  
 

117



  Appendix 

4 

 

12. Whilst there were only a small number of HI recommendations and the 
HoIAS is satisfied that senior management and Members pay rigorous 
attention to implementing them, he will actively monitor and report slippage in 
implementation which might indicate increasing pressures and strains on the 
control environment.  
  

13. A wide range of ‘consulting’ type audits was undertaken. These can be 
defined as, ‘Advisory and related client service activities, the nature and 
scope of which are intended to add value and improve an organisation’s 
governance, risk management and control processes’. 
 

14. LCCIAS audited 13 of the County’s maintained schools and results were very 
encouraging with all but one of them being graded at substantial assurance. 
 

15. LCCIAS either undertook or assisted (provided guidance and advice to 
management) with 10 prospective investigations of which 6 were completed. 
The outcomes of investigations are reported to the Committee only once they 
are concluded so as not to jeopardise any formal (disciplinary or Police) 
investigations. Activity on investigations is produced annually to meet the 
requirements of the Local Government Transparency Code.    
 

16. The PSIAS require that the HoIAS should disclose where reliance is placed 
on work by other assurance bodies. Nottingham City Council Internal Audit 
(NCCIA) provides the internal audit function for East Midlands Shared 
Services (EMSS). During the year NCCIA conducted (amongst others) audits 
of payroll and HR functions, accounts receivable and accounts payable 
transactions and governance. The Head of Internal Audit for NCCIA 
concluded that a “significant” level of assurance can be given that internal 
control systems were operating effectively within EMSS.  
 

17. A ‘potential impairment’ to LCCIAS’ independence and objectivity 
(responsibility for the corporate risk management framework) is declared in 
the Internal Audit Charter. The Charter will need to be reviewed and revised 
in 2020-21 considering PSIAS guidance on the role of the internal audit 
function in counter fraud activity. 

 
18. The HoIAS is also responsible for the compilation of the Annual Governance 

Statement and oversight of the insurance function and chairs a group 
specifically engaged in the Council’s property and occupants risk. Managing 
these functions gives the HoIAS greater insight into forming an opinion on 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment.  

 
 

118



  Appendix 

5 

 

A comparison of work undertaken with work planned including a summary of 
the performance of the internal audit function  
 
19. The tables below show performance both in terms of number of audits and 

days allocated. 
 
Table 1: Assignments completed/ongoing at 30 April 2020 
 
 Complete @ 30/4  Ongoing @ 30/4 

Assurance audits 44 6 

Consulting assignments 19 9 

Investigations - concluded 6 4 

Other control environment 5 1 

Assist other functions  12 2 

Total 86 22 

  
20. Internal audit plans are increasingly short-term statements of intent rather 

than guaranteed coverage and need to be flexible and retain contingency to 
adapt to changes in risk and priorities. The 2019-20 plan contained several 
potential areas for audit that for a variety of reasons didn’t come to fruition 
but were replaced. Only 6 assurance audits were ‘ongoing’ at 30 April 2020. 
Some resource has already been utilised in 2020-21 in completing these 
audits. 

 
21. Total combined assurance ‘productive’ days spent on work specifically 

relating to the County Council were slightly up on the year before. This was 
primarily due to utilising 3 x trainees and 2 x agency for various parts of the 
year 
 
Table 2: Resources used 1/4 2019 to 30/4/2020 (compares to previous) 
 
Function 
 

Previous 2019-20 
days 

 

+/- 

1. Audits (assurance, consulting, investigations) 813 860 47 

2. Other functions (risk, AGS, insurance) 177 187 10 

3. Corporate duties 79 104 25 

4. Assist other functions - redeployment 1 22 21 

Total 1,070 1,173 103 

 
22. The days provided across functions 1-3 was slightly over 8% above that in 

2018-19 and has allowed sufficient breadth of coverage to enable an overall 
positive opinion to be given on the control environment. Nevertheless, the 
HoIAS still considers this to be at the lower end of the scale considering the 
size of the organisation, its risks and the unknown continuing impact of the 
coronavirus. Conclusion of the service review and recruitment to vacancies 
remains vital but alongside any re-imagining of service delivery.  
 

23. Employee savings from the aforementioned vacancies and long-term 
absences which weren’t filled through more agency spend as originally 
anticipated, led to a budget underspend (£50k).  
 

24. Returns of audit satisfaction questionnaires remain low. Nevertheless, those 
being audited continue to rate service received and value added as ‘very 
satisfied’.  

119



  Appendix 

6 

 

 
25. The Service is still using two unique case management systems. However, 

one company has acquired the other and they are developing a single 
platform ready for launch in early 2020.  Nevertheless, the HoIAS can 
continue to provide assurance that there has been rigorous monitoring of due 
professional care and quality. 
 

26. The Service review was re-started with assistance from the Transformation 
Unit. However, significant changes will be required to determine a ‘new 
normal’ and so the scope of the review will be revisited to ensure it fully 
incorporate becoming more agile by using available technologies and pushing 
ahead on the use of a data analytics tools.   

 
 
A statement on conformance with the PSIAS and the results of the internal 
audit Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) 

 
 

27. The HoIAS has undertaken a short desk-top self-assessment of LCCIAS’s 
conformance to the PSIAS see Annex 3. In line with PSIAS Standard 1321, 
the HoIAS considers that the County Council’s internal audit activity generally 
conforms with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of 
Internal Auditing.  
 

28. PSIAS Standard 1322 requires the HoIAS to confirm that whether there were 
any significant deviations from the PSIAS. Whilst not ‘significant’ in terms of 
overall resource utilised, the impact of the coronavirus meant 6 audit staff 
were redeployed to operational services. Any future audits will need to be 
managed. Similarly, some audits were postponed, and outcomes delayed but 
this didn’t significantly affect the scope 
 

29. The HoIAS has not reviewed the service’s Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme (QAIP) since it will need to be evaluated in terms 
of any re-direction during recovery planning for the Service.  
 
 

Any issues the HoIAS judges particularly relevant to the preparation of the 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
  
30. The HoIAS has responsibility for overseeing the compilation of the AGS. As 

part of the process, a ‘governance group’ comprising the Director of Law & 
Governance, the Chief Financial Officer, the Head of Democratic Services 
and the Assistant Chief Executive and the HoIAS reviews and agree any 
significant governance issues that should be reported in the AGS.  
 

31. The redeployment of internal audit staff will be recorded in the 2019-20 AGS. 
  
             

Neil Jones CPFA 
Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Service 
LCCIAS 
 
30th May 2020. 

120



   

    

 

 
Annex 1 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Neil Jones CPFA, Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Service, 

Leicestershire County Council 

 

30th May 2020 

121



   

    

 

Background 
 
The Head of Internal Audit and Assurance Service, Corporate Resources Department 
undertakes the role and responsibilities of the County Council’s Head of Internal Audit Service 
(HoIAS). The HoIAS manages Leicestershire County Council’s Internal Audit Service (LCCIAS). 
LCCIAS has been externally assessed as generally conforming to the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards (the PSIAS) revised from April 2017. The PSIAS require the HoIAS to give an 
annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s control environment 
(its framework of governance, risk management and control). The PSIAS definition of the 
control environment is found at the end of this document, along with further explanation from 
the Institute of Internal Auditors about what an effective system of internal control facilitates.  
 
The HoIAS annual opinion is macro-assurance over a defined period (financial year 2019-20) 
and combines: 
 

 An objective assessment based on the results of individual audits undertaken and 
actions taken by management thereafter. Individual internal audit opinions on what level 
of assurance can be given as to whether risk is being identified and adequately 
managed are formed by applying systematic grading to remove any elements of 
subjectivity. Annex 2 lists the audits and other work undertaken during the year and 
where appropriate the individual audit opinion. Individual audit engagements provide 
targeted micro-assurance. 

 

 Professional judgement of the HoIAS based on his knowledge, experience and 
evaluation of other related activities. This provides a holistic, strategic insight into the 
County Council’s control environment.  
 

 Specifically for 2019-20, the HoIAS’ views on the Council’s responses to the coronavirus 
during the months of February and March 2020. 

 
The results of the above, when combined, form the basis for the HoIAS opinion on the overall 
adequacy of the Council’s control environment (see definitions). However, the caveat at the end 
of the document explains what internal control cannot do, i.e. no system of internal control can 
provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, nor can LCCIAS give 
absolute assurance, especially given its limited resource. The work of LCCIAS is intended only 
to provide reasonable assurance on the adequacy of the control environment based on the 
work undertaken and known facts.  
 
Governance related internal audit work 
 
A wide range of assurance and consulting audits (see definitions) and maintained school audits 
were undertaken (coverage includes school governance). Overall, recommendations were to 
improve governance i.e. not to have to establish it. 
 
The HoIAS attends the Corporate Governance Committee (the Committee) to present plans 
and reports on the internal audit activity, and other reports (in his wider role) on risk 
management (including property & occupants risk, counter fraud and insurance) and the Annual 
Governance Statement. Overseeing these other functions enables him to gauge Director and 
Member level governance at first hand. The HoIAS reviews other reports presented to the 
Committee and monitors Members’ engagement as part of his holistic governance assessment.  
 

122



   

    

 

The HoIAS is part of a senior management group also comprising the Director of Law & 
Governance, the Chief Financial Officer, the Head of Democratic Services and the Assistant 
Chief Executive which each year reviews the draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS).  
 
The HoIAS has regular discussions with the Chief Executive, Directors and particularly the 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the Monitoring Officer (MO) on governance issues and 
related internal audit aspects. The HoIAS attends Corporate Management Team when required. 
 
Covid-19 specific 
 
The HoIAS observed the Council’s governance responses to the coronavirus. He took 
assurances from the Monitoring Officer over proposals for the Chief Executive taking urgent 
actions and from the reports to Cabinet in late March and April, explaining the wider 
governance arrangements introduced planning and governance arrangements for the multi-
agency response and interim arrangements for Council meetings pending the introduction of 
legislation to allow virtual meetings. There is ample evidence to show good communication of 
plans and responses to staff, management and Members.        
 
Risk management related internal audit work 
 
Most audits planned and conducted were ‘risk based’ i.e. ensuring that the Council’s 
management identifies, evaluates and manages risk to achieving its objectives i.e. ensuring 
controls are in place to reduce risk exposure. 
 
Internal Audit Service provides challenge and advice to the completion of Information Security 
Risk Assessments (ISRA). Information and technology (I&T) plays a critical role for all services 
provided by the Council. Therefore, it is vital that I&T risks are effectively identified, assessed, 
managed and reviewed at the appropriate times. 
 
Other risk management work was undertaken in consulting audits and developments to the 
overall control environment.  
 
Overall, recommendations related to improving risk management i.e. not to have to establish it.  
 
The HoIAS continues to have responsibility for countering the risk of fraud and the overall 
administration, monitoring and reporting of the corporate risk management framework. The 
PSIAS require that this ‘potential impairment’ to independence and objectivity for the HoIAS is 
declared in the Internal Audit Charter.  
 
Covid-19 specific 
 
The HoIAS observed the Council’s risk management responses to the coronavirus. He took 
assurances from the speed of implementing service and workforce resilience and reviewing 
business continuity arrangements (including within the Internal Audit Service). Further 
assurances have been gained by observing that risk was being thoroughly considered (in terms 
of health & safety, legal and insurance) whilst planning and taking decisions to quickly design 
and implement a wide range of alternative delivery options. In his role overseeing the Council’s 
risk management framework, he has been monitoring the planning for controlling recovery risks 
and the information being provided to mitigate fraud risk which has increased during the 
coronavirus period.       
 
 

123



   

    

 

 
Financial (and I&T) Controls related internal audit work 
 
Several assurance audits were undertaken that were predominantly a financial or I&T control 
theme. Almost all returned substantial assurance, and all grants audited met their conditions to 
be certified. 
 
In addition, maintained school audits were undertaken where audit coverage includes school 
financial control. All but one of those audits returned substantial assurance. 
 
Covid-19 specific 
 
The rapid onset of the coronavirus significantly impacted the Council’s ICT services, resulting in 
a massive effort within a very short time to source and build laptops to enable staff to work at 
home and stabilise the network with a range of solutions. The planned annual key ICT controls 
audit would normally begin just at the time the virus was impacting. Ultimately the audit had to 

be postponed, but the Chief Digital ＆ Information Officer has allowed some assurances to be 

sought on redeployment of kit, cyber security arrangements/monitoring, security of agile 
working, access to systems where staff are being redeployed and capacity management.  
 
The HoIAS wrote to all management acknowledging that whilst the primary focus must be on 
critical service delivery, managers still had a responsibility to ensure that the council’s 
underlying control environment didn’t diminish to the point where it became ineffective and a 
threat to future organisational stability. The Service has been involved in reviewing and advising 
on controls in alternative service delivery models. 
 
The Director of Corporate Resources had promptly issued guidance to managing some of the 
financial scenarios that LCC was likely to encounter for the duration of the Covid situation which 
included corporate approval limits for decisions on new expenditure areas or abortive costs of 
cancelled projects. He also developed a system for emergency procurements in line with 
Cabinet Office guidance which requires full justification and authorisation by the appropriate 
Commercial Specialist, Chief Officer and if required the Director of Law & Governance. The 
Chief Executive installed controls to mitigate the risks of fraud being committed against the 
Community Fund.     
 
HoIAS opinion: Prior to the onset of the virus, the Council’s control environment was in a 
steady state. The build-up and immediate impact of the coronavirus was significant, of 
adverse nature and unique in character. However, no significant governance, risk 
management internal control failings have come to the HoIAS’ attention therefore 
reasonable assurance is given that the Council’s control environment overall has 
remained adequate and effective. 
 
Other assurances – East Midlands Shared Service (EMSS) 
 
Internal audit activity for EMSS is the responsibility of the Head of Internal Audit (HoIA) at 
Nottingham City Council. For 2019-20 the HoIA concluded, ‘On the basis of audit work 
undertaken during the 2019-20 financial year, covering financial systems, risk and governance, 
the Head of Internal Audit (HoIA) at Nottingham City Council concluded that a “significant” 
level of assurance could be given that internal control systems are operating effectively within 
EMSS and that no significant issues had been discovered’. 
 

124



   

    

 

Definitions 
 
The revised 2017 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the PSIAS) define the following: - 
 
Assurance audit 
 
An objective examination of evidence for the purpose of providing an independent assessment 
on governance, risk management and control processes for the organisation. Examples may 
include financial, performance, compliance, system security and due diligence engagements. 
 
Consulting audit 
 
Advisory and related client service activities, the nature and scope of which are agreed with the 
client, are intended to add value and improve an organisation’s governance, risk management 
and control processes without the internal auditor assuming management responsibility. 
Examples include counsel, advice, facilitation and training. 
 
Governance 
 
The combination of processes and structures implemented by the board to inform, direct, 
manage and monitor the activities of the organisation toward the achievement of its objectives. 
 
Risk Management 
 
A process to identify, assess, manage and control potential events or situations to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the organisation’s objectives. 
 
Control 
 
Actions taken by management, the board and other parties to manage risk and increase the 
likelihood that established objectives and goals will be achieved. Management plans, organises 
and directs the performance of sufficient actions to provide reasonable assurance that 
objectives and goals will be achieved. 
 
Control Environment 
 
The attitude and actions of the board and management regarding the importance of control 
within the organisation. The control environment provides the discipline and structure for the 
achievement of the primary objectives of the system of internal control. It includes the following:  
 

 Integrity and ethical values 

 Management’s philosophy and operating style 

 Organisational structure. 

 Assignment of authority and responsibility. 

 Human resource policies and practices. 

 Competence of personnel. 
 
The IIA defines the control environment as the foundation on which an effective system of 
internal control is built and operated in an organisation that strives to achieve its strategic 
objectives, provide reliable financial reporting to internal and external stakeholders, operate its 
business efficiently and effectively, comply with all applicable laws and regulations, and 
safeguard its assets.                                                                              

125



   

    

 

Caveat 
 
The Financial Reporting Council in an Auditing Practices Board briefing paper, ‘Providing 
Assurance on the Effectiveness of Internal Control’ explains what internal control cannot do, 
namely: -    
 
‘A sound system of internal control reduces, but cannot eliminate, the possibility of poor 
judgement in decision making, human error, control processes being deliberately circumvented 
by employees or others, management overriding controls and the occurrence of unforeseen 
circumstances. A sound system of internal control therefore provides reasonable, but not 
absolute assurance that an organisation will not be hindered in achieving its objectives, or in the 
orderly and legitimate conduct of its business, by circumstances which may reasonably be 
foreseen. A system of internal control cannot, however, provide protection with certainty against 
an organisation failing to meet its objectives, or all material errors, losses, fraud or breaches of 
laws and regulations’. 

126



  Annex 2 

1 

 

Summary of Internal Audit Service work supporting the HoIAS opinion 2019-20 

Assurance audits 

 

Department Entity Final report (or 

position at 30/4/20) 

Opinion HI Rec’n 

Consolidated Risk Data Washing of Procurement Data (Serious & 

Organised Crime) 

Complete Full No 

Adults & Communities Learning Disabilities – Transitions from children’s 
complex care to adults 
 

Complete Substantial No 

Adults & Communities Residents' Money - Managing the Finances of 

Vulnerable People 

Complete Substantial No 

Adults & Communities Target Operating Model – Phase One Complete Substantial No 

Children & Family Services All Saints C of E Primary School Complete Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Long Whatton C of E Primary School Complete Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Orchard Community Primary School Complete Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Warren Hills Community Primary School Complete Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Cossington Primary School Complete Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Latimer Primary School Complete Substantial  No 

Children & Family Services Hemington Primary School  Complete Substantial  No 

127



  Annex 2 

2 

 

Children & Family Services Snarestone Primary School Complete Substantial  No 

Children & Family Services Burbage CE Junior School Complete Substantial No 

Children & Family Services St Cuthbert’s CE Primary School Complete Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Highgate Community Primary School Complete Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Hugglescote Community Primary School Complete Substantial No 

Children & Family Services School Admissions Complete Substantial No 

Children & Family Services St John the Baptist CE Primary School  Complete Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk Data Washing of Procurement Data Complete Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk Information Security Incident Management Complete Substantial  No 

Consolidated Risk  GDPR Implementation  Complete Substantial  No 

Consolidated Risk  Key ICT Controls 18/19  Complete Substantial  No  

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud - Overtime Payments Complete Substantial  No 

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud - Purchase Cards Complete Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk Mandatory Training Complete Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk  Subject Access Requests Complete Substantial  No  

Consolidated Risk Key Financial Systems – Assurance on the Control 

Functions 

Complete Substantial No 

128



  Annex 2 

3 

 

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud – Card Access System Complete Substantial No 

Corporate Resources Treasury Management and Investments Complete Substantial No 

Environment & Transport Re-cycling & Household Waste Sites - Income Complete Substantial No 

Public Health Effectiveness of Programme Delivery Team Complete Substantial No 

Adults & Communities Fee Review Implementation – Residential Care Complete Partial Yes 

Children & Family Services Burbage CE Infant School Complete Partial Yes 

Children & Family Services Early Years Funding Complete Partial Yes 

Consolidated Risk  Information Security Awareness and Training  Complete Partial Yes 

Consolidated Risk  Records Management Audit  Complete Partial  Yes 

Children & Family Services Payment by Results Claims for Supporting 

Leicestershire Families (SLF) – 4x claims audited 

Complete Certified No  

Environment & Transport Grant – Local Transport Capital Block Funding 
(Integrated Transport & Highway Maintenance)  

Complete Certified No 

Environment & Transport Grant - National Productivity Investment Fund-Hinckley 
Hub 

Complete Certified No 

Environment & Transport Grant - Highways Maintenance Additional Funding  Complete Certified No 

Environment & Transport Bus Service Operators’ Grant (BSOG) Complete Certified No 

Consolidated Risk  ICT External Hosting  Draft issued  Awaiting client 

response  

TBA 

Consolidated Risk Rights of Audit in Procurement Contracts Draft issued  Awaiting client TBA 

129



  Annex 2 

4 

 

response  

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud – Gifts and Hospitality Registers Draft issued  Awaiting client 

response  

TBA 

Consolidated Risk Faster Payments Draft Pending  TBA TBA 

Consolidated Risk Request for Payment Procedures Draft Pending TBA TBA 

Consolidated Risk Request for Invoice Procedures Draft Pending TBA TBA 

 

130



  Annex 2 

5 

 

Consulting audits 

Department Entity Position at 30/4/20) 

Adults & Communities Advice to the protection of service users’ property working party Ongoing 

Adults & Communities Co-ordination of the Council’s approach to evaluating the benefits of using 

CIFAS’1 Protecting the Vulnerable (PtV) service to further safeguard, 

financially, service users without mental capacity for whom the Council holds 

appointeeship or deputyship. 

1 CIFAS - a not-for-profit fraud prevention membership organisation 

Complete 

Chief Executives Coroners Awaiting client response to 

draft report 

Consolidated Risk Payments made using a generic element code Complete 

Consolidated Risk PSN - In March 2019, LCC obtained its PSN certificate valid until April 2020. 

Advice has been given by Internal Audit through the PSN working Group. 

Ongoing  

Consolidated Risk Tethering – linking a lap top to a mobile phone for internet Complete 

Consolidated Risk Supplier Code of Conduct 

- review documentation and processes 

- review the update of the contract register which will lead to targeted 

engagement with suppliers. 

Awaiting client response to 

draft report 

Consolidated Risk Continue to represent the County Council on the Audit Committee of the East 

Midlands Public Services Network  

Ongoing 

131



  Annex 2 

6 

 

Corporate Resources ISRA - Eventbrite (Live Solution) Complete 

Corporate Resources ISRA Notify.Gov – Blue Badge Service  Complete 

Corporate Resources  ISRA – The Big Word (Language Services)  Complete 

Corporate Resources  ISRA – Multi-Functional Device and Print Management Software  Complete 

Corporate Resources ISRA – Caseware IDEA (data extraction and analysis tool) Complete 

Corporate Resources  ISRA – FirmStep Reporting Complete 

Corporate Resources ISRA – FirmStep Replacement CRM Complete 

Corporate Resources  ISRA – Speed Admin (Music Services Management System)  Complete 

Corporate Resources  ISRA – Body Worn Cameras (Reveal Media) Complete 

Corporate Resources  ISRA – Thornton Hope Debt Collection Complete 

Corporate Resources  ISRA – BYOP and O365 Applications  Complete 

Corporate Resources  ISRA - Exchange 2016/Hybrid  Awaiting final sign off  

Corporate Resources  ISRA – Evo Claim Insurance System  Awaiting final sign off  

Corporate Resources  ISRA – HTTPS Scanning  Awaiting final sign off  

Corporate Resources  ISRA - Ulysses (UDMS) Scheduling and Connected Care Mobile Solution Ongoing  

Corporate Resources Country Parks – Cash Collection Car Park Income Complete 

Corporate Resources  Review Policies and Procedures: 

 Surveillance Policy  

Complete 

132



  Annex 2 

7 

 

 Surveillance Acceptable Use Policy  

 Buying and installing guidance (Surveillance)   

 Surveillance requests guidance (internal and external)  

 Flowz Information Asset register solution. 
 
 

 

 

 

Corporate Resources Fit for the Future Project 

- Liaise with the Project Team and Nottingham City Council internal 

auditors 

- Reviewed Organisational Impact Assessments to determine what 

impact any process/system changes will have on the Council’s control 

environment 

- attend monthly Information Security meetings 

- Meetings with Programme Manager to scope internal audit work in line 

with the go-live dates 

- Ad hoc control advice to the Project Team e.g. Approval of Requests for 

Payments/Requests for Invoices, Credit Memos 

- on-going work in respect of User Acceptance Testing (financials) and 

Integration related Information Security Risk Assessments 

- Ad hoc control advice is given to the Project Team e.g. Audit Trail 

requirements etc. 

- Ongoing input into project related ISRAs. 

Ongoing 

Corporate Resources Bomgar Solution – advice given regarding the short-term ‘roll-out’ of the remote Complete  

133



  Annex 2 

8 

 

support solution software to School Financial Advisors. 

Corporate Resources  Attendance at the Information Assurance Group 
 
Advice provided by ICT Auditor on: - 

- ‘Flowz’ system for storage of information asset registers 
- Database Rationalisation 
- DocuSign (electronic signatures) application  

 
Provide IT Assurances during Covid-19  

Complete  

 

134



  Annex 2 

9 

 

Undertaking or aiding with unplanned ‘investigations’ 

Department Entity   Outcome 

Adults & Communities Staff member allegedly encouraging pushing service users to use a firm of 

accountants to manage their money, which the staff member had an interest in.   

Not proven but declaration 

of interest registered. 

Adults & Communities Advice to department surrounding allegations of thefts from SUs in supporting 

lodging.  

Police advised but no 

further action taken. 

Adults & Communities Review of financial records and provided advice to department surrounding 

concerns at an independently run community library. 

Recommendations for 

improvement 

Children & Family Services Advise on LCC responsibilities relating to allegations of financial abuse of a 

vulnerable service user. 

No further action required 

Children & Family Services Whistleblowing complaint about a (non-LCC) community centre, but for which LCC 

does provide some funding in respect of early years provision. 

No further action required.  

Complainant signposted to 

the prime regulator for the 

centre, the Charity 

Commission. 

Corporate Resources Allegations of price rigging in a framework contract Referred to Competitions 

& Markets Authority to 

investigate 

 

135



  Annex 2 

10 

 

Other control environment/assurance work 

Department Entity Final report (or position 

at 30/4/20) 

Governance Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 

- finalised for insertion in the Annual Financial Statements 

- Followed up of development areas identified in the AGS 2018/19 to ensure 

that action had been taken as agreed. 

Complete 

Governance Local Code of Corporate Governance 

- reviewed and updated 

- Submitted to Cabinet and Council 

- Promoted to staff via DMTs by HoIAS & Director of Law and Governance  

Complete 

Governance Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 

- Review, update and issue Directors’ governance self-assessments 

- Collate results and review for completeness and evaluation  

Complete 

Consolidated Risk Risk management 

- Prepared detailed Risk Management Health Check Action Plan following 

the consultant’s report 

- Coordinated Corporate Risk Management Group meetings including 

developing a Collaboration Space 

Complete 

136



  Annex 2 

11 

 

- Review/revision of the Risk Management Policy and Strategy 

- Collation of risk related information from all Departments and preparation 

of risk management update reports to Chief Officers and Corporate 

Governance Committee 

- Updated the Risk Management pages on the Intranet and improved 

communication of approved Risk Management Policy and Strategy via 

Managers Digest, Departmental Management Teams. 

- Initial scoping meetings to develop E Learning Tool for risk management 

Consolidated Risk  Property & Occupants Risk Management Group – continuing work on fire safety 

and building and occupants security. Will align with work proposed as part of the 

workplace and workforce recovery cell. 

Ongoing  

Consolidated Risk Counter fraud 

- Coordinated corporate counter fraud comms launched during International 

Fraud Awareness Week (17th to 23rd November 2019).  This included a 

poster campaign raising awareness in a number of key areas, e.g. 

whistleblowing, advice on procurement fraud risk and continued efforts to 

promote mandatory fraud awareness e-learning.  In addition, safe buying 

on the internet advice was issued to employees as part of our wider ‘good 

employer’ relations with staff to coincide with Black Friday. 

- Review/revision of the Fraud Awareness e-learning module. 

Complete  

 

 

 

137



  Annex 2 

12 

 

Work assisting other functions 

Department Entity   Position at 30/4/20 

Adults & Communities  Provided advice in relation to risk management framework and in particular 

support the action plan developed to help improve the quality, consistency and 

effectiveness of risk management in A&C. 

Complete  

Chief Executives Department Assisted the update of the Annual Departmental Business Planning Guidance 

2021/21 regarding Risk Management. 

Complete 

Corporate Resources Work Experience Students (3) – Provided overviews of audit (both internal and 

external); explained the importance of controls in an organisation and counter 

fraud work  

Complete 

Corporate Resources Assisted at Departmental Management Team workshop to review corporate risks 

owned by the Department 

Complete 

Corporate Resources Advice to Commissioning Support Unit regarding allegations of job-rotation on a 

framework. 

Complete 

Corporate Resources Advice to Human Resources regarding a conflict of interest issue surrounding an 

employee. 

Complete 

Corporate Resources Input to the Business Partner Team (C&FS) regarding: - 

 training sessions proposed for schools in effective financial management; 

 a ‘best practice for schools’ finance’ document currently underdeveloped 

. 

Complete 

Corporate Resources Review the process for managing high ranking risks by creation of Action Plans – 
rollout completed in Corporate Resources, and where relevant other Departments 
to follow.  

Complete 

138



  Annex 2 

13 

 

Corporate Resources Advice, including on internal controls (e.g. car park cash collection), health & 

safety etc. regarding the Council’s aspirations to set up weekly running events at 

Leicestershire’s Country Parks.  

Complete  

Corporate Resources – 

redeployment of internal 

audit staff 

As part of the Department’s covid-19 emergency response, 6 Internal Audit 

Service staff were redeployed from the end of March/early April to assist critical 

functions: - 

 Pensions Service – year end; refund contributions; updating records 

 Adult social care payments - direct payments; deceased notifications; 

small balance write-offs; residential care deceased/discharged log                                                                           

Ongoing 

Corporate Resources – IT 

assurances 

IT Assurances during Covid 19 to include controls on redeployment of kit, cyber 
security arrangements/monitoring, security of agile working, access to systems 
where staff are being redeployed, use of SCCM, capacity management etc. 
 

Ongoing  

Environment & Transport Assisting with quarterly Highways stores stock check.  Complete 

All Departments Provision of support to all Departmental Management Teams (in conjunction with 
their assigned risk champions) to review their Tableau results (arising from the 
Risk Management Health Check) and take necessary actions to make 
improvements in any areas with the least positive responses, to ensure that the 
key issues that arose from the internal online risk management survey are 
addressed. 
 

Complete  

All departments The Internal Audit Service has provided management with reviews of planned (or 
already implemented by necessity) changes to alternative service delivery 
methods and provided advice on fraud mitigation, for example: - 
 

 Review of Business Continuity plans 

 Communities Fund – risks, controls and proactive counter fraud advice to 

Complete 

139



  Annex 2 

14 

 

the Chief Executive’s & Corporate Resources Departments regarding the 

distribution of emergency grant funding through the newly-established fund 

 E&T (Notice Processing Unit) - confidentiality when working at home 

 Pension Fund - temporary (and permanent) work arounds re. electronic 

authorisation rather than 'wet' signatures on payment documents 

 Scope audit of Schools Facing Exceptional Costs during COVID-19 

 Advice to the Chief Executive’s Department regarding emerging fraud risks 

coming from Covid-19 that could impact on normal LCC funding channels, 

e.g. Shire Grant programme. 

 Dissemination of fraud advice, predominantly regarding Covid-19, to the 

Communications Team for onward publishing to staff and managers.  

Informal fraud advice to staff through Yammer and Sharepoint.  Ad hoc 

fraud advice to key areas on key topics, e.g. mandate fraud, supply chain 

fraud. 

 

140



  Annex 2 

15 

 

Training, development and networks attended over the period 

CIPFA Better Governance Forum  

 Summer Internal Audit Update 

 Assurance Over Financial Resilience and Service Sustainability 

 Internal Audit Professional Update 

 Sustainability & Governance 

 Good Governance In Local Government 2020 Professional Update 

 Auditing Risk Management, Auditing Digital Services, Oversight of outsourced arrangements and maintaining robust internal controls 

 

Institute of Internal Auditors – Regional Conference 

 Fraud Leadership & Corporate Culture, Whistleblowing, Using Technology, Audit & Risk Awards, Risk Management Framework for 

Audit Planning, Data Analytics, High Quality Reporting  

 

Midlands Counties Heads of Internal Audit Groups 

Management Group  

 NAO framework to review programmes; IIA Three Lines of Defence consultation; Third party risks; CIPFA statement on the role of the 

HoIAS in the public sector; DfE Transparency in maintained schools consultation; IIA Risk in Focus 

 Benchmarking areas of IA focus; the IIA ambition model 

141



  Annex 2 

16 

 

 Annual Workplan, High risk areas, IIA guidance on auditing climate strategy 

 

Fraud Sub Group 

 Fraud landscape and recent developments, Insider Fraud, International Fraud Awareness Week, National Fraud Initiative, School Case 

Study, Fighting Fraud & Corruption Locally (guest speaker), Procurement Fraud, Blue Badge Fraud, Investigatory Powers Act, Fraud 

Risk Assessment, Round-the-table summary of recent cases 

 IA facilitated a session on how Leicestershire has used International Fraud Awareness Week in previous years to give important 

messages to staff regarding fraud.  Raising awareness of fraud is a key defence and we discussed our digitised approach to this. 

 Fraud Risk Assessment Training – a ‘masterclass’ giving thoughtful insight into how to conduct an effective fraud risk assessment within 

an authority.  This will lead to a change in how we approach our biennial fraud risk assessment at the time of next refresh. 

 

ICT Audit Group 
 

 GDPR and cybersecurity conference 

 Governance; Data Analytics – tools & strategies; ICT Audit plans & resources; Emerging issues e.g. Microsoft Apps, use of SharePoint 
 

 Data analytics – formed sub groups (Leicestershire representative leading on financial systems); IT resources; technical ICT incidents 
especially spoofing 
 

 Points of Practice raised by Leicestershire on other counties approach to IT assurances during Covid-19 
 

 

 

142



  Annex 2 

17 

 

Local Authorities Chief Auditors Network 

 Internal Audit Code of Practice; Obtaining value from contract management; Introduction to the work of CIFAS (a not-for-profit fraud 

prevention membership organisation) 

 The Institute of Internal Auditors Ambition Model; Horizon Scanning including workshop on risks in the audit plan; Commercialism; 

CIPFA Financial Management Code and the Financial Resilience Index - the role of Internal Audit 

 
Local Audit Quality Forum (operated by Public Sector Audit Appointments – appoint the Council’s external auditor) 

 Outcomes of (problems with) 2018-19 audits; audit committee developments; training video; revised Code of Audit Practice update 

 

East Midlands Risk Management Group 

• Attendance at Regional Event 

 

Mandatory Training 

 SIMS Financial System - All staff involved in school visits took part in a half day introduction to the above package 

 Managing Remote Teams Training 

 

143



T
his page is intentionally left blank



LCCIAS –Summary Self-Assessment Conformance to PSIAS – April 2020    Annex 3 
 

 

Requirement 
 

GC PC DNC Notes supporting assessment at 29th May 2020 

Mission of internal audit Y    

Definition of Internal Auditing Y    

Core Principles Y   QAIP records the need to better demonstrate quality and 
continuous improvement 

Code of Ethics 
 

Y 
 

  Review of self-assessments to be undertaken to reflect remote 
working practices developed under covid-19 

1000 Purpose, Authority and Responsibility 
 

Y   All Charters will need to be reviewed in terms of access to 
records, building and staff and build in remote auditing 
protocols 

1100 Independence and Objectivity 
 

Y    

1110 Organisational Independence 
 

Y   6 auditors have been re-deployed so there will need to be 
safeguards built in to ensure they do not audit areas they have 
been involved in 

1111 Direct Interaction with the Board 
 

Y    

1120 Individual Objectivity 
 

Y    

1130 Impairment to Independence or Objectivity 
 

Y    

1200 Proficiency and Due Professional Care Y    

1210 Proficiency 
 

Y   ICT audit resource is being trained up internally  

1220 Due Professional Care 
 

Y    

1230 Continuing Professional Development 
 

Y    

1300 Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 
 

Y   Designed & implemented but needs updates on actions  

1310 Requirements of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Y    

145



LCCIAS –Summary Self-Assessment Conformance to PSIAS – April 2020    Annex 3 
 

 

Programme 
 

1311 Internal Assessments 
 

Y    
 

1312 External Assessments 
 

Y   EQA was completed in April 2018 ‘generally conforms’. 

1320 Reporting on the Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme 
 

Y   Needs to be re-imagined in terms of new normal 

1321 Use of ‘Conforms with the International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing’ 
 

Y    

1322 Disclosure of Non-conformance 
 

Y    

4 Performance Standards 
 

Y    

2000 Managing the Internal Audit Activity 
 

Y    

2010 Planning 
 

Y   Planning for 2020-21 has been disrupted by the coronavirus. 
Investigating alternative planning approaches. 

2020 Communication and Approval 
 

Y    

2030 Resource Management 
 

Y   Openly reported resource issues and plans during year  

2040 Policies and Procedures 
 

Y   Audit manual needs updating to incorporate remote working 
procedures 

2050 Coordination 
 

Y    

2060 Reporting to Senior Management and the Board 
 

Y    

2070 External Service Provider and Organisational Responsibility for 
Internal Auditing 

Y   I always inform City and Fire 

146



LCCIAS –Summary Self-Assessment Conformance to PSIAS – April 2020    Annex 3 
 

 

2100 Nature of Work Y    

2110 Governance Y    

2120 Risk Management 
 

Y    

2130 Control 
 

Y    

2200 Engagement Planning 
 

Y    

2210 Engagement Objectives 
 

Y   Need a further understanding of Value for money criteria 

2220 Engagement Scope 
 

Y   Need a further understanding of significant consulting 
opportunities requirements especially in light of the change to 
‘quick response’ audits 

2240 Engagement Work Programme 
 

Y    

2300 Performing the Engagement 
 

Y   Adopting IIA principles and guidance on remote working  

2310 Identifying Information 
 

Y    

2320 Analysis and Evaluation 
 

Y   Training on data analytics quarter 1 – should see more rollout 

2330 Documenting Information 
 

Y    

2340 Engagement Supervision 
 

Y    

2400 Communicating Results  
 

Y    

2410 Criteria for Communicating 
 

Y    

2420 Quality of Communications 
 

Y    

2421 Errors and Omissions Y    

147



LCCIAS –Summary Self-Assessment Conformance to PSIAS – April 2020    Annex 3 
 

 

 

2430 Use of ‘Conducted in Conformance with the International 
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing’ 

Y    

2431 Engagement Disclosure of Non-conformance Y    

2440 Disseminating Results 
 

Y    

2450 Overall Opinion 
 

Y    

2500 Monitoring Progress 
 

Y   
 

 

2600 Communicating the Acceptance of Risks 
 

Y    

 
Explanations of ‘conformance’ 
 
GC – “Generally Conforms” means the assessor has concluded that the relevant structures, policies, and procedures of the activity, as well as the processes by 
which they are applied, comply with the requirements of the individual Standard or element of the Code of Ethics in all material respects. For the sections and 
major categories, this means that there is general conformity to a majority of the individual Standards or elements of the Code of Ethics, and at least partial 
conformity to the others, within the section/category. There may be significant opportunities for improvement, but these should not represent situations where the 
activity has not implemented the Standards or the Code of Ethics, has not applied them effectively, or has not achieved their stated objectives. As indicated above, 
general conformance does not require complete/perfect conformance, the ideal situation, “successful practice,” etc. 
 
PC – “Partially Conforms” means the evaluator has concluded that the activity is making good-faith efforts to comply with the requirements of the individual 
Standard or element of the Code of Ethics, section, or major category, but falls short of achieving some major objectives. These will usually represent significant 
opportunities for improvement in effectively applying the Standards or Code of Ethics and/or achieving their objectives. Some deficiencies may be beyond the 
control of the activity and may result in recommendations to senior management or the board of the organisation. 
 
DNC – “Does Not Conform” means the evaluator has concluded that the activity is not aware of, is not making good-faith efforts to comply with, or is failing to 
achieve many/all of the objectives of the individual Standard or element of the Code of Ethics, section, or major category. These deficiencies will usually have a 
significant negative impact on the activity’s effectiveness and its potential to add value to the organisation. These may also represent significant opportunities for 
improvement, including actions by senior management or the board. 
 
Neil Jones 

148



LCCIAS –Summary Self-Assessment Conformance to PSIAS – April 2020    Annex 3 
 

 

Head of Internal Audit Service  
Leicestershire County Council 
26th April 2019 

149



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 12 JUNE 2020 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE PROGRESS REPORT 
 

 
Purpose of Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to: - 
 

a. provide a summary of work conducted during the period 18 January to 
29 May 2020; 

b. report on progress with implementing high importance 
recommendations; 

c. provide information on how the coronavirus has affected the Internal 
Audit Service 

d. approach to preparing the internal audit plan for 2020-21  
 

 
Background 
 

2. Under the County Council’s Constitution, the Committee is required to monitor 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit function, which is provided 
by Leicestershire County Council’s Internal Audit Service (LCCIAS).  To do 
this, the Committee receives periodic reports on progress against the annual 
Internal Audit Plan. 
   

3. Most planned audits undertaken are of an ‘assurance’ type, which requires 
undertaking an objective examination of evidence to reach an independent 
opinion on whether risk is being mitigated.  Other planned audits are of a 
‘consulting’ type, which are primarily advisory and guidance to management.  
These add value, for example, by commenting on the effectiveness of controls 
designed before implementing a new system.  Also, unplanned ‘investigation’ 
type audits may be undertaken.  Internal audit staff also undertake other 
control environment related work. 
 

Summary of progress against the Internal Audit Plan 2019-20 and reactive work 
begun in 2020-21 
 

4. Appendix 1 provides a summary of work undertaken between 18 January to 
29 May 2020.   
 

 
151 Agenda Item 12



 
 

5. For assurance audits (pages 1 and 2 of Appendix 1) an ‘opinion’ is given, i.e. 
what level of assurance can be given that material risks are being managed.  
There are usually four levels: full; substantial; partial; and little.  ‘Partial’ ratings 
are normally given when the auditor has reported at least one high importance 
recommendation, which would be reported to this Committee and a follow up 
audit would ensue to confirm action had been implemented.  Occasionally, the 
auditor might report a number of recommendations that individually are not 
graded high importance but collectively would require a targeted follow up to 
ensure improvements have been made. 
 

6. LCCIAS also undertakes consulting/advisory type audits (pages 3 and 4).  
Where these incur a reasonable amount of resource, they are also included. 
Examples include advice, commentary on management’s intended control 
design and framework and potential implications of changes to systems, 
processes and policies.  
 

7. Pages 5 to 7 of Appendix 1 provides information on: - 
 

a. Where LCCIAS either undertakes itself or aids others with unplanned 
investigations.  These are not reported to the Committee until the 
outcome is known.  This period, three investigations were concluded. 

b. ‘Other control environment/assurance work’, which gives a flavour of 
where internal auditors are utilised to challenge and improve 
governance, risk management and internal control processes which 
ultimately strengthens the overall control environment 

c. where LCCIAS auditors are utilised to undertake work assisting other 
functions 

 
For this report, further detail is provided on examples of ‘b’ & ‘c’, due to the 
effect of the coronavirus on the Internal Audit Service. See paragraph 11 
onwards. 

. 
8. In order to remain effective, LCCIAS staff regularly attend training and 

development events and both midlands and national internal audit network 
events.  A summary of events attended during the last quarter is shown on 
page 8.    
 

Progress with implementing high importance recommendations 
 

9. The Committee is also tasked with monitoring the implementation of high 
importance recommendations.  Appendix 2 details high importance (HI) 
recommendations and provides a short summary of the issues surrounding 
these.  The relevant manager’s agreement (or otherwise) to implementing the 
recommendation and implementation timescales is shown.  Recommendations 
that have not been reported to the Committee before or where LCCIAS has 
identified that some update has occurred to a previously reported 
recommendation are shown in bold font.  Entries remain on the list until the 
auditor has confirmed (by specific re-testing) that action has been 
implemented. 
 

152



 
 

10. To summarise movements within Appendix 2: - 
 

a. New 
 

i. Consolidated risk – Records management 
ii. Children and Family Services – Early years funding 
iii. Adults & Communities - Fee review implementation 

 
  

b. In progress 
 

i. Children & Family Services - Burbage CE Infant School 
(extended) 

ii. Corporate Resources - Property Contracts Awards (extended) 
iii. Corporate Resources - Leicestershire Schools Music Service 

(extend recommendation 4) 
 

c. Closed 
 

i. Corporate Resources - Recommendations 1 – 3 of 
Leicestershire Schools Music Service 

ii. Consolidated risk – Recommendation 1 of records management  
iii. Adults & Communities - Fee review implementation  

 
The impact of the coronavirus on the Internal Audit Service 

 
11. The Midlands Heads of Internal Audit Group met at the end of February and 

discussed the potential impact of the coronavirus pandemic on its business 
continuity and resilience plans, and the potential impacts of increased risks of 
service failures and weakened internal control etc. Internally, at the same time 
the Head of the Internal Audit Service (HoIAS) reviewed the Service’s business 
continuity plan to identify whether there was potential to release some staff 
from what would be classed as a non-essential service should the virus 
escalate.  
  

12. The Service has long been equipped for and is comfortable working in a 
mobile and flexible manner, either from home (or other sites), so immediate 
continuity and sustainability wasn’t an issue.  Nevertheless, on the 
announcement of the national lockdown made by the Prime Minister, the 
Service was affected from an immediate loss of engagement with some 
auditees, along with the need to display an empathic understanding of the 
significant difficulties operational and corporate services were now facing.    
 

13. The Service’s management team reviewed the internal audit plan and reached 
decisions to continue, pause or stop activities.  Due to the necessary change in 
priorities to respond to the crisis brought about by the pandemic, there remain 
several audits where responses to draft reports are still outstanding. The 
HoIAS continues to follow up obtaining the outstanding responses and is 
mindful that the matters raised (especially any high importance 
recommendations) will need to be re-considered in terms of how the service 

153



 
 

that was previously audited will plan to recover, recognising that some of the 
recommendations are likely to change significantly to reflect the outcomes of 
the current crisis. 
 

14. There was a purposeful shift towards providing managers with an offer to 
quickly review any planned (or already implemented by necessity) changes to 
alternative service delivery models which might have implications for the 
Council’s control environment, and to provide advice in terms of fraud 
mitigation.  The Service has also become more agile using available 
technologies (e.g. shared screens and video calling) to continue its work 
following professional guidance and is pushing ahead on the use of a data 
analytics tool. The HoIAS and others in the team routinely share ideas and 
heed advice amongst colleagues in other local authorities and from CIPFA and 
the Institute of Internal Auditors. 
 

15. There was also the opportunity to provide internal audit resource to critical 
Council services that for reasons of either extra demand (increased business 
requirements) or reduced resource (staff absent or self-isolating) would benefit 
from some additional resource redeployment.  Since the end of 
March/beginning of April, six Internal Audit Service staff were redeployed to the 
Pensions Service (4) and payments relating to adult social care functions (2). 
Those staff have shown tremendous aptitude to learn and deliver operational 
functions in a very short amount of time. Continuation of redeployment will be 
kept under review as services begin to recover. It is expected that the internal 
audit service will continue to work with departments to ensure risks are being 
identified, considered and mitigated. 
 

16. Between 2nd March and 29th May, 209 days have been recorded undertaking 
covid-19 related work. This can be broken down as: - 
 

a. Redeployed to critical services 
i. Pensions Service – 97 days  
ii. Payments relating to adult social care functions – 46 days 

b. Reviewing alternative service delivery – 66 days 
 

Designation  
 

Pensions ASC 
payments 

Alternative 
service 
delivery  
 

Total 
days 

HoIAS* - - 33 33 

Audit Managers  - - 8 8 

Senior Auditors - - 25 25 

Auditors 65 - - 65 

Assistant auditors 32 46 - 78 

Total 97 46 66 209 

 
 

*The HoIAS also oversees the Council’s insurance function which has been 
heavily involved providing advice and information on alternative service 
delivery proposals. Considerable time has also been spent in discussion with 

154



 
 

senior management to ensure the delivery of the Service is in line with the 
Council’s response and recovery plans to the Coronavirus pandemic. 
 
Pages 6 & 7 of Appendix 1 provide more detail of the work undertaken 
 
    

17. Members can take assurance that the impact on the County Council’s internal 
audit function and the approach taken to utilising resources mirrors most 
Midlands’ County internal audit functions. 
 

Approach to developing the Internal Audit Plan 2020-21 
 

18. Prior to the Coronavirus pandemic, work had begun to draft an Internal Audit 
Plan for 2020/21.  However, the impact of the crisis on all Council services 
quickly halted the finalisation of the Plan. Most services are now beginning to 
plan to develop a new ‘normal’ and with consideration to the response phase, 
most HoIAS’ are developing a shorter six-month plan with an aim to review this 
after three months to ensure this is kept current and is reflective of the fast-
changing circumstances. The HoIAS will discuss this approach with the 
Director of Corporate Resources at the end of June. In the meantime, there will 
be virtual meetings with management teams which will begin to identify 
proposed service delivery changes both from interim recovery plans and 
associated risk registers. The Internal Audit Plan for the remainder of 2020-21 
will be brought to the Committee at its meeting on 24 July 2020. 
 

19. The HoIAS is keeping abreast of how the LCCIAS team will also be planning to 
better utilise their resources and re-imagine internal audit as it too moves to a 
new normal. This is likely to require: - 
 

a. encouraging agility and accountability 
b. rethinking the operating model based on how people work best e.g. 

working remotely. 
c. accelerating digital, tech, and analytics 
d. understanding better what stakeholders will value, post-COVID-19, and 

developing and tailoring approach/delivery based on those insights. 
e. promoting adaptability, which is essential 

 
 

Resource implications 
  

20. There are no resource implications arising directly from this report. 
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 

21. There are no discernible equality and human rights implications resulting from 
the audits listed. 
 

 
 
 

155



 
 

Recommendation 
 

22. That the contents of the routine update report be noted. 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
The Constitution of Leicestershire County Council 
 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1187&MId=6195&Ver=4&Info=
1 
 
Report to the Corporate Governance Committee on 10 May 2019 - Internal Audit 
Plan for 2019-20 
 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=434&MId=5854&Ver=4 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 

 
None. 
 
Officer to Contact 
 
Neil Jones, Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Service 
Tel: 0116 305 7629 Email: neil.jones@leics.gov.uk 

 
Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 - Summary of Internal Audit Service work undertaken between 

18 January and 29 May 2020. 
Appendix 2 - High Importance Recommendations at 29 May 2020 
 

156

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1187&MId=6195&Ver=4&Info=1
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1187&MId=6195&Ver=4&Info=1
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=434&MId=5854&Ver=4
mailto:neil.jones@leics.gov.uk


 

1 

 

Summary of Internal Audit Service Work – 18th January to 29th May 2020                             Appendix 1 

Assurance Audits 

Department Entity Final report (or 

position at 29/5) 

Opinion HI Rec’n 

Adults & Communities Fee Review Implementation – Residential Care 10-Mar-20 Partial Yes 

Adults & Communities Direct Payments  27-May-20 (Draft) Awaiting client 

response  

TBA 

Children & Family Services Early Years Funding 7-May-20 Partial Yes 

Children & Family Services St John the Baptist CE Primary School  14-Feb-20 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Payment by Results Claims for Supporting 

Leicestershire Families (SLF) Claims February and 

March 2020 

Complete n/a n/a 

Consolidated Risk Mandatory Training 2-April-20 Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk  Records Management Audit  27- Jan-20  Partial  Yes 

Consolidated Risk  ICT External Hosting  30-Mar-20 (Draft) Awaiting client 

response  

TBA 

Consolidated Risk  Subject Access Requests 23-Jan-20 Substantial  No  

Consolidated Risk Rights of Audit in Procurement Contracts 17-Jan-20 (Draft) 

 

Awaiting client 

response  

TBA 

157



 

2 

 

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud – Gifts and Hospitality Registers 09-Dec-19 (Draft) 

 

Awaiting client 

response  

TBA 

Consolidated Risk Key Financial Systems – Assurance on the Control 

Functions 

30 April 20 Substantial No 

Corporate Resources Treasury Management and Investments 28 April 20 Substantial No 

158



 

3 

 

Consulting audits 

Department Entity Final report (or position 

at 29/5) 

Chief Executives Coroners Awaiting client response to 

draft report 

Consolidated Risk IAS continues to provide advice to the PSN working group as and when required.  Ongoing  

Consolidated Risk Supplier Code of Conduct Awaiting client response to 

draft report 

Corporate Resources Bomgar Solution – advice given regarding the short-term ‘roll-out’ of the remote 

support solution software to School Financial Advisors. 

Ongoing 

Consolidated Risk Continue to represent the County Council on the Audit Committee of the East 

Midlands Public Services Network  

Ongoing 

Corporate Resources Fit for the Future Project 

- Ad hoc control advice is given to the Project Team e.g. Audit Trail 

requirements etc. 

- Feedback provided on financials user acceptance testing. 

- Ongoing input into project related ISRAs.  

Ongoing  

Corporate Resources  Attendance at the Information Assurance Group 
 
Advice provided by ICT Auditor on: - 

- ‘Flowz’ system for storage of information asset registers 
- Database Rationalisation 
- DocuSign (electronic signatures) application  

Ongoing 

159



 

4 

 

 
Provide IT Assurances during Covid-19  
 

Corporate Resources  ISRA - Exchange 2016/Hybrid  Awaiting final sign off  

Corporate Resources  ISRA – Evo Claim Insurance System  Awaiting final sign off  

Corporate Resources  ISRA – HTTPS Scanning  Awaiting final sign off  

Corporate Resources  ISRA – Speed Admin (Music Services Management System)  Signed off 26-Feb-20 

Corporate Resources  ISRA – Body Worn Cameras (Reveal Media) Signed off 31-Jan-20 

Corporate Resources  ISRA – Thornton Hope Debt Collection Signed off 28-Feb-20 

Corporate Resources  ISRA – BYOP and O365 Applications  Signed Off 30-Apr-20 

Corporate Resources  ISRA - Ulysses (UDMS) Scheduling and Connected Care Mobile Solution Ongoing  

 

 

160



 

5 

 

 Undertaking or aiding with unplanned ‘investigations’ 

Department Entity   Outcome by 29/5 

Children & Family Services Whistleblowing complaint about a (non-LCC) community centre, but for which LCC 

does provide some funding in respect of early years provision. 

No further action required.  

Complainant signposted to 

the prime regulator for the 

centre, the Charity 

Commission. 

 

Other control environment/assurance work 

Department Entity Final report (or position 

at 29/5) 

Consolidated Risk Review/revision of the Fraud Awareness e-learning module. Complete 

Consolidated Risk Meeting of the Corporate Risk Management Group (19 February 2020 and 14 May 

2020) involving preparation, agenda and minutes of meetings during the year.  

Complete  

Governance Annual Governance Statement 2019-20 

- Review, update and issue Directors’ governance self-assessments 

- Collate results and prepare the Draft Annual Governance Statement in 

readiness for meetings of Senior Officer Group and Chief Officers 

Ongoing 

Consolidated Risk Collate risk related information from all Departments and prepare Risk 

Management update reports to Chief Officers and Corporate Governance 

Committee for 12 June 2020 

Complete 

161



 

6 

 

Work assisting other functions 

Department Entity   Position at 29/5 

Corporate Resources – 

redeployment of internal 

audit staff 

As part of the Department’s covid-19 emergency response, 6 Internal Audit Service 

staff were redeployed from the end of March/early April to assist critical functions: - 

 Pensions Service – year end; refund contributions; updating records 

 Adult social care payments - direct payments; deceased notifications; small 

balance write-offs; residential care deceased/discharged log                                                                           

Ongoing 

Corporate Resources – IT 

assurances  

IT Assurances - to include controls on redeployment of kit, cyber security 

arrangements/monitoring, security of agile working, access to systems where staff 

are being redeployed, use of SCCM, capacity management etc. 

Ongoing  

All departments The Internal Audit Service has provided management with reviews of planned (or 

already implemented by necessity) changes to alternative service delivery methods 

and provided advice on fraud mitigation, for example: - 

 Review of Business Continuity plans 

 Communities Fund – risks, controls and proactive counter fraud advice to 

the Chief Executive’s and Corporate Resources Departments regarding the 

distribution of emergency grant funding through the newly-established fund 

 E&T (Notice Processing Unit) - confidentiality when working at home 

 Pension Fund - temporary (and permanent) work arounds re. electronic 

authorisation rather than 'wet' signatures on payment documents 

 Scope audit of Schools Facing Exceptional Costs during COVID-19 

Complete 162



 

7 

 

 Advice to the Chief Executive’s Department regarding emerging fraud risks 

coming from Covid-19 that could impact on normal LCC funding channels, 

e.g. Shire Grant programme. 

 Dissemination of fraud advice, predominantly regarding Covid-19, to the 

Communications Team for onward publishing to staff and managers.  

Informal fraud advice to staff through Yammer and Sharepoint.  Ad hoc 

fraud advice to key areas on key topics, e.g. mandate fraud, supply chain 

fraud. 

All departments Risk management  

Various meetings with members of the Recovery Group. Main issues around 

alignment of existing risk management arrangements in the context of the following: 

 Annual business planning 

 Interim Recovery Planning guidance 

 Draft Recovery Strategy 

 Governance and reporting arrangements (via Heads of Service, 
Departmental Management, Chief Officers) 

 

Complete  

 

 

 

 

 

163



 

8 

 

 

Training, development and networks attended during the period 

Local Authorities Chief Auditors Network 

 IIA Ambition Model, Horizon Scanning, Commercialism, CIPFA Financial Management Code and the Financial Resilience Index 

 

Midlands Counties Heads of Internal Audit Groups 

 Management group 

o Annual Workplan, High risk areas, IIA guidance on auditing climate strategy 

 ICT Audit Group 
 

o Points of Practice raised by Leicestershire on other counties approach to IT assurances during Covid-19 
 

CIPFA Better Governance Forum  

 Good Governance Update 

 Impact of COVID-19 on Annual Governance Statements 2019/20 - (Webinar) 

 Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally – (Webinar) 

Mandatory Training 

 SIMS Financial System - All staff involved in school visits took part in a half day introduction to the above package 

 Managing Remote Teams Training 

164



 

 

Appendix 2 

 

High Importance Recommendations at 29
th

 May 2020 

 
Audit Title 

(Director) 

Summary of Finding(s) and Recommendation(s) Management Response Action Date 

(by end of) & 

extensions 

 

Confirmed 

Implemented 

Reported June 

2020 

    

Records 

management 

(Consolidated 

Risk) 

Internal Audit randomly chose three sections 

within County Hall to undertake floor walks. The 

exercise identified some confidential and sensitive 

records that were not secured. 

 

Recommended 

 

1. Physical records containing personal and 

sensitive information should be held 

securely. 

2. Ad hoc spot checks should be 

independently undertaken by the 

Information Governance Team or Internal 

Audit. 

 

 

Agreed 

 

The first recommendation has been 

actioned and comms was sent out 

immediately after the internal audit 

report. 

 

The Data Protection Officer intends to 

arrange for spot checks once there is 

recovery to offices 

Immediate 1. Yes 

2. Tba 

Early Years 

Funding  

(C&FS) 

 

Providers are paid in advance, based on 

headcount data from the previous term. Sums are 

recovered where actual headcount data is less 

than the previous headcount.  Delays with raising 

invoices led to one provider being overpaid. Legal 

has advised the overpayment will need to be 

written off. 

 

 

Both recommendations were agreed, 

and several changes are due to be 

implemented, including the wider audit 

recommendations. 

 

Initial implementation dates agreed 

(April 2020) have largely been 

unachievable due to Covid-19.  These 

are being kept under review by the 

October 2020 

 

 

 

165



 

2 

 

Recommended to thoroughly review the 

circumstances surrounding the overpayment and 

consequently determine any process changes. 

 

Furthermore, a report detailing overpayments to 

providers showed substantial outstanding 

balances owed to LCC with some dating back an 

number of years   

 

Recommended immediate action should be taken 

regarding the aged outstanding balances owed to 

LCC/overpayments held on Oracle. 

Service and will be implemented at an 

appropriate time, post Covid-19. 

 

Internal Audit will review the position 

in October 2020 

Fee Review 

Implementation 

(A&C) 

Transition of providers from the old (five band) 

fee structure to the new (two band) is behind 

schedule, due to several reasons including 

Provider disputes.  

 

Recommended that DMT received regular 

updates from the Project Board on the current 

status re: transitions, any remaining hurdles and 

progress against aspirational timescales. 

Agreed 

 

99% of transitions completed by end of 

May 

April 2020 Yes 

Reported January 

2020 

    

Burbage CE 

Infant School 

(C&FS) 

A deficit carry-forward is forecast for 2019/20.  The 

forecast for subsequent years is expected to be 

considerable and increasing deficit year on year, with 

estimates indicating a total deficit of as much as 

£200K by 2023/24. 

 

Some recharges to the adjoining Junior school had 

not been processed at the time of the audit, which 

may result in a break-even position for 2019/20, but 

does not change the position for future years. 

 

Recommended that conversations continue with the 

Agreed 

 

Will implement the recommendation by 

early February 2020 and monitor at each 

Finance meeting. 

 

The school finished 2019/20 with a 

deficit of £12K. 

 

 

February 2020 

 

Extend to October 

2020 

 

166



 

3 

 

LA Finance Section with a view to forming a deficit 

budget plan for future years. In addition, the 

completion of a cash flow forecast was recommended 

to assist with monitoring cash flow.  

 

Reported May 

2019 

    

Property 

Contracts Awards 

(CR) 

 

Management requested an audit of the award of 

property maintenance contracts and the allocation of 

work. Whilst the audit identified poor practice and 

control, no evidence came to light of any wrong 

doing. Management agreed to act on several 

recommendations to strengthen control. 

Because of quality issues with the data 

recorded in the primary system, work 

continues to check the processes for 

retrospective orders. 

 

From the HoIAS 

 

The impact of the virus has affected 

internal audit concluding this exercise 

  

 

 

   

June 2019 

 

August 2019 

 

November 2019 

 

April 2020 

 

Extend to June 

2020 

 

 

Leicestershire 

Schools Music 

Service 

(CR) 

 

At management’s request a review of the financial, 

operational and governance arrangements in place 

surrounding the Leicester-Shire Schools Music 

Service (LSMS) and it’s at arm’s length charity, the 

Leicester-Shire Music and Cultural Trust (LMCT) 

was undertaken. This review included the separation 

of responsibilities between both the LSMS and the 

LMCT and to assess that proper procedures are in 

place for the administration of ensembles.  

 

Several recommendations and an action plan for 

implementation were agreed with management, 

including 1) improved governance arrangements, 2) 

clearer job roles and responsibilities, 3) revised 

contracts and overtime arrangements, 4) revise 

Agreed 

 

From the HoIAS 

 

The opinion given following the initial 

audit in February 2019 was only 

partial assurance. The opinion was 

lifted to substantial on the basis that 

there is a clear roadmap of compliance 

with the recommendations. Closed off 

recommendations 1 - 3 

 

A retest will take place in 20/21 in 

respect of completion of the wide-

ranging review of the transport service 

September 2019 

 

December 2019  

 

April 2020 

 

Extend 

recommendation 

#4 to September 

2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

167



 

4 

 

procurement of transport. 

Whilst none of the recommendations was deemed 

individually as “high importance” collectively the 

recommendations will require a targeted follow up to 

ensure improvements have been made. 

 

offered. 

 

From management 

 

Planning to go ahead with the public 

engagement exercise during second 

half of summer term  

 

 

 
Audit/CGC/20-21/Jun20/Appendix 2 HI Progress Report       Last Revised 29

th
 May 2020     

   

168


	Agenda
	1 Minutes.
	6 Risk Management Update.
	Appendix - Corporate Risk Register Update

	7 External Audit Risk Assessment 2019/20 and Audit Plan 2019/20 Update.
	Appendix A - LCC and LPF Audit Risk Asst 2019-20 - Final
	Appendix B - LCC Audit Plan Addendum Covid19

	8 Appointment of Independent Persons.
	9 Quarterly Treasury Management Update.
	QUARTERLY TREASURY MGT REPORT -APPENDIX

	10 Annual Treasury Management Report.
	Appendix - Leicestershire County Council Benchmarking Report March 2020

	11 Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2019/20.
	Appendix - Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2019-20
	Annex 1 - HoIAS annual opinion 2019-20_FINAL
	Annex 2 - Summary of Internal Audit Service Work supporting the HoIAS opinion - 2019-20
	Annex 3 - Summary - Self-assessment of conformance with PSIAS - May 2020

	12 Internal Audit Service Progress Report.
	Appendix 1 - Summary of Internal Audit Service Work 180120 to 290520
	Appendix 2 - HI Progress Report at 29th May 2020


